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The Year 2005
in the Light
of the 50th
Anniversary

50 years of development from Komunalna, Kreditna to Nova Kreditna banka Maribor
In 2005 an important anniversary was celebrated by Nova KBM d.d. and its clients.
Komunalna banka Maribor, the banking predecessor of the present Nova KBM, was established by the
Municipal Council on 14 July 1955. The Bank was founded to serve the Maribor region, and it commenced
operations on 25 July 1955.
Komunalna banka Maribor was the promoter of the economic development of the Štajerska and Koroška areas.
It certainly contributed most to the fact that in the late fifties local companies doubled their revenues and
volume of business.

Okrajna komunalna banka (District Communal Bank)
Due to the expansion of its operations to the entire district, the Bank changed its name to Okrajna komunalna
banka (District Communal Bank) in 1958. In March 1961 a new Banking Act became effective strengthening
the role of communal banks, which resulted in Okrajna komunalna banka changing its name back to Komunalna
banka Maribor.
In 1964 Komunalna banka Maribor was one of the few banks in the country that obtained a licence for
performing certain foreign currency transactions.

Kreditna banka Maribor
The Act on Banks and Credit Operations of 1965 defined banks as trade organizations of special social
importance that are managed by work organizations and socio-political communities. Thus, the Bank obtained
the function of a commercial-investment bank, and was renamed Kreditna banka Maribor.
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In that period the Bank started promoting savings deposits and it introduced current accounts. Moreover,
the Bank introduced cashless cheque operations, while companies started transferring salaries of their
employees to their bank accounts. Consequently, the Bank disposed of larger sums of money that citizens
and companies deposited in it, and was in turn able to offer short-term loans to companies especially for
salary payments.

The booming seventies
In the early seventies of the previous century, an intensive centralization of the banking system in Slovenia
commenced. Nearly all of the then Slovenian banks joined Ljubljanska banka.
Kreditna banka Maribor went its own way. In 1972 the Bank was granted “a full foreign currency licence”
which enabled it to perform all types of banking transactions with foreign countries. The trust it gained abroad
made it possible for the Bank to raise foreign currency loans.
In 1975 a ceremonial opening marked the relocation of the Bank’s headquarters to the new “Centrala” office
building in Ulica Vita Kraigherja, where they are still located today. In the same year the Bank fitted out a
modern computer centre in the “Centrala” building with the most state-of-the-art equipment of that time, thus
gaining independence of external computer support.

Merger
In 1978 Kreditna banka Maribor was merged along with twenty-two other basic banks with Ljubljanska
banka – združena banka. In those times Kreditna banka was the second largest bank in Slovenia – as it still is

today. The period of that banking association was quite long because Kreditna banka Maribor withdrew from
Ljubljanska banka – združena banka only in 1993.

Reorganization and change of name
Kreditna banka Maribor commenced operations as a joint-stock company on 1 January 1990. Following the
decline and bankruptcy of numerous industrial companies in Maribor that were not able to repay their loans, a
rehabilitation process was introduced in the Bank, which passed into the ownership of the Bank Rehabilitation
Agency – thus obtaining a new owner – the state.
Nova Kreditna banka Maribor d.d. (hereinafter: Nova KBM d.d.)
Nova Kreditna banka Maribor d.d. was established in 1994 by a constitutional act. In 1997 the rehabilitation
process of Nova KBM was concluded. From the rehabilitation process, lasting not less than 51 months, Nova
KBM emerged stronger and bigger because following the merger with the previous Komercialna banka Nova
Gorica, it became the second largest bank in the country.
Nowadays the leading member of the Group
Nova KBM d.d. is a modern and reliable bank with a long-standing tradition that understands and accompanies
its business partners, follows the planning targets and lives with its environment. Fifteen years ago it
gradually started forming a Group, and supplementing its banking offer with services provided by specialised
companies.
The beginnings of the Group’s reorganization go back to 1991, when Nova KBM d.d. established its first
specialized company – the real estate company KBM Fineko d.o.o, podjetje za promet z nepremičninami.
Two years later the brokerage company MBH d.o.o.– Mariborska borznoposredniška hiša was established,
while 1994 saw the founding of the investment fund management company KBM Infond d.o.o. družba za
upravljanje investicijskih skladov, and of KBM Leasing d.o.o.. Following the acquisition of Komercialna banka
Nova Gorica, the company Fininvest d.o.o. joined the Group in the same year.

Zavarovalnica Maribor d.d. was joined with Nova KBM d.d. as an associated company on 31 December 2002.
In was then that a period of closer co-operation started especially in terms of the development of common
services and the provision of insurance products in the Bank’s branches.
In 2004 Nova KBM d.d acquired a 55 per cent ownership interest in Poštna banka Slovenije (hereinafter PBS
d.d.) and met the formal conditions to commence integrating PBS d.d. into the Nova KBM Group.
In 2005 Nova KBM d.d adopted a resolution to acquire MBH d.o.o., which involved the transfer of all business
activities of the brokerage company to the Bank. The acquisition of MBH d.o.o. was successfully concluded
at the end of the year by removing MBH d.o.o. from the Register of Companies, and by registering the same
services for Nova KBM d.d.. Nova KBM d.d. thus became a universal successor in title of MBH d.o.o..
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In 2000 the Bank seized a good market opportunity, and by establishing the pension fund management
company Moja naložba d.d., it started collecting optional pension insurance premiums.
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In 1998 Nova KBM d.d. enhanced the offer of its specialized companies with the real estate investment
company KBM Invest d.o.o. as well as with Gorica Leasing d.o.o.

As at 31 December 2005 the Nova KBM Group encompassed the controlling company Nova KBM d.d. and
13 companies, 8 of which were controlled companies with the Bank’s interest of not less than 50 per cent
(KBM Invest d.o.o., Gorica Leasing d.o.o., KBM Fineko d.o.o., KBM Infond d.o.o., KBM Leasing d.o.o., Hotel
Slavija d.d., M-PAY d.o.o. and Poštna banka Slovenije d.d.), and 5 companies with the Bank’s interest between
20 and 50 per cent (Zavarovalnica Maribor d.d., Moja naložba d.d., Adria Bank AG, TVI Majšperk d.o.o. and
Steklarna Rogaška d.d.).
Ten companies are included in consolidated financial statements of the Nova KBM Group. Seven companies
(KBM Invest d.o.o., Gorica Leasing d.o.o., KBM Fineko d.o.o., KBM Infond d.o.o., KBM Leasing d.o.o.,
PBS d.d. and M-PAY d.o.o.) are included based on complete consolidation method of investment valuation,
while three companies (Zavarovalnica Maribor d.d., Moja naložba d.d. in Adria Bank AG) are included based
on equity method of consolidation valuation.
Thee companies are excluded from the Group’s financial statements – Hotel Slavija d.d., which ceased
operations in 2003, TVI Majšperk d.o.o., acquired by the Bank as a debt-for-equity swap, as well as the glass
factory Steklarna Rogaška. The investments in the latter two are held to be sold off.

5/

Nova Kreditna banka Maribor d.d. / Annual Report 2005

A detailed description of the Nova KBM Group companies is found on page 18.

The
Nova KBM
Banking Group

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
in millions of SIT

Results for the year
Profit before taxation
Profit after taxation

2005
10,865
7,833

2004
6,341
2,691

2003
7,065
3,689

At the year end
Shareholders’ funds
Total assets
Loans and advances to customers
Due to customers

2005
58,911
838,607
411,553
554,932

2004
53,631
716,837
351,686
517,019

2003
49,987
549,582
265,485
408,483

Ratios
ROAE (based on profit after tax)
ROAA (based on profit after tax)
costs/average assets

2005
13.92
1.01
2.91

2004
4.92
0.42
3.64

2003
7.68
0.69
3.89
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In 2005 the Capital adequacy (BIS methodology) was 13.85 percent – in 2004 15.35 percent.
Exchange rates (as at 31st December)
2005
2004
1 EUR = SIT
239.5756
239.7430
1 US$ = SIT
202.4297
176.2427

2003
236.6903
189.3674

IMPORTANT EVENTS IN 2005
Nova KBM GROUP (exclusive of Nova KBM d.d. )
January:
• In the first mutual fund rating organised by the Kapital magazine, Infond Delniški Equity Mutual Fund
was awarded as the best Slovene equity fund for the previous five-year period.
March:
• The entire Nova KBM Group starts preparing for the adoption of the euro.
May:
• Introduction of changed rules for managing Infond Hrast and Infond Uravnoteženi (Balanced Mutual
Funds) as well as Infond Delniški (Equity Mutual Fund) allowing the proportion of investments in foreign
securities to rise from 10 per cent up to 50 per cent of the fund’s assets.
June:
• The Nova KBM Group obtains a licence from the Securities Market Agency for organised trading in the
6th and 7th issue of bonds of Poštna banka Slovenije d.d. – Nova Kreditna banka Maribor d.d. Banking
Group. The total nominal value of the 6th issue amounts to 1,000,000,000.00 tolars and of the 7th issue
to 4,000,000,000.00 tolars.
July:
• Aleš Hauc, President of the Management Board of Pošta Slovenije (Post of Slovenia), is elected the new
Chairman of the Supervisory Board of PBS d.d., and Matjaž Kovačič, President of the Management Board
of Nova KBM d.d., is elected the Supervisory Board’s new Vice-Chairman.

November:
• The Bank is issued a licence by the Bank of Slovenia allowing it to perform securities services, and to
acquire MBH d.o.o..
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October:
• KBM Infond d.o.o. starts marketing and managing two new mutual funds: Infond Energy Equity Mutual
Fund and Infond BRIC Equity Mutual Fund.
• Appointment of a new Management Board of PBS d.d. – on termination of Jožica Capuders’ term of
office, mag. Drago Pišek is appointed as the new President of the Management Board, while Viktor Lenče
is nominated as the Member of the Management Board.
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September:
• KBM Fineko d.o.o., together with KBM Invest d.o.o. and KBM Leasing d.o.o., purchases a dominant
interest (76 per cent) in Multiconsult d.o.o. of Zagreb, thus creating additional potentials for carrying out
projects in the Croatian market, and at the same time diversifying risks arising from individual projects.

BUSINESS AND DEVELOPMENT OBJECTIVES
OF THE Nova KBM GROUP AND THE BANK
1

In its action strategy, discussed and fully endorsed by the Supervisory Board of Nova KBM in June 2004, the
Bank, including its Banking and Financial Group, has defined its mission, vision and guidelines that will ensure
in the period to come its further development under the circumstances of tougher competition of domestic and
foreign banks, and further strengthening and expansion of the Bank’s and Group’s operations as the provider
of complete financial services.

Mission of the Nova KBM Financial Group
Together we build partner relations in the area of complete financial services.
Vision of the Nova KBM Financial Group
By 2008 the Nova KBM Financial Group will be recognisable as the leading provider of complete and highquality financial services in Slovenia for citizens, small and medium-sized companies. It will have established a
process of operations optimisation and cost streamlining. It will have an efficient system of Group management
supported by unified flows of reporting. Membership of the Group will contribute to better performance of
each single Group member.
Strategic goals of the Nova KBM Financial Group are:
• Introduction of a management system at the Group level
• Introduction of a reporting system required for the Group’s operations
• Development of the Group’s information system and standardisation of reporting
• Strategic Group marketing
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Mission of Nova KBM
Nova KBM is a modern and safe bank with a tradition and understanding of its business partners, following
its development goals and living with its environment.
Vision of Nova KBM
Nova KBM will remain the second largest Banking Group in Slovenia in terms of market share of its balance
sheet total. At the same time Nova KBM will be the leading institution within the Nova KBM Financial Group,
providing complete financial services for citizens, micro, small and medium-sized companies in Slovenia. In
terms of accessibility, friendliness and quality of services and competitiveness of products, it will become the
best bank in the field of retail operations, with the most expanded branch network in Slovenia. Despite the
Group’s growth and development, Nova KBM d.d. will continue to provide security in operations and be fully
adjusted with the risk management standards.

1

The text is an extract from the document »Action Strategy of the Nova KBM Financial and Banking Group«, in which the terms
the Nova KBM Banking Group and the Nova KBM Financial Group are used. In the Bank’s Annual Report, however, the term
»The Nova KBM Banking Group« is used for the Group.

Strategic guidelines and strategic goals of Nova KBM:
• To become an all-Slovene bank
• To transform into a flexible institution
• To understand and consolidate customer relations
• To support flexible and high-quality operations
• To introduce technological innovations
• To consolidate relations within the Group
In the coming years, Nova KBM will become an all-Slovene bank. This will be achieved along with Poštna
banka Slovenije (Post Bank of Slovenia) and with the co-operation of Pošta Slovenije (Post of Slovenia), which
provides the Bank with an access to a wide network of »post office outlets« across entire Slovenia where
customers need common bank services. At the same time the Bank plans to cover all regional centres with its
own branch network offering more complex financial services.
In future the synergy effects of the merger with PBS d.d. will be reflected especially in the area of retail
operations. In 2006 the synergy effects will already be visible, but only to a lesser extent. Better synergy effects
are expected in the years to come, for which, however, significant preparatory work based on the existing
Bank’s strategy will be required.
The quality of the Bank’s own operations will be improved by means of its reconstruction and by strengthening
customer relations.
The Bank strives for excellence in operations. This should be achieved by the NOBIS information system
whose objective it is to build a uniform information support for the Bank’s operations with all types of clients,
for internal and external provision of information as well as for management and decision-making. When the
NOBIS system is fully operational, the Bank will improve the quality of its operations by providing more
complete information to its clients, and by making the banking offer more flexible.
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Nova KBM is aware of the importance of future technologies and of the advantages brought about by introducing
them as quickly as possible. Nova KBM is the principal bank in Slovenia regarding the introduction of payments
made by mobile phone. It aspires to become an active co-owner of the mobile payment system in Slovenia and
one of the major leaders in this fast-growing area.

FINANCIAL RESULT
Income before tax of the Banking Group in the period from 1 January
to 31 December 2005 amounted to 10,865 million tolars. The Bank’s
contribution to the Group’s income before tax was 9,368 million tolars
or 86.2 percent, Infond’s 402 million tolars or 3.7 percent and NKBM
Leasing’s 408 million tolars or 3.8 percent. The Banking Group’s net
income for the period amounted to 7,833 million tolars.
Operating income computed as the sum of net interest income,
net fee and commissions income, dividend income, income
from associates, net trading income and other operating income
amounted in the period from 1 January to 31 December 2005 to
39,855 million tolars. In addition to the Bank’s operating income
of 31,901 million tolars, the highest operating income was achieved
by PBS – 4,611 million tolars or 11.6 percent of the Banking Group’s
operating income, as well as by Gorica Leasing – 1,002 million
tolars.

11 /

Nova Kreditna banka Maribor d.d. / Annual Report 2005

In 2005 the Banking Group spent 56.9 percent of operating income to
cover general administrative expenses, depreciation and amortization,
12.9 percent for impairment losses, 3.0 percent for other expenses,
and the remaining 27.3 percent for income before tax of the Banking
Group. The largest percentage of its operating income to cover
general administrative expenses, depreciation and amortization was
achieved by KBM Invest, i.e. 82.3 percent, followed by KBM Fineko
with 73.4 percent and PBS with 72.2 percent. The Bank and PBS have
the highest utilization of operating income for impairment losses: the
Bank 12.9 percent and PBS 20.8 percent of operating income. As to
the level of income before tax in operating income KBM Leasing
predominates with as much as 54.5 percent.
The largest segment of profits was generated by net interest income,
accounting for 52.3 percent of the Bank’s operating income; the
second largest portion – 22.0 percent of total - derived from net fees
and commissions. Contributing 3.5 percent of the entire operating
income - some 1,389 million tolars - was revenue deriving from
shares in associated companies; 10.7 percent of total operating income
was yielded from trading operations. Within the total structure of
operating expenses, general administrative expenses represented
by far the largest portion, and accounted for 86.1 percent of total; as
regards other operating expenses, other expenses accounted for 5.0
percent, and depreciation and amortization 8.9 percent, of the total.
In the period from 1 January to 31 December 2005, net interest
income of the Banking Group amounted to 20,840 million tolars.

The Bank generated 16,993 million tolars by net interest, and PBS 2,973 million tolars. Net interest of the
Banking Group accounts for 52.3 percent of operating income. The Bank’s percentage is higher because net
interest accounts for 53.3 of its operating income; while in the case of PBS, net interest accounts for 64.5
percent of its operating income.
Net trading income of the Banking Group amounted to 4,268 million tolars, the biggest portion generated
by the Bank – 4,010 million tolars, and the remaining 220 million tolars by PBS and 149 million tolars by
Fineko.
Net fee and commission income of the Banking Group totalled 8,773 million tolars. The largest portion of
net fees and commissions – 7,430 million tolars – was earned by the Bank, 1.307 million tolar by PBS and
49 million tolars by KBM Leasing. Net fees and commissions account for 28.3 percent of PBS’s operating
income, and 23.3 percent of the Bank’s operating income. The Banking Group covered with net fees and
commissions 38.7 percent of General administrative expenses, depreciation and amortization, totalling
22,670 million tolars. Compared with the Banking Group, the Bank’s cover of its General administrative
expenses, depreciation and amortization with net fees and commissions was by 3.0 percent higher and similarly
in PBS, where the respective cover was higher by 0.5 percent. The Bank covered with net fees and commissions
41.7 percent of its General administrative expenses, depreciation and amortization, totalling 17,834 million
tolars.
Among net non-interest income of the Banking Group, other operating income accounted for a 20.1 percent
share with 3,824 million tolars. The Bank contributed 40.2 percent of other operating income or 1,538 million
tolars, Infond 824 million tolars or 21.5 percent of other operating income and Gorica Leasing 602 million
tolars or 15.8 percent of other operating income of the Banking Group.
Among net non-interest income of the Banking Group, net trading income accounted for 22.4 percent share
with 4,268 million tolars. The Bank contributed 94.0 percent of net trading income.

In 2005 employee costs within the Banking Group stood at 11,779 million tolars or 52.0 percent of all
administrative expenses; employee costs of the Bank amounted to 9,442 million tolars, while PBS’s costs
amounted to 1,793 million tolars. The Banking Group earmarked 29.6 percent of operating income to cover
employee costs. Even more operating income was used for employee costs by Fineko (48.6 percent) and by
PBS (38.9 percent).
Material costs and services costs of the Banking Group stood at 8,771 million tolars, of which 1,147 million
tolars were earmarked for material costs and 7,624 million tolars or 33.6 percent of administrative expenses for
services costs. Services costs of the Bank amounted to 6,053 million tolars, and those of PBS to 1,027 million
tolars.
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In the previous year General administrative expenses, depreciation and amortization of the Banking Group
amounted to 22,670 million tolars; 90.6 percent of this total or 20,550 million tolars were general administrative
expenses, and 2,120 million tolars was depreciation and amortization.
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Impairment losses of the Banking Group totalled 5,122 million tolars, 4,108 million tolars of which were
generated by the Bank. Impairment losses of PBS amounted to 961 million tolars.

DESCRIPTION
1. EMPLOYEE COSTS
2. MATERIAL COSTS AND SERVICES COSTS
- MATERIAL COSTS
- SERVICES COSTS
3. TOTAL GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
4. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

2005
11,779
8,771
1,147
7,624
20,550
2,120

%
52.0
38.7
5.1
33.6
90.6
9.4

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

22,670

100.0

FINANCIAL POSITION
The Banking Group’s 2005 balance sheet total amounted
to 838,607 million tolars, representing a 121,770 million tolar or
17.0 percent increase on the previous year.
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Due to customers increased by 37,913 million tolars or 7.3 percent.
The biggest increase was posted by the Banking Group, principally
because of the rise in Nova KBM’s and in PBS’s (Post Bank of
Slovenia) due to citizens. In the overall structure of due to customers,
due to citizens accounted for 75.8 percent, followed by due to
non-financial corporations with a 15.6 percent share, general
government with a 3.6 percent share, other financial institutions
with 3.2 percent and non-residents and non-profit institutions serving
households with a total share of 1.8 percent.
In the period of observation due to other banks decreased by
3,062 million tolars mainly because of a fall in Nova KBM’s time
deposits. The balance of due to banks as of the close of 2005 stood
at 5,459 million tolars, of which the total balance of time deposits
amounted to 3,362 million tolars, the remaining balance being
accounted for by demand deposits.
The balance of debt securities in issue went up by 9,287 million
tolars or 23.0 percent. The balance of debt securities in issue at
year’s end stood at 49,527 million tolars, of which the balance of
bonds amounted to 40,753 million tolars. In 2005 Nova KBM issued
five-year bond series “KBM8” in the total of 7,000 million tolars.
The Banking Group’s capital totalled 58,911 million tolars as of the
close of December 2005, representing an increase of 4,270 million
tolars on the previous year. The increase in capital is a result of the
net profit of 7,083 million tolars achieved in 2005 and the increase
in general banking reserves by 750 milijonov tolars. The decrease
in capital is due to the dividend paid in the amount of 1,055 million

tolars, the revaluation of RZP in the amount of 1,498 million tolars
and accrued fees and commissions in the amount of 945 million
tolars.
Other borrowed funds increased in 2005 by 66,189 million tolars,
or by 125.7 percent, and amounted at year’s end to 118,831 million
tolars. The increase is a consequence of raising of the syndicated
foreign currency loan by Nova KBM totalling 240 million euros.
At the end of 2005 subordinated liabilities amounted to 22,116 million
tolars. Within the structure of subordinated liabilities, subordinated
securities accounted for 11,979 milllion tolars, subordinated notes for
7,187 million tolars while the rest were subordinated loans.
In 2005 accruals, provisions, other liabilities and deferred tax
liabilitites witnessed an increase as well, namely by 7,165 million
tolars to 26,893 million tolars at the end of the year. In the structure of
total accruals, provisions, other liabilities and deferred tax liabilities,
other liabilities represented the largest portion - 28.6 percent of
total; the second largest portion - 20.9 percent of total - were other
provisions, 12.3 percent accrued interest, 10.0 percent accrued fees,
8.7 percent creditors and other.

The balance of due from other banks, recorded net growth in 2005
by 28,063 million tolars or 54.8 percent and stood at 79,304 million
tolars at the end of the year.
Loans and advances to customers, net, accounting for 49.1 percent
of all Banking Group’s investments, increased in 2005 by
59,867 million tolars or 17.0 percent.
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The portion of liabilities to banks, accounting for 0.6 percent at the
end of 2005, or by 0.6 percentage points drop on the previous year.
The portion of securities issued went up from 5.6 percent at the end
of 2004 to 5.9 percent at the end of 2005; in addition, the portion
of other borrowed funds from 7.3 percent at the end of 2004 to
14.2 percent at the end of 2005. In the structure of total liabilities,
the portion of the Banking Group’s capital as at 31 December 2005
accounted for 7.0 percent.
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As regards the structure of the Banking Group’s liabilities and
shareholders equity as at 31 December 2005, due to customers
accounted for 66.2 percent. The major portion (50.2 percent) was
represented by due to citizens of Nova KBM and PBS, while
the portion of due to non-financial corporations accounted for
10.3 percent.

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss totalled
48,242 million tolars at the end of 2005, representing an increase
of 43,694 million tolars. The increase derived mainly from bonds
purchased on foreign markets.
The balance of held to maturity investments decreased by
23,492 million tolars or 16.4 percent. As of the close of 2005, the
balance of held to maturity investments totalled 119,970 million tolars,
76,079 million tolars of which was held by Nova KBM and
43,891 million tolars by PBS.
Investments in associates and other investments increased in
2005 by 1,467 million tolars and amounted at the end of the year to
10,754 million tolars. The major portion are investments in
Zavarovalnica Maribor amounting to 4,235 million tolars
(39.4 percent of all Investments in associates and other investments),
in Adria Bank amounting to 1,828 million tolars (17.0 percent of all
Investments in associates and other investments), in Infond Holding
amounting to 1,404 million tolars and in Infond ID amounting to
1,084 million tolars.
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As regards the structure of assets as at 31 December 2005, the
portion of loans and advances to customers, net accounted for
49.1 percent, a rise of 0.1 percent over the year. Due from other
banks, net accounted for 9.4 percent, securities (financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss, available-for sale financial assets, held to
maturity investments) accounted for 31.3 percent, capital investments
(investments in associates and other investments and investments in
subsidiaries) for 1.3 percent, and the remaining assets accounted for
8.9 percent of the total Bank’s assets.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Bank monitors its Group companies on the consolidated basis under the aspect of foreign exchange and
interest rate risk, as well the risk due to maturity mismatch in assets and liabilities. Moreover, Nova KBM d.d.
analyses individual operations of the Group companies and manages the capital of the entire Group. Twice per
year, it reports to the Bank of Slovenia about the Group in compliance with the requirements of consolidated
supervision.
The companies in the Nova KBM Group operate independently in the scope of the set targets and regulatory
requirements, however, in the application of measurement methodologies and risk management they are
required to use uniform methodologies and procedures that include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Classification of clients,
Treatment of common clients,
Methods of reducing credit risks,
Criterions for determining related persons,
Monitoring exposure by region and industry,
Monitoring position, interest rate and foreign exchange risk,
Monitoring exposure due to maturity mismatch in assets and liabilities.

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Equity
Share capital
Reserves
Total shareholders’ equity

2005
5,840
53,071
58,911

in millions of SIT

2004
5,840
47,791
55,542

Assets are weighted according to broad categories of notional credit risk, being assigned a risk weighting
according to the amount of capital deemed to be necessary to support them. Four categories of risk weights
(0 percent, 20 percent, 50 percent, 100 percent) are applied; for example cash and money market instruments
have a zero risk weighting which means that no capital is required to support the holding of these assets.
Property and equipment carries a 100 percent risk weighting, meaning that it must be supported by capital
equal to 8 percent of the carrying amount. Other asset categories have intermediate weightings.
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Capital Adequacy
The Banking group monitors the adequacy of its capital using ratios established by the Bank for International
Settlements (BIS). These ratios measure capital adequacy by comparing the Banking Group’s eligible capital
with its balance sheet assets, off-balance-sheet commitments and market and other risk positions at a weighted
amount to reflect their relative risk.
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The Banking Group’s shareholders’ equity as at 31 December 2005 posted a year-on increase of 3,369 million
tolars and amounted to 58,911 million tolars.

Off-balance-sheet credit related commitments and derivative instruments are taken into account by applying
different categories of credit conversion factors, designed to convert these items into balance sheet equivalents.
The resulting credit equivalent amounts are then weighted for credit risk using the same percentages as for
balance sheet assets.
Tier 1 capital consists of shareholders’ equity less general banking reserve. Tier 2 capital includes the Group’s
subordinated debts, revaluation reserve and general provisions.
BIS Capital Ratios
Tier 1 capital
Tier 1 + Tier 2 capital

Capital
2005
2004
49,020
44,002
74,451
70,912

2005
9.12
13.85

BIS %

COMPANIES INCLUDED IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The Nova KBM Banking Group encompasses Nova KBM d.d. and the following companies:
• POŠTNA BANKA SLOVENIJE, d.d. (PBS d.d.)
• KBM INFOND, družba za upravljanje d.o.o.,
• KBM FINEKO d.o.o.,
• KBM INVEST d.o.o.,
• KBM LEASING d.o.o.,
• GORICA LEASING d.o.o.,
• MOJA NALOŽBA – POKOJNINSKA DRUŽBA d.d.,
• ZAVAROVALNICA MARIBOR d.d.,
• M-Pay d.o.o.,
• ADRIA BANK AG

2004
9.52
15.35

PBS d.d.
Full name:
Nova KBM’s ownership:
Description:
Internet:
E-mail:
Established:
Management:
Employees:
Company registered office:

Poštna banka Slovenije, d.d.
55 percent
Joint-stock company carrying out banking
and financial services
http://www.pbs.si/
info@pbs.si
1992
mag. Drago Pišek, President of the Management Board
222
Ulica Vita Kraigherja 5, 2000 Maribor
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Activities: In compliance with the Decision on the Issue of Approval for the Performance of
Banking and Financial Services issued by the Bank of Slovenia on 7th November 2000, PBS
d.d. carries out the following services:
• acceptance of deposits of natural persons and legal entities and approval of loans for its own
account, as well as other financial services in compliance with the Banking Act,
• factoring,
• issue of guarantees and other sureties,
• lending, including consumer loans, mortgage loans and financing of commercial
transactions;
• issue and management of payment instruments (e.g. payment and credit cards, travellers
cheques, banker’s bills);
• payment services,
• carrying out international orders, postal-cheque and postal-savings services,
• carrying out of exchange services,
• on 18th March 2002 the Bank obtained a licence from the Bank of Slovenia for foreign
exchange trading (other financial services).

KBM Infond d.o.o.
Full name:
Nova KBM’s ownership:
Description:
Internet:
E-mail:
Established:
Management:
Employees:
Company registered office:

KBM Infond, družba za upravljanje d.o.o.
72 percent
limited liability fund-management company
http://www.infond.si/
info@infond.si
1993
Stanko Brglez, President of the Management Board
19
Ulica Vita Kraigherja 5, 2000 Maribor

Activities:
KBM Infond d.o.o. was established to manage investment funds. In 2005 the company managed
the following funds:
• Infond ID, d.d., Special balanced investment company,
• Infond ID 1, d.d., Special investment company,
• Infond Hrast, Balanced mutual fund,
• Infond Uravnoteženi, Balanced mutual fund,
• Infond Delniški, Equity mutual fund,
• Infond €uropa, Equity mutual fund,
• Infond BRIC, Equity mutual fund,
• Infond Energy, Equity mutual fund.

KBM Fineko d.o.o.
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Nova KBM shareholding:
Description:
Internet:
E-mail:
Established:
Management:
Employees:
Company registered office:

100 percent
a limited liability equity and collateral management
company
http://www.nkbm.si/html/drugacnost/KBMFineko.html
info@kbm-fineko.si
1991
Hinko Podgoršek, Director
10
Ulica Vita Kraigherja 5, 2000 Maribor

Activities:
• real estate (management, leasing and trading in real estate),
• services and consultancy (economic analyses, rehabilitation, management of capital
• investments),
• debt recovery from individuals and small businesses,
• project finance.

KBM Invest d.o.o.
Full name:
Nova KBM shareholding:
Description:
Internet:
E-mail:
Established:
Management:
Employees:
Company registered office:

KBM Invest, družba za investiranje v nepremičnine d.o.o.
99.37 percent
a limited liability real estate company
http://www.kbminvest.si/
kbm-invest@nkbm.si
1998
mag. Mira Flisar, Director
8
Ulica Vita Kraigherja 5, 2000 Maribor

Activities:
• project engineering services for real estate maintenance and management as well as the
realisation of civil engineering infrastructure investments on behalf of Nova KBM d.d., in
particular new housing projects as well as the renovation of business premises belonging to
the Bank,
• construction and marketing of new housing projects,
• real estate management,
• intermediary services on the market.

100 percent
limited liability lease finance company
http://www.kbm-leasing.si/
leasing@nkbm.si
1994
Irena Brumen, Director
8
Ulica Vita Kraigherja 5, 2000 Maribor

Activities:
• financial leasing of passenger cars and freight vehicles,
• financial leasing of equipment,
• financial leasing of real estate,
• in exceptional cases, Operating-Leasing.
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Nova KBM shareholding:
Description:
Internet:
E-mail:
Established:
Management:
Employees:
Company registered office:
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KBM Leasing d.o.o.

Gorica Leasing d.o.o.
Nova KBM shareholding:
Description:
Internet:
E-mail:
Established:
Management:
Employees:
Company registered office:

100 percent
limited liability lease finance company
http://www.gorica-leasing.si/
info@gorica-leasing.si
1998
Marko Černe, Director
16
Cesta 25. junija 1j, 5000 Nova Gorica

Activities:
• finance lease of movable property (passenger and commercial vehicles, transport
• equipment and machinery),
• finance lease and conventional (finite-term) leasing of computer, telecommunication and
medical equipment,
• provision of real estate leasing,
• leasing of leisure equipment.
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Moja naložba d.d.
Full name:
Nova KBM shareholding:
Description:
Internet:
E-mail:
Established:
Management:
Employees:
Company registered office:

Moja naložba - Pokojninska družba d.d.
45 percent
a joint-stock pension fund management company
http://www.moja-nalozba.si
info@moja-nalozba.si
2000
Lojze Grobelnik, President of the Management Board
12
Ulica Vita Kraigherja 5, 2000 Maribor

Activities:
• collection of optional pension insurance premiums and maintenance of policy-holders’
personal accounts,
• pension fund asset management,
• pension rent payments.
• management of closed-end and open-end mutual pension funds.

Zavarovalnica Maribor d.d.
Nova KBM shareholding:
Description:
Internet:
E-mail:
Established:
Management:
Employees:
Company registered office:

49.96 percent
a joint-stock insurance company
http://www.zav-mb.si/
info@zav-mb.si/
1991
Drago Cotar, President of the Management Board
844
Cankarjeva 3, 2507 Maribor

Full name:
Nova KBM shareholding:
Description:
Internet:
E-mail:
Established:
Company registered office:

M-Pay, družba za mobilno plačevanje, storitve in
trgovino, d.o.o
50.00 percent
a limited liability company providing payments by mobile
phone, trade and other services
http://www.moneta.si
Dkorosec@nkbm.si
2004
Ulica Vita Kraigherja 4, 2000 Maribor

Activity:
- support activities in connection with financial brokerage.
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M-Pay

M-Pay d.o.o
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Activity:
• provision of life and property insurance.

Nova KBM d.d.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
in millions of SIT

Results for the year
Profit before taxation
Profit after taxation
At the year end
Shareholders’ funds
Total assets
Loans and advances to customers
Due to customers

2005
11,017
8,319

2004
5,801
2,705

2005
59,013
717,514
386,646
468,261

2004
53,247
604,036
331,497
434,789

2003
6,132
3,485
2003
49,702
542,796
275,309
409,130
in %

Ratios
ROAE (based on profit after tax)
ROAA (based on profit after tax)
costs/average assets
Capital adequacy (BIS methodology)

2005
14.82
1.26
2.71
13.16

2004
5.21
0.47
3.19
13.97

2003
7.28
0.66
3.47
12.15

Other
Number of shareholders
Number of employees
Number of business units

2005
3
1,546
87

2004
3
1,566
90

2003
3
1,554
101

2005
239.5756
202.4297

Short - term
F-2
P-1
A2
2004
239.7430
176.2427

2003
236.6903
189.3674
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Exchange rates (as at 31st December)
1 EUR = SIT
1 US$ = SIT

Long - term
AA2
BBB
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Ratings
FITCH Ratings
Moody’s Investors Service
Capital Intelligence

IMPORTANT EVENTS IN 2005
Nova KBM D.D.
January:
• Presentation to the wider public of the »Kredit na mestu» (Loan at a single-stop) service, i.e. consumer
lending through agents.
February:
• The Supervisory Board of Nova KBM d.d. adopts a resolution to relieve Drago Pišek of the post of Member
of the Management Board of Nova KBM d.d.. He is nominated by the Supervisory Board of PBS d.d. as the
President of the Management Board of PBS d.d..
• Expansion of the loan assortment with residential loans linked to the Swiss Franc, and supplementation of
the offer of the so-called »Kredit takoj« (Prompt Loan).
• Introduction of the »Plus kartica«, a new bank card for pupils and students.
March:
• The General Meeting of Nova KBM d.d. appoints new members of the Supervisory Board: Bogomir Špiletič,
mag. Matjaž Koželj, dr. Anton Jurgetz, Stanislav Lesjak, dr. Tanja Markovič Hribernik, Marija Ribič, Janez
Erjavec, Anton Guzej, mag. Daniel Blejc.
• Nova KBM d.d. obtains a licence by the Bank of Slovenia for marketing investment coupons, whereby the
Bank was permitted to market KBM Infond d.o.o. mutual funds at its counters.
• Commencement of marketing KBM Infond's mutual fund investment coupons in 43 branches.
• Nova KBM d.d. issues first Activa MasterCard smart payment and credit card.
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April:
• The Supervisory Board of Nova KBM d.d. adopts resignation of Črtomir Mesarič from the post of President
of the Management Board of Nova KBM d.d..
May:
• The Supervisory Board appoints Matjaž Kovačič, previous Member of the Management Board, as the new
President of the Management Board; Manja Skernišak, previous General Manager of Corporate Banking, is
nominated as the new Member of the Management Board.
• Commencement of a special service package for farmers.
• Successful conclusion of marketing the »Moneta« payments by phone product.
June:
• Nova KBM d.d. is the major general sponsor of the Lent Festival.
• Joining “Bankredit” represents a consolidation of co-operation with credit agents in the scope of »Loan at a
single-stop« service.
July:
• Based on the proposal of the Management Board and the opinion of the Supervisory Board, the General
Meeting of Nova KBM d.d. adopts a resolution on the appropriation of the accumulated profit, and awards
discharge notes to the Management and Supervisory Boards for the 2004 financial year.

• Nova KBM d.d. concludes a syndicated loan agreement in the amount of 240 million euros with a consortium
of foreign banks.
• Issue of the Maestro smart payment card to the holders of the student bank account.
• Inclusion of Nova KBM d.d. into TARGET – the pan-European interbank payment system.
• Regular and extended screening of the quality management system according to the ISO 9001:2000
standard.

September:
• Overhaul of the loan offer for students.
• Issue of the Maestro smart payment card to other clients.
• Provision of attractive long-term investment loans to medium-sized and small companies as well as sole
proprietors.
October:
• Inclusion of companies into the so-called Collection Centre (for transactions with new payment
instruments).
November:
• Upon his own resignation, Bogomir Špiletič, Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Nova KBM d.d., is
discharged from his post by the General Meeting. Andrej Svetina is nominated as the new member of the
Supervisory Board.
• The Bank is issued a licence by the Bank of Slovenia allowing it to perform securities services, and to
acquire MBH d.o.o..
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December:
• The members of the Supervisory Board of Nova KBM d.d. appoint Andrej Svetina as the new Chairman of
the Supervisory Board of Nova KBM d.d..
• Nova KBM d.d. successfully completes the transfer of its computer technology to the new, modern computer
centre in Tezno, Maribor.
• On 1 December 2005 Nova KBM d.d. acquires its subsidiary Mariborska borznoposredniška hiša d.o.o., in
which the Bank held a 100 per cent interest.

Report of the
Management
Board

During the year, the Bank’s broad branch network helped it gain new clients, especially in the areas
where it had been less present before, a fact that was reflected in an increased volume of operations. In
2005 loans and advances to customers strengthened by 55,149 million tolars or by 17 per cent.
In the same period, “due to customers” grew by 33,472 million tolars – a rise of 8 per cent - and
amounted to 468,261 million tolars at the end of December 2005, while “due to citizens” amounted to
344,237 million tolars.
A significant amount of additional resources was obtained by the Bank through a syndicated loan raised
abroad and through other loans in the total amount of 300 million euros.
Nova KBM continued with the implementation of the strict criteria in the assessment of business risks,
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Matjaž Kovačič
President

Over the course of 2005, the Bank
reached its targets defined it the
Bank’s financial and business
strategy, in some business areas
even exceeding the expectations.
At the end of 2005, the Bank’s
balance sheet total stood at
717,514 million tolars, a growth of
113,478 million tolars – or 19 per
cent – over the year.
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Initially, it must be mentioned
that Mr Črtomir Mesarič resigned
from his post as President and
CEO of Nova KBM d.d. in April
2005. Consequently, the Bank’s
Supervisory Board appointed
a new management board at
the end of April composed of
Mr Matjaž Kovačič as President
of the Management Board, and
Ms Manja Sker niša k as its
Member. The new Management
Board’s term of office commenced
on 21 May 2005. It should also be
emphasised that the changes in the
Bank’s Management Board had no
effect on ensuring the continuity
of the Bank’s operations, on
carrying out its business strategy,
and on the implementation of
ongoing projects and programs in
the Bank.

and it earmarked as much as 4,127
million tolars for impairment
losses in 2005.
The Management Board has
put much effort into reducing
operating costs. During 2005
the portion of operating costs in
average assets went down from
3.19 to 2.71 per cent. Diverse
ongoing projects in the Bank are
expected to result in further cost
reduction and streamlining of
operations.
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T he year 2005 saw f u r ther
significant reductions in interest
r ates on loa n s to cit i zen s,
a consequence of t he st if f
competition and the fight to keep
and gain every single client.
Given the conditions and events
in the environment that influenced
the Bank’s operations, and the
continuing severe competition in the
banking market, the Management
Board believes it can be satisfied
with the business results. The profit
before tax for 2005 amounted to
11,017 million tolars, and the return
on equity before tax improved to
14.82 per cent.

Manja Skernišak
Member

During 2005 the Management Board continued with the implementation of a great number of projects
in the Bank. Thus, it proceeded with the implementation of the NOBIS development programme,
and with the transfer of banking operations from the existing information systems to the NOBIS
information system. All the data of the Nova Gorica Area were transferred to the new information
system.
In addition to this, 2005 also saw the completion of the new computer centre in an external
location. The Bank maintained its activities in respect of the inclusion of PBS d.d. into the
Nova KBM Banking Group, it continued joint marketing of Nova KBM and Zavarovalnica Maribor
services with some concrete solutions in individual business areas already taking hold, as well as the
Moneta mobile payments project.

Lots of energy was invested in enhancing the efficiency and security of operations, especially in
respect of risk management, and in the two major projects for 2006 – the adoption of the euro and the
introduction of International Financial Reporting Standards in the Bank.
The adopted business strategy for 2006 contains several tasks of great significance for the Bank. It
will pursue to carry out the key projects of the Bank and the Financial Group in order to adjust to the
competitive conditions on the domestic market and in the European Union, and to ensure successful
operations and development in the future. The Bank will continue to perform all activities enabling
synergy effects from the merger with PBS, as well as from the Financial Group companies.
To ensure competitiveness in the ever stiffer business conditions, the Bank will implement the risk
management programme, and pursue its procedures for streamlining operations. In addition to the
implementation and completion of the two major projects for 2006 – the adoption of the euro and
the International Financial Reporting Standards, to which compatible projects will have to be partly
adjusted – the Bank will continue to carry out the NOBIS programme in the scope of which it will
transfer individual transactions and the operations of the branches from the current system to the
NOBIS information system, and develop certain new products.
The Bank will go on with activities to augment the volume of operations in commercial business
segments and to acquire new clients by performing ongoing projects of strategic importance for the
Bank and the Financial Group’s members, as well as projects introducing new modern banking services
thus following development trends in European banking.
Maribor, April 2006
The Management Board
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Matjaž Kovačič
President

30 /

Manja Skernišak
Member

Supervisory
Board Report

Introduction
At its 11th meeting held on 18 March 2005, the General
Meeting of Nova KBM d.d. discharged the previous
Bank’s Supervisory Board and appointed a new one
composed of the following members: Bogomir Špiletič,
mag. Daniel Blejc, Janez Erjavec, Anton Guzej, dr.
Anton Jurgetz, Matjaž Koželj, Stanislav Lesjak, dr.
Tanja Markovič Hribernik and Marija Ribič. The
newly elected Supervisory Board was constituted at
its first meeting, and elected Mr. Bogomir Špiletič as
Chairman and mag. Daniel Blejc as Vice-Chairman of
the Board.

In 2005 the Supervisory Board undertook its duties in accordance with its primary function - supervising
the Bank’s and the Group’s operations - and its commitment to act with reasonable care and diligence,
within the scope of its authorities as provided by the Banking Act, Companies Act, as well as other
regulations and by-laws of Nova KBM.
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During 2005 there were significant changes in the
Bank’s Management Board. Based on the letter of
resignation handed in by the previous President of
Andrej Svetina
the Management Board, Mr. Črtomir Mesarič, the
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Supervisory Board appointed at its 3rd meeting held on
5 May 2005, Mr. Matjaž Kovačič as the new President
and Ms. Manja Skernišak as the new Member of the Management Board. They commenced performing
their duties on 21 May 2005 after obtaining the licence by the Bank of Slovenia.
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On 28 October 2005, Mr. Bogomir Špiletič handed in
his resignation from the office of Chairman and member
of Nova KBM Supervisory Board. At the 13th meeting
of the General Meeting held on 25 November 2005,
Mr. Bogomir Špiletič stepped down from his office of
Supervisory Board member, and Mr. Andrej Svetina
was appointed as the new Supervisory Board member
in his stead. At the 9th meeting of the Supervisory
Board held on 20 December 2005, the members elected
Mr. Andrej Svetina as the new Chairman, and agreed
that the function of Vice-Chairman should continue to
be carried out by mag. Daniel Blejc.
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Method and scope of supervision
The Supervisory Board of Nova KBM d.d. held eleven regular and five correspondence meetings during
2005. Two regular and two correspondence meetings were held during the previous composition of the
Board. At its meetings, the Supervisory Board focused its attention on the following areas:
• Following its assumption of office, the new Supervisory Board was acquainted with the business
policy and the financial plan of the Bank for 2005, as well as with future strategy of Nova KBM
Group companies.
• As a result of the new operating rules for the Supervisory and Management Board and the adjustment
to the established laws, the Rules of Procedure for the work of the Supervisory Board and the Rules
of Procedure for the work of the Management Board were amended.
• The Supervisory Board paid particular attention to monitoring and supervising the Bank’s and the
Group’s current operations. The implementation of the business policy and the financial plan of the
Bank in 2005 was assessed on the basis of regular quarterly reports submitted by the Management
Board of Nova KBM d.d., which were supplemented by analyses of competitive Slovene and comparable
foreign banks.
• Typical of the Slovene banking system in 2005 was a high growth in loans granted to the non-banking
sector. In order for the Bank and the Group to be able to follow such trends, the Supervisory Board
gave its approval for raising a syndicated loan abroad.
• The Supervisory Board also gave its approval to the acquisition of the brokerage company MBH d.o.o.,
to the sale of Fininvest d.o.o., as well as to increasing the Bank’s exposure towards PBS.
• In order to better monitor risk management, the Supervisory Board regularly examined the quarterly
reports of the Bank’s internal audit department and adopted a work plan for the internal audit
department for 2005. The Supervisory Board also deliberated directives issued by the Bank of
Slovenia as well as measures taken by the Bank to remedy irregularities.
• Congruent to the provisions of the Companies Act, the Supervisory Board considered and approved
the Nova KBM Annual Report and the Consolidated Annual Report of the Nova KBM Banking Group
for 2004, concurring with the positive opinion expressed by external auditors KPMG, presented at the
12th General Meeting, along with other relevant proposals.
• In the course of correspondence meetings, the Supervisory Board decided, in compliance with the
Banking Act, upon the endorsement of a number of transactions in which the normal maximum credit
exposure of the Bank towards individual clients was exceeded, and also of transactions with clients
having a special relationship with the Bank.
• At its last meeting, the Supervisory Board discussed the Bank’s business policy and its financial plan
for 2006, which was subsequently expanded to the period 2006-2008 and supplemented by the plans
of subsidiary companies.
In compliance with Article 282 of the Companies Act and within the scope of its responsibilities, the
Supervisory Board performed ongoing and thorough control of the operations of Nova KBM d.d. and
of the internal audit department during the entire year 2005.
The Supervisory Board also established that Nova KBM d.d. had no problems regarding liquidity or
solvency during 2005, as a result of which it could be prohibited from performing banking operations
and other financial services. Furthermore, the Bank also achieved the required capital adequacy, and it
maintained large exposures and exposures of the Bank towards persons pursuant to the Banking Act in
line with the prescribed levels.

Checking the Annual Report of Nova KBM and of the Nova KBM Group for 2005
The Management Board submitted to the Supervisory Board within the statutory time-limit, i.e., by
5 May 2006, the audited Annual Report of the Bank and of the Nova KBM Banking Group, along with
the auditor’s report on audited financial statements of the Bank and consolidated financial statements
for 2005. Previously, the Management Board had submitted the annual report of the Bank’s internal
audit department for 2005.
At its 15th meeting, the Supervisory Board deliberated in the presence of the external auditor the audited
Annual Report of Nova KBM and Nova KBM Group for 2005.
According to the external auditor, KPMG, the financial statements of the Bank and the consolidated
financial statements of the Group along with the notes present a true and fair account of the financial
situation of the Bank and the Group as of 31 December 2005, of the profit and movements in equity in
the year then ended, and are in line with the Slovenian Accounting Standards issued by the Slovenian
Auditing Institute. It is the opinion of the external auditor that the business report is in line with the
audited financial statements as well.
The positive opinion of the external auditor vindicates the opinion of Nova KBM’s Supervisory Board
that in 2005 the Bank operated in accordance with regulations, and that the Management Board has
performed its work correctly. In spite of the stiff competition and falling interest rates, the Bank and the
Group managed to achieve satisfactory profitability and maintain a high degree of security.
The Supervisory Board has no essential objections to the report issued by the external auditor,
KPMG.

Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Nova KBM d.d.
Andrej Svetina
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Based on the above facts and in compliance with Article 282 of the Companies Act, the Supervisory
Board endorsed the Bank’s and the Group’s Annual Report for 2005 along with the external auditor’s
reports relating to the financial statements of the Bank and to the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.
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In line with its powers under the Companies Act and the Bank’s Statute, the Supervisory Board endorsed
the proposal of the Management Board to distribute a portion of the net profit generated in 2005 in the
amount of 3,758 million tolars to statutory and other reserves so as to ensure sufficient capital adequacy
and a further growth in operations in the years to come. The remaining portion of the net profit, i.e.
the accumulated profit totalling 1,195 million tolars, shall remain undistributed, a proposal that will be
made by the Supervisory Board to the Annual General Meeting.

ECONOMIC AND BANKING
ENVIRONMENT
Favourable data about the growth in industrial production,
especially in Germany, France and Italy, show that the economic
activity in the euro zone is improving. On the other hand, there
was a slight economic standstill in the USA in the last quarter
of 2005, as the GDP increased by a mere 0.3 per cent compared
with the third quarter. In 2005 the economic growth stood at
1.4 per cent in the euro zone and at 3.5 per cent in the USA.
The inflation in the euro zone, influenced by the energy price
movements, amounted to 2.2 per cent, while the basic inflation
remained relatively low. The average inflation in the USA was
3.4 per cent.
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Slovenia’s economic trends remained relatively favourable in
2005. Industrial production rose by 3.1 per cent over 2004. The
fastest growth was accomplished in motor car manufacturing,
metal production, timber and chemical industries, while on the
other hand, the biggest decline was recorded in the food and
textile industries. Activities in the construction industry recorded
an average growth of 3.0 per cent, and retail sales also registered
a rather rapid upward trend. Based on the above data, the growth
in the national product is expected to increase by 4 per cent. In
2005, household consumption and government spending were
relatively strong, while the contribution of the external trade
declined in comparison with the previous year.
Inflation reached the European level at the year-end, as the annual
inflation stood at 2.3 per cent, while the average annual inflation
was 2.5 per cent. Nonetheless, price movements in some groups were
still quite high. Over-average increases were recorded in education
(7.5 per cent), housing (7.1 per cent), alcoholic beverages and
tobacco (4.4 per cent), hotel and restaurant industry (3.9 per
cent), furniture and fixtures (3.4 per cent), recreation, culture and
other goods and services (2.5 per cent). A deflation was recorded
in three groups: clothing and footwear (-2.2 per cent), health
(-1.3 per cent) and communication (-0.5 per cent). The biggest
contribution to the total price increase in 2005 was attributable
to prices in groups housing (0.9 per cent), transport as well as
recreation and culture (0.3 per cent), while clothing and footwear
reduced it by 0.2 per cent. The price of services grew faster that
the price of goods, however, the gap was smaller than in 2004.
The average price of services was up by 3 per cent, while the price
of goods increased by 2 per cent.

In November and December 2005, the inflation rate measured with the Harmonised Index of Consumer
Prices calculated as a 12-month average, amounted to 2.5 per cent – identical to the reference value of
the price stability criterion. The Governing Board of the Bank of Slovenia expects that Slovenia will
continue to meet the criterion of price stability for the introduction of the euro.
The average monthly gross salary in 2005 stood at 277,279.00 tolars representing a nominal rise of
4.8 per cent, and an increase of 2.2 per cent in real terms over the previous year. The average monthly
net salary in the period from January to December 2005 was 176,311.00 tolars also indicative of a yearon nominal growth of 6.1 per cent.
The service sector balance outpaced that of the goods sector. The export of services amounted to
3.2 billion euros, a 15.6 per cent rise, while the import amounted to EUR 2.3 billion, a 10.8 per cent
year-on-year rise. The surplus of 892 million euros represents a 4.3-fold increase over 2004.
The biggest contribution to the services surplus was attributable to tourism. In 2005 Slovenia recorded
2.38 million tourist visits, 2 per cent more than in 2004. There were 1.55 million foreign and 837,000
Slovenian tourists. Foreign tourists had 4.4 million overnight stops, and Slovenes about 3.17 million.
As the year before, the number of Slovenian tourists declined, and the number of foreign tourists rose.
Foreign tourists accounted for 65 per cent, and they utilized 58 per cent of all overnight stays. In 2005,
1.45 billion euros of foreign exchange inflows were generated by tourism. The revenues from tourism
increased in tourism enterprises as well as in casinos. Slovenes spent 707.5 million euros on travels
abroad, a 6 per cent growth over 2004.
In 2005 budget revenues grew by 6.5 per cent on the previous year and amounted to 2,651 billion
tolars. Their share in the estimated GDP reached 39.9 per cent, 0.1 more than in 2004. The revenues
from the value added tax went up by 12.7 per cent, while the revenues from excise tax rose by 5.8 per
cent. The amendments made to the tax legislation resulted in a slower growth in revenues from taxes
and contributions, whereas the corporate tax was up by 14.5 per cent.

Overall savings of private citizens maintained by banks increased in 2005 by 3.4 per cent to
2,475 billion tolars, while the growth in 2004 was 7.5 per cent. Savings in tolars were up 4.4 per cent to
1,519 billion tolars (6.6 per cent in 2004), whereas foreign currency savings increased by 2.1 per cent
to 956 billion tolars (8.7 per cent in 2004). The inflows in mutual funds went up by 55.1 per cent
(110.0 per cent growth in 2004). The volume of assets generated by domestic mutual funds amounted
to 330 billion tolars at year-end, thus achieving 13.3 per cent of retail savings in banks, a 4.4 per cent
year-on-year increase.
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In 2005 a net financial flow of 1.5 billion euros was recorded, approximately 5 per cent of the estimated
GDP. The main reason for the high financial flow was due to the banks’ foreign borrowings in order to
provide finance to domestic companies. This resulted in a rise of Slovenia’s gross foreign debt. At the
end of December foreign currency reserves totalled 8,832 million euros, while the gross foreign debt
amounted to 19,511 million euros.
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Current deficit in 2005 reached 254 million euros, only 47 per cent of the deficit in 2004. As a result
of an increase in the capital account and increased liabilities in the fiscal account, liabilities went up
by 664 million euros.

Investments of banks increased by 21.6 per cent to 3,696 billion
tolars, of which tolar investments rose by 1.6 per cent to 2,101
billion tolars, and foreign currency investments by 64.4 per cent to
1,595 billion tolars. The volume of net borrowings of private citizens
reached 200.1 billion tolars, and surpassed in real terms the volume
achieved in 1999 after the introduction of the VAT. Owing to favourable
conditions a significant growth was recorded in foreign currency
loans to companies and other financial institutions. Net flows of
foreign currency loans granted to companies and other financial
institutions stood at 537 billion tolars, an 83 per cent increase in real
terms compared with 2004, while the volume of tolar loans fell by
6 per cent.
The year 2005 saw a surplus supply in foreign currency at an annual
average of 1,229 million euros. This was mainly due to the financial
flows from abroad and improved results in current transactions. As
of June 2004, on Slovenia’s entry into the ERM2 mechanism, the
euro exchange rate has remained relatively stable at 0.05 per cent
above the central exchange rate.
At the start of 2006, the Governing Board of the Bank of Slovenia
commenced reducing some of the interest rates.
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The interest rate on 60-day treasury bills in tolars was reduced to
3.75 per cent in a first step, and then to 3.50 per cent, the interest rate
on temporary purchase of foreign currency to 1.25 per cent and then
to 0.75 per cent, and the interest rate on loans against securities to
4.75 per cent and then to 4.50 per cent. This marked the beginning
of the structural adjustment necessary before the entry into the euro
zone.

FINANCIAL RESULT
In 2005, Nova KBM posted a pre-tax profit of 11,017 million tolars,
while net profit for the financial year stood at 8,319 million tolars.
The Bank’s operating income amounted to 33,650 million tolars;
53.2 percent of this total was used to cover general administrative
expenses, depreciation and amortization, 12.3 percent for impairment
losses, 1.8 percent for other expenses, while the remaining 32.7 percent
represent income before tax. Compared with the same period last
year, gross income went up by 18.9 percent in nominal terms.
The largest segment of profits was generated by net interest income,
accounting for 52.7 percent of the Bank’s operating income; the
second largest portion – 22.3 percent of total - derived from net fees
and commissions. Contributing 4.1 percent of the entire operating
income - some 1,386 million tolars - was revenue deriving from
shares in associated companies; 13.0 percent of total operating income
was yielded from trading operations. Within the total structure of
operating expenses, general administrative expenses represented
by far the largest portion, and accounted for 88.0 percent of total;
as regards other operating expenses, other expenses accounted for
3.2 percent, depreciation and amortization 8.8 percent, of the total.
In 2005, net income from interest and the like totalled 17,722 million
tolars. In nominal terms, interest income grew by 7.0 percent - or
1,154 million tolars - on the previous year.

Financial brokerage margin, calculated as the sum of interest and non-interest income in relation to
average balance sheet total stood at 5.09 percent, 0.16 percentage points increase on 2004.
In 2005 general administrative expenses including depreciation amounted to 17,915 million tolars, a decrease
of 350 million tolars or 1.9 percent on the previous year.
In 2005, impairment losses amounted to 4,127 million tolars, 138 million tolars - or 3.5 percent - above the
2004 figure.
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Net income from fees and commissions amounted to 7,515 million
tolars in 2005, a figure which covered 41.9 percent of the Bank’s
17,915-million tolar outlay on general administrative expenses,
depreciation and amortization. Compared with the previous year,
the coverage improved by 4.4 percentage points.
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The average interest rate achieved on liabilities amounted to
2.2 percent in 2005, while the average nominal interest rate received
on investments stood at 5.0 percent.

FINANCIAL POSITION
Nova KBM’s 2005 balance sheet totalled 717,514 million tolars,
representing a 18.8 percent - or 113,478 million-tolar - increase on
the previous year.
Between January and December 2005, the Bank’s liabilities to
customers increased by 7.7 percent, or 33,472 million tolars; demand
deposits increased by 15,374 million tolars while short and long-term
deposits increased by a total of 18,098 million tolars.
Liabilities to other banks in 2005 were reduced by 3,719 million
tolars, which amounts to a 45.1 percent fall. By the end of the year
these liabilities stood at the equivalent of 4,519 million tolars, of
which some 2,407 million tolars was denominated in Slovene tolars.
The balance of debt securities increased in 2005 by 7,620 million
tolars especially on account of the issue of bonds of KBM 8 serie.
Other borrowed funds increased by 66,998 million tolars, and
amounted to 110,907 million tolars by year’s end. “Other borrowed
funds” increased especially as a result of the syndicated loan.
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Nova KBM’s capital increased from 54,192 million tolars in 2004 to
59,013 million tolars in 2005. The increase in capital resulted mainly
from the increase in reserves and increase in equity revaluation
adjustments reflecting the profit of dependent companies.
As regards the structure of Nova KBM’s liabilities and
shareholders equity as of 31st December 2005, the major portion
- accounting for 65.3 percent of total - is accounted for by due to
customers. This portion was reduced by 6.6 percentage points over
the year; moreover, the portion of “due to other banks” went down by
0.8 percentage points and accounted for 0.6 percent of total liabilities
as of the end of 2005. The portion of “issue of debt securities”
increased by 0.3 percentage points to 5.2 percent.
Due from other banks, net went up by 29,619 million tolars, and
stood at 59,642 million tolars at the end of 2005.
Loans and advances to customers net accounted for 53,9 percent
of total assets as of the close of 2005, which is a year-on increase of
55,149 million tolars or 16.6 percent.
Capital Investments in associates and subsidiaries rose by
466 million tolars during 2005, and amounted 12,948 million tolars

at year’s end. The rise in the Bank’s total capital investments is chiefly due to the inclusion of the profits
generated by Nova KBM Group enterprises.
As of 31st December, 2005 loans to non-banking sector customers encompassed 53,9 percent of the Bank’s
assets structure, a decrease by 1.0 percentage points on the previous year. Capital investments also decreased
by 0.3 percentage points and accounted for 1.8 percent of total assets as of the end of 2005; in addition, due
from other banks represented 8.3 percent, and securities 30.1 percent, of Nova KBM’s total assets.

RISK MANAGEMENT
Nova KBM d.d. considers risk management as a continuous process of identification, measurement and
management of all types of risk that appear in the Bank’s operations. The Bank manages all types of risks in
compliance with its long-term strategy and independently from any of its business operations.
The risk management policy reflects the overall approach of the Bank:
• identification of all risks that appear in the Bank’s operations,
• assessment of risk and mutual effects of individual factors, as well as the time period needed for monitoring
an individual risk factor,
• continuous monitoring of the Bank’s exposure to a risk and observance of set limits,
• learning about and adjustment to the changeable business environment which requires new assessment of
risk management methodologies.

The decisions of ALCO and the Credit Committees are adopted by way of voting, and their membership
structure - together with that of the Liquidity Committee - is such that they ensure impartial decision-making
as regards risk management.
Further to this, the Controlling Department carries out its own assessments and measurements of all types of
risk, and thus manages the capital of the Nova KBM Group.
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Risk Management is performed directly by:
• The Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCO) examines the structural balance, capital adequacy, interest
risk, long-term structural liquidity, the tax aspects of operations, currency and market risks, the profitability,
efficiency and effectiveness of profit centres, financial plans, as well as credit and other risk pertinent to new
products, regulatory requirements.
• Credit Committees examine and manage large exposure and credit risks pertaining to business with the
Bank’s legal entity clients.
• The Liquidity Committee is responsible for short-term liquidity management, and it also establishes the
scope of the daily exchange rate policy.
• Risk Management Division monitors daily the currency, market and investment risk in compliance with the
set limits.
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The identification and measurement of risks is conducted by the Controlling Department. By way of this, risk
management is separated from the day-to-day commercial activities all the way up to the Management Board
level.

Total risks that may be assumed by the Bank are defined by the capital adequacy ratio. The sum of capital
requirements may not exceed the capital available to cover potential losses arising from the Bank’s operations.
In line with its business policy, the Bank allocates capital by individual types of transactions performed.
Capital adequacy is defined in the business and financial plan.
The Bank calculates return on risk-adjusted capital (RORAC) by profit centres. Risk-adjusted capital is made
up of specific provisions against specific risks and capital requirements.

Basel II
The adjustments to the requirements of the Basel II Capital Accord continue in line with the set timeframe.
In 2005 the Bank actively participated in the Basel II Committee and in all working groups set up by the
Slovene Banking Association. After having checked the influences of individual approaches, the Bank finally
decided upon one individual approach to the Capital Accord.
For monitoring the credit risk, the Bank chose the standardised approach. The Bank started collecting the necessary
data for the change-over to the basic IRB approach, which will be introduced in line with the available types of
data. The data requirements arising from the IRB approach have resulted in amendments to the data input.
When monitoring market risks, the Bank considers regulatory requirements. In 2006 it plans to introduce a
universal approach for monitoring risk value which should enable the Bank to calculate capital requirements
on the basis of internal models.
Operative risks will be monitored by the Bank in compliance with the standardised approach. In 2005 the
Bank put a lot of effort into training and self-analysis of operative risk by individual organizational units. The
introduction of a systemised and centralised collection of operative risks is scheduled for 2006.

Credit Risk
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Credit risk is defined as the risk that a borrower will fail to meet its financial obligations towards the Bank.
Credit risk management requires of the Bank regular monitoring and analysing of the individual business
partner, measuring and analysing of movements in the portfolio in terms of its composition (activity, sector,
size) and quality.
Country risk is a special form of credit risk or risk of loss in the case of international lending and pertains to
economic, social and political environment of the debtor’s country.
Country risk does not influence the basic classification of borrowers – foreign entities into a specific rating
group. The Bank creates specific provisions for country risks in percentages defined for each single country.
Nova KBM insures itself against credit risk in a number of ways:
• by assessing the degree of risk posed by individual debtors, as well as the allocation of specific provisions
as regards on-balance sheet assets and off-balance sheet commitments;
• through the formation of the requisite capital to ensure there is adequate to cover the credit risk;
• implementation of internal limits as regards exposures to individual segments of the market;
• paying due regard to the exposure limits that have been prescribed for individual debtors and groups of
connected persons.

Creation of Specific Provisions and Impairments
Risk management involves an evaluation of capacity to meet its obligations to the Bank as well as an assessment
as to the quality of an individual borrower’s collateral. Based on this, debtors are classified into groups A to
E according to the assessed degree of risk of loan default. The internal risk-assessment methodology used in
the risk-grade categorization of clients utilizes both objective and subjective criteria. The methodology is in line
with the Resolution on the classification of balance-sheet and off-balance-sheet assets items. The granting of
loans to the clients is subject to rules governing the documents and procedures necessary to establish the risk
involved in a transaction. Each investment must be approved by the relevant credit committee level.
The individual assessment of a borrower is complemented by an analysis of the impact that the particular
debtor has on the total credit portfolio; said assessment is thence used to ensure an appropriate diversification
of the portfolio. To this effect the Bank focuses on the aggregate exposure to individual groups, and thus
the concentration as regards individual spheres of activity, regions and institutional sectors. The Bank’s
Management and the Supervisory Board are regularly informed about the reports on portfolio assessment.
Internal Limits to Exposure and Limits of the Regulatory Authority

The Bank has introduced a methodology for setting credit limits for banks. The Risk Management Department
monitors exposure to each single bank and reports on any overexposures.
The provisions of the Bank of Slovenia regulations governing exposure determine the largest permissible
exposures to a single client or group of connected persons and private individuals in a specific relationship
with the Bank. By following the regulations, the Bank limits the risk of overexposure to individual private
individuals or groups of connected persons.

Coefficients of Liquidity
From 1st July 2002, Nova KBM measured its coefficients of liquidity on a daily basis in conformity with
statutory regulations pertaining to the narrowest liquidity margin which banks must ensure. The coefficient
of liquidity is the ratio of assets to liabilities calculated using the remaining maturity principle. The Bank
calculates the coefficients of liquidity in two time-bands, namely from 0- 30 days (time-band I) and from 0-180
days (time-band II). The coefficients are calculated separately for the foreign exchange and tolar proportions,
and - pursuant to the foreign exchange market co-operation agreement concluded with the Bank of Slovenia
- are then combined into time-band I and time-band II aggregate liquidity coefficients. From the beginning
of July 2003, when calculating the coefficients as regards the proportions of foreign exchange, banks holding
long foreign exchange positions may additionally take into consideration accounts receivable with a maturity of

42 /

Liquidity risk derives from assets and liabilities maturity mismatch. A situation of illiquidity occurs when the
Bank is in a specific period no longer capable of meeting its commitments from its assets. The coefficient of
coverage of liabilities by assets in a certain period falls below 1. The Bank measures liquidity risk by regularly
monitoring:
• liquidity coefficients,
• assets and liabilities maturity match,
• net liquid assets,
• portion of “blue-chip” securities in the Bank’s balance sheet,
• performance of individual groups of assets and liabilities.
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Liquidity Risk

over 180 days which arise from foreign currency loans granted to customers within Slovenia, except for those
loan facilities extended to the state institutions or other banks. This amount must not exceed 120 percent of the
average amount of the 7-day temporary sale of foreign exchange to the Bank of Slovenia in August 2004. The
total prescribed coefficient of liquidity must be at least 1.
Amendments to the Resolution on the minimum liquidity to be ensured by a bank in 2005 are the following:
• Broader selection of securities to meet the provisions of the resolution. Improved liquidity on the capital
market allows the classification of domestic debt securities of appropriate credit rating in time band I and
time band II of the liquidity scale, irrespective of the remaining maturity principle.
• The obligation of banks to invest in Bank of Slovenia treasury bills in foreign exchange was reduced from
35 to 10 per cent of liabilities in foreign exchange with maturities from 0 to 180 days.
• The amendments have abolished obligatory subscription to foreign currency treasury bills for ensuring
liquidity. They have abolished the possibility of taking into account tolar loans of credit rating A with
maturities of over 180 days for meeting liquidity coefficients, and have introduced weighing of demand
deposits of households and corporates in time-band I using the weight of 85 per cent, and the weight of 60 per
cent for time-band II. The resolution shall become effective upon its publication in the Official Gazette, and
shall be applied as of 1 January 2006. Banks are allowed to start using the new regime before that date.
On the last day of the year, the liquidity coefficient for time-band I was 1.160, and for time-band II 1.104.

Net Liquid Assets
Net liquid assets are the difference between those assets that can be immediately or readily (within 2-3 days)
converted into liquid assets, and the equivalent portion of unstable liabilities. The portion of unstable liabilities
is that portion of banking liabilities that fall due or can be otherwise withdrawn in the equal period of time. The
internal limit defines that net liquid assets must be of a positive value with the aim of ensuring the operational
and regulatory liquidity of the Bank. At no time during 2005 did Nova KBM record a negative balance in its
net liquid assets, however, there was a trend of increasing the value of net liquid assets
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Statutory Reserve
In 2005 the Bank fulfilled its statutory reserve requirements. The percentage of statutory reserve fulfilment
ranged from 100.14 per cent to 100.72 per cent, i.e. 100.38 per cent at the annual level.
The Governing Board of the Bank of Slovenia reduced in January 2005 the level of statutory reserves for tolar
liabilities up to 90 days from 4.5 per cent to 2.0 per cent due to an adjustment of instruments to the euro system.
Thus, as of the beginning of the calculation period in the end of February, the level of statutory reserves for all
liabilities with maturities of up to two years amounts to 2.0 per cent. The level of reserves for liabilities with
maturities of over two years remains unchanged. On 29 March 2005, banks and savings banks were required
to invest their excess liquidity arising from reduced statutory reserves in the amount of 37,000 million tolars
into a long-term deposit with the Bank of Slovenia, with the date of maturity 30 March 2007. Thus, the Bank
of Slovenia delayed the liquidity effects to the period after the euro adoption.

Concentration of Depositors
A significant element of liquidity risk management is to ensure sufficient diversification of deposits by source
and maturity. In compliance with a resolution issued by the Bank of Slovenia pertaining to the daily planning
of domestic currency liquidity together with mandatory monitoring as to the concentration of depositors, the
Bank analyses and provides monthly reports to the Bank of Slovenia as to its largest depositors.

Market Risk
Market risk represents the Bank’s exposure to such elements as
movements in interest and exchange rates, as well as fluctuations
in the value of securities. Any change in these elements is directly
reflected in the Bank’s operating result because of its active positions
in individual financial instruments. Market risks considered by Nova
KBM include position risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency
risk. Trading activities that the Bank performs on its own account
or for third parties with the aim to generating a profit due to shifts
in price, are exposed to position risk, derived from the potential of
an adverse movement in an exchange rate, or a fall in the market
price of any securities held. The Bank is exposed to interest rate
risk in case of interest rate change maturity mismatch in assets and
liabilities, while foreign currency risk derives from unreconciled
foreign currency sub-balance.

Position Risk
Position risk is the risk of suffering a loss as a result of a change in the
price of a financial instrument which the Bank holds in its portfolio
for the purpose of trading for its own account.
The methodology and the objectives of trading in financial instruments
are set forth in the Nova KBM’s Treasury Operations Strategy
and Policy. The Bank measures position risk through establishing
liquidation values on a daily basis.

Position risk in foreign exchange trading is monitored by the Bank by
a trading limit methodology for deals conducted in its own account.
The limits for trading on the Bank’s own account are prescribed by
a maximum allowed open position for each individual FX trader, as
well as the maximum allowed loss for each trader on the monthly
and annual level. In 2005 Nova KBM the trading was in line with
the prescribed limits.

44 /

The portfolio of equity securities is limited with the maximum
market value and the VaR method at a daily and monthly level. The
portfolio of debt securities is limited with the highest market value
and the structure of securities. The limits in certain types of deals
can be changed by a resolution adopted by ALCO, but the change in
structure may not influence the annual plan of capital adequacy.
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The maximum volume of tradable items is determined by the annual
financial plan taking into account the internal capital adequacy limit.
The volume of deals by individual type of financial instruments is
defined by a limit methodology which takes into account the Bank’s
business policy.

The Bank offers its clients services of purchase and sale of derived financial instruments, in which case it only
acts as an agent and does not take own positions.

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk of suffering a loss as the result of a change in interest rates or the structure of interest
rates due to maturity mismatch or difference in type of interest rate applicable to both assets and liabilities
(interest paid vs. interest received). The Bank monitors balance sheet items by key currencies in which the
Bank operates, i.e. SIT, EUR, USD and CHF. The monitoring of balance sheet items is further broken down
into items with variable and items with fixed interest rates. The analysis of interest rate risk is included in the
monthly report on liquidity and market risk and is dealt with by the ALCO committee. The interest rate policy
is set with regard to the market situation and to the closing of the interest rate margin by individual currencies
and types of interest rates.
Foreign Exchange Risk
Foreign exchange risk arises from the potential of incurring a loss from an open foreign currency position and
the volatility of exchange rates.
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In compliance with a resolution adopted by ALCO, the Bank maintains a closed foreign currency position for
individual currencies. The common open position for all currencies, including the currency clause position by
individual currencies is also limited by its effect on the Bank’s capital adequacy ratio. The effect of the total
open foreign currency position is limited in compliance with the annual financial plan.
The amounts of the long and short open currency positions are limited for each currency. The open foreign
currency position is monitored daily by the Risk Management Division, which also calculates the daily result
due to unreconciled foreign currency sub-balance. The sole exception is the position in euro, for which the Bank
intentionally maintains a long position. The main reason for this action has been to ensure compliance with
the new regulation regarding minimum liquidity to be maintained by a bank and its effects on the calculation
of the liquidity scale. The maintenance of a long position in euro has been assessed as low risk with regard
to Slovenia’s participation in ERM2 exchange rate mechanism and the planned introduction of the common
European currency in Slovenia. Based on the specific requirements of the Resolution on Capital Adequacy of
Banks and Savings Banks of 2005, the Bank maintained on the reporting date the foreign currency position
and the currency clause position separately by individual currencies so as to reduce the negative effects on the
capital adequacy ratio.

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Equity
in millions of SIT

2005
5,840
53,173
59,013

Share capital
Reserves
Total shareholders’ equity

2004
5,840
47,407
53,247

Nova KBM’s share capital in the total amount of 5,839,496 thousand tolars is comprised of 2,919,748 ordinary
shares each with a par value of 2,000 tolars. The majority shareholders is the Republic of Slovenia, holding
90.4102 percent of stock, 4.7949 percent of stock is held by Kapitalska družba d.d. (Capital Fund of the Republic
of Slovenia) and 4.7949 percent by Slovenska odškodninska družba d.d. (Slovene Restitution Fund).
As of 31st December 2005, the Bank’s equity increased by 5,766 million tolars compared with the previous year
and amounted to 59,013 million tolars.

Capital Adequacy
The Bank monitors the adequacy of its capital using ratios established by the Bank for International Settlements
(BIS). These ratios measure capital adequacy by comparing the Bank’s eligible capital with its balance sheet
assets, off-balance-sheet commitments and market and other risk positions at a weighted amount to reflect their
relative risk.

Tier 1 capital consists of shareholders’ equity less general banking reserve. Tier 2 capital includes the Group’s
subordinated debt and general provisions.
BIS Capital Ratios
Tier 1 capital
Tier 1 + Tier 2 capital

2005
49,359
72,207

Capital

2004
43,790
56,924

2005
10.48
13.16

BIS %

2004
10.75
13.97
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Off-balance-sheet credit related commitments and derivative instruments are taken into account by applying
different categories of credit conversion factors, designed to convert these items into balance sheet equivalents.
The resulting credit equivalent amounts are then weighted for credit risk using the same percentages as for
balance sheet assets.
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Assets are weighted according to broad categories of notional credit risk, being assigned a risk weighting
according to the amount of capital deemed to be necessary to support them. Four categories of risk weights
(0 percent, 20 percent, 50 percent, 100 percent) are applied; for example cash and money market instruments
have a zero risk weighting which means that no capital is required to support the holding of these assets.
Property and equipment carries a 100 percent risk weighting, meaning that it must be supported by capital
equal to 8 percent of the carrying amount. Other asset categories have intermediate weightings.

OVERVIEW OF THE BANK’S OPERATIONS
IN INDIVIDUAL SEGMENTS
Business with Legal Entities
Universal marketing of banking services for legal entities
In 2005 the Bank further diversified the range of its traditional banking products for legal entities (loans,
deposits, guarantees, purchase of accounts receivable) with new products, such as new payment instruments
(direct debits and credits, special deposit slips and money orders), and the range of its services was also
extended by Bankredit (Loan at a single-stop). In the scope of its special offer to small and medium-sized
companies and sole proprietors, the Bank extended investment loans financed through the loan approved by
the Council of Europe Development Bank (CEB).
Moreover, based on the loans granted to foreign purchasers and in co-operation with the Slovene Investment
Company (SID), it supported its clients in penetrating the southern markets. The Bank contracted four loans
with SID, two of which were earmarked for export refinancing. It also backed some of its domestic clients in
their investments through their own or joint venture companies abroad, and it approved loans to non-residents
in Croatia, Serbia and Montenegro, as well as in Austria.

New group of consulting services concerning the acquisition of EU funds
In co-operation with the Entrepreneurial Research Institute, the Bank introduced in 2005 a new group
of consulting services for legal entities and sole proprietors concerning the acquisition of EU funds. In
addition, the Bank provided its clients with an overview of EU programmes’ structure, it offered guidance for
participation in tenders and for project management, and it also provided an overview of EU public tenders by
different criteria.
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Increase in foreign currency loans
Adjustments to demand and supply and to the offer provided by market competitors led to an increase in foreign
currency loans, a fact that reflects the nearing adoption of the euro and at the same time cheaper financial
resources.
Increase in deposits from legal entities
Despite the strong competition and low deposit interest rates, the Bank succeeded in increasing the volume of
deposits from legal entities
Increase in the volume of factoring business for small and medium-sized companies
As to the operations in non-traditional bank products, the Bank recorded an increase in business performed
for small and medium-sized companies, while the percentage of big company clients declined. The Bank thus
approached the world statistics regarding factoring business which is predominantly (up to 70 per cent) done
with small and medium-sized companies. Factoring namely is an activity that is more appropriate for small and
medium-sized companies. The growth recorded in factoring business with small and medium-sized companies
in 2005 amounted to 30 per cent, but this in turn resulted in a growth of accounts receivable the Bank has to
manage, which at the same time reduces the value of each account receivable. As to the domicile of the debtor,
export factoring accounted for 50 per cent, and the same percentage was attributable to domestic factoring.
Export factoring includes to a large extent buyers / debtors from EU countries. In the structure of factoring,
export factoring is on a slight increase.

Household Customers (Private Citizens and Sole Proprietors)
Universal marketing of the Bank’s and the Group’s services
In 2005 the Bank continued intensive marketing of its product Loan at a single-stop, which was transformed
into Bankredit as an all-Slovene product in the latter half of the year. The product Loan at a single-stop was
offered via the Internet, thus enabling lending activities regardless of the Bank’s business network and business
hours.
The Bank also embarked on marketing its Group’s services. KBM Infond’s mutual funds (Hrast, Delniški,
Uravnoteženi and €uropa) were further complemented by Energy and Bric mutual funds. In addition, the Bank
was active in marketing Moneta payments by phone service. With Zavarovalnica Maribor d.d., it concluded
a contract for insuring loans to small businesses and overdraft facilities on transaction accounts of sole
proprietors.

Co-operation with the Environmental Fund of the Republic of Slovenia
In 2005 the Bank participated in the 12th public tender published by the Environmental Fund of the Republic
of Slovenia for the award of environmental loans to citizens. It was chosen as the most favourable loan provider
for the next three years.

Payment Services

Growth in the number of active transaction accounts of the bank customers
As at 31 December 2005, Nova KBM maintained 320,492 active transaction accounts of the bank clients, a
0.9 rise on the previous year. Of all active transaction accounts, registered in the Central register of transaction
accounts with the Bank of Slovenia, the Bank’s portion accounts for 14.3 per cent. The number of active
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Onset of regular data exchange through the Collection Centre
As to the introduction of new payment instruments (special deposit slip, special money order, direct debit and
direct credit as well as standing order), licensing activities for the company Bankart d.o.o. to carry out services
of the Collection Centre were concluded during 2005. Thus, the Bank has arranged for a system to ensure
regular data exchange and processing of new payment instruments through the Collection Centre. At the end
of 2005 first clients using direct credits and direct debits were included in the system; moreover, the Bank
introduced regular data exchange through the Collection centre in a production environment with all types of
new payment instruments.
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Payment services in tolars
Adjustments to be made before the adoption of the euro
Preparations for the adoption of the euro require changes in the field of domestic payment services.
In collaboration with the Slovenian Banking Association, the Bank staff worked on the preparation of
euro-adjusted payment forms (special deposit slip, special money order and universal payment order BN02),
as well as on the standard for electronic data exchange between the Bank and the client. During 2005 the Bank
was successfully integrated into the TARGET pan-European payment system, which shall, upon the adoption
of the euro and abolishment of the domestic payment system, process »domestic« great-value payment orders.
This integration is in compliance with the decision of the Bank of Slovenia for all Slovene banks as well as the
Bank of Slovenia to be included in the TARGET payment system (pan-European real time gross settlement
system) by remote direct participation in the RTGS+ system of the German Central Bank, which is a part of
the current TARGET system.

business transaction accounts (transaction accounts of corporate
clients and sole proprietors) stood at 21,759 (13.8 per cent share),
while the number of transaction accounts of private citizens stood at
298,733 (14.4 per cent share).

Increase in the percentage of tolar payment transactions
of corporate clients performed via electronic banking
The volume of domestic payment services of the Bank and its clients
increased by 3 per cent during 2005. It is very encouraging that the
number of transactions performed via electronic banking improved
by 10 percent, while the number of users of electronic banking soared
by as much as 44 percent. In the case of corporate clients, the share
of payment transactions performed via electronic banking increased
from 85 percent in 2004 to 87 percent in 2005.
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International Payments
Adjustments to be made before the adoption of the euro
In July 2005 the Bank joined the TARGET payment system which
enables it to process payment orders with the same value date. This was
a novelty for the clients and an opportunity for them – against payment
of commission – to effect payments with the same value date.
In addition to that, the Bank started using a slightly changed price
list for executing cross-border payments and payments abroad. The
prices have been broken down in three classes depending on the
amount – the first class including payments of up to 12,500.00 euros.
This was a first effort to approach price lists used by foreign banks
where the amounts are also broken down into amounts of up to
12,500.00 euros and over 12,500.00 euros. This limiting amount
arises from the Regulation of the European Parliament and the
Council No. 2560/2001, in which until 1 January 2006 the amount
of 12,500.00 euros was considered a small amount and at the same
time represented one of the significant elements of the »EU standard
order«. Besides the amount, the EU standard includes the following
obligatory elements: IBAN of the beneficiary and the BIC code of the
bank. During 2005 the Bank actively informed its clients about the
use of the data so as for the orders in these amounts to be processed
through the STEP 2 payment system.
As of 1 January 2006, the amount is higher, i.e. 50,000 euros.

Increase in the volume of international payments
In 2005 the volume of international payments executed for legal
entities and private citizens increased by 14.9 per cent on the
previous year, with inflows exceeding the outflows. The Bank
performed foreign currency operations with all kinds of payment

instruments, and with the “bank transfer” accounting for over
90 percent. An increase in payment orders is also characteristic
for 2005; Nova KBM registered an 8 percent rise in outgoing
payment orders, while the number of incoming payment orders
increased by 9 percent compared with the previous year. The Bank
posted an increase in the number of foreign exchange transaction
accounts of residents - corporate client and sole proprietors - by
7.6 percent, while the number of foreign exchange transaction
accounts of non-resident corporate clients fell by 14 per cent
compared with 2004. The fall in the number of non-resident
accounts is a consequence of the rigorous legislation requesting
of the holders of these accounts and of the banks to go through an
identification process once a year. If the process is not carried out,
the Bank may close the account. Also the volume of transactions
executed through non-resident accounts fell by a quarter on the
previous year.

Increase in the percentage of foreign currency
payment transactions of corporate clients performed
via electronic banking
The Bank continued to encourage the use of the electronic banking
service Poslovni Bank@net, and it succeeded in increasing
the number of its users, as well as the number and value of
transactions performed through the system. In 2005, 63.5 per cent
of all payment orders were transferred through Poslovni Bank@net
(2004: 43.7 per cent), an increase of 67.9 per cent ( 2004: 49.2 per cent),
which represents a growth in the number as well as in the value of
payment orders.

Issue of smart cards
In the area of card operations, the Bank recorded an increase in
the issue of debit and credit cards. In 2005 it started issuing
ČIP-smart cards from the Activa/Maestro group for pupils, students
and other citizens, and ČIP–smart cards with delayed payments from
the Activa/MasterCard group. At the end of 2005 the number of debit
cards issued by the Bank totalled 286,015, a 1.9 per cent increase,
while the number of cards with delayed payment totalled 68,512, a
0.6 increase over the previous year.
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Increase in the number of ATMs, and upgrading
ATMs to the EMV standard
In 2005 the Bank installed 8 new ATMs, an increase of 3.68 per cent
over the end of 2004. As of 31 December 2005, the Bank operated
225 ATMs, 103 of which were upgraded.
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The Use of Modern Distribution Channels

Within the structure of all cards in 2005, Activa cards accounted for
31.7 per cent, AC/MS cards for 62.3 per cent, and VISA cards for
6 per cent.

VISA and VISA Elektron payment cards at POS
terminals
In 2005 the Bank concluded contracts with retail outlets for payments
by VISA and VISA Elektron payment cards, thus completing its offer
for payments at POS terminals with all types of payment cards. At
its bank counters, the Bank offered cash withdrawals with Visa and
Maestro cards in addition to Mastercard.
Increase in the number of transactions through POS
terminals
3.656 static and mobile POS terminals were in operation at the end
of 2005, a 7.97 per cent year-on-year growth. During 2005 the Bank
recorded an increase in the number of transactions at POS terminals
by 1.6 per cent, while the number of manual transactions went down,
and amounted to 1.1 per cent of all card transactions performed at the
Bank’s points of sale.
An increasing number of clients uses Bank@Net
During 2005 the total number of users of Bank@Net increased within
the limits of the Bank’s targets. The number of Bank@Net users
went up by 47.8 per cent - the number of domestic transactions by
23.5 per cent, and the number of foreign transactions by 136.5 per cent.
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Increase in foreign transactions through Poslovni Bank@Net

The Bank also succeeded in increasing the number of electronic
banking users (Poslovni Bank@Net), by 16.5 per cent during 2005.
The number of domestic transactions went up by 4.8 per cent, and the
number of foreign transactions by 60.0 per cent. The value of domestic
transactions was up by 7.5 per cent, and of foreign transactions by
62.5 per cent.
In 2005 the Bank actively co-operated in the Group for the Validation
of the Common Standard for Electronic Data Exchange with Clients at
the Chamber of Commerce and the Slovenian Banking Association.

Increase in transactions performed through
WESTERN UNION
During 2005 the Bank registered an increase in the Western Union
service (fast transfer of money); the number of transactions went up
by 52.8 per cent, while the overall value of transactions carried out
rose by 46.7 per cent.

Number of Moneta users on a rise
Moneta is a system used for performing secure and simple cashless payments by mobile phone. During 2005,
Nova KBM d.d. issued 3262 Monetas. 3726 users obtained the Moneta service in the Bank, a 7-fold increase over
the previous year. The rising number of users results from enhanced personal sale and direct mail promotions.
By the end of 2005, Nova KBM d.d. concluded 535 contracts with providers of Moneta services at 1056 points
of sale; the number of points of sale thus recorded a 5.5-fold year-on-year increase.
The total turnover in the Moneta system amounted to over 541 million tolars in 2005, of which only in
December 2005 to 67.2 million tolars. This is a 2.4-fold increase in turnover compared with December 2004,
which was directly related to the increasing number of users, points of sale and seasonal fluctuations.

International Operations
The Bank as a borrower on the international financial markets
Due to a significant rise in demand for long-term foreign-currency loans, and in compliance with the adopted
measures of the Bank to improve liquidity, the structure of its long-term financial resources, and liquidity
ratios, the Bank was active in international financial markets as a borrower.
Taking-up long-term loans and credit lines from foreign banks
On 14 January 2005, the Bank signed a long-term loan agreement with Zuercher Kantonalbank worth
8,000,000.00 Swiss francs. The maturity of the loan is five years, and the repayment of the loan in one portion
at maturity. The funds were earmarked mainly for consumer and residential loans, as the demand for loans in
Swiss francs was especially great in the first half of the year because of the low interest rate.

In June 2004 the Bank signed a frame loan agreement totalling 10 million euros with the Austrian bank Raiffeisenlandesbank Kaernten. The first drawing in the amount of 4.5 million euros was realised in 2004, and the
second one totalling 5 million euros in June 2005. The maturity of each tranche is five years from drawing.

Signing a syndicated loan agreement
On 12 July 2005 a syndicated loan agreement totalling 240 million euros was signed with the representatives
of a foreign bank consortium. It is the highest loan amount ever contracted by the Bank on foreign financial
markets. The procedures for the borrowing were initiated in February, but owing to an excellent response
of foreign banks and competitive conditions, the Supervisory Board of the Bank issued on 13 June 2005
its consent to the Management Board, to raise the original loan amount from 100 million euros to
240 million euros. The loan maturity is five years from signing of the agreement. The arrangement of the syndicated
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In September 2004, the loan agreement totalling 20 million euros was signed with the Council of Europe Development
Bank. The first drawing of funds, earmarked for financing investment projects of small and medium-sized
companies, was realised by the Bank on 11 February 2005, and the second on 22 November 2005. The amount of
each drawing was 10 million euros, and the maturity of each drawing 10 years. The drawn amounts will be repaid in
eight annual instalments, while the first instalment of each drawing falls due three years after the drawing date.
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On 2 February 2005, a long-term loan agreement with Die Erste Bank der Oesterreichischen Sparkassen AG
and Kaerntner Sparkasse AG in the amount of 20 million euros was signed. The loan maturity is five years, the
Bank will start repaying the loan after 24 months, and will repay it in seven semi-annual instalments.

loan was entrusted to Bank Austria Creditanstalt AG, DZ Bank AG and WestLB AG, which prepared the most
favourable offer for the loan arrangement. A total of 26 foreign banks are participating in the syndication.

Raising long-term loans at the Slovenian Export Corporation
The Bank contracted four loans at the Slovenian Export Corporation during 2005. Two of them – one in the
amount of 4 million euros, and another in the amount of 700 million tolars with currency clause – were raised
on 11 February 2005, and both are earmarked for refinancing exporters. The maturity of both loans is on 29
December 2006. The third loan contracted with the Slovenian Export Corporation amounts to 20 million
euros, and has a ten year maturity after signing of agreement, i.e. on 21 March 2005. The loan will be repaid in
17 semi-annual instalments, the first one falling due in 24 months after drawing.
On 30 June 2005, another loan was initiated with the Slovenian Export Corporation for refinancing a foreign currency
loan granted by the Bank to a first-class client. The loan in the amount of 3.2 million euros falls due in June 2014.

The Bank as a lender on international financial markets
In June the Bank adopted a decision to participate as a lender in two syndicated loans. In July it co-operated
as a silent partner with 1 million euros in a three-year loan granted to an Austrian bank, and in August with 1
million US dollars in a one-year loan approved to one of the most successful Russian banks.
In May the Bank extended for another year the frame loan worth 5 million euros granted to the financial
company LB Interfinanz AG, a 100-per cent subsidiary of Nova LB d.d. On 20 June 2005, the Bank approved to
the same company an additional one-month loan amounting to 1 million euros, which was at maturity extended
for another month, i.e. by 19 August 2005.

Granting a long-term loan to Poštna banka Slovenije d.d., a member of the Nova KBM Group
In the field of long-term lending, the Bank co-operated with Poštna banka Slovenije d.d. (PBS), a member of
the Nova KBM Group.
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The Bank granted PBS two long-term foreign-currency loans, each in the amount of 5 million euros with
maturities of five year after drawing. The first loan was drawn in June, and the second in October.
In order to improve PBS’s capital adequacy, and in compliance with an agreement made between the management
boards of Nova KBM d.d. and PBS, Nova KBM d.d. granted in July a so-called hybrid loan worth 800 million
tolars to PBS to carry out its strategic targets. The said deposit has no maturity date, and the repayment is
possible only after the lapse of five years and one day, and on prior consent of the Bank of Slovenia. Due to the
conditions, the deposit amount is included in PBS’s additional capital I.

Confirmation of the Bank’s credit rating
In February and October 2005, the Bank was visited by a representative of Capital Intelligence credit rating
agency. Based on the Bank’s operations in 2003, 2004, and partly in 2005, as well as on the basis of discussions
held in the Bank, the agency reaffirmed the Bank’s previous year’s credit rating (long-term credit rating at
BBB, short-term credit rating at A2)
Representatives of FITCH Ratings credit agency held discussion with Bank representatives in early June, and
in August the agency confirmed the Bank’s previous year’s rating (long-term credit rating at A–, short-term
credit rating at F2).

On 24 August 2005 the Bank was visited by representatives of Moody’s Investors Service rating agency who
held discussions with representatives of the Bank’s management. The agency kept the credit rating unchanged
(long-term rating at A2, short-term rating at P-1).

Treasury Operations
Liquidity Management
The Bank currently and regularly fulfilled its financial liabilities. In line with market conditions, the Bank
acquired tolar funds on the interbank market, through deposit auctions of the Ministry of Finance, as well as
from the temporary sale of foreign exchange to the Bank of Slovenia.
Short-term foreign exchange funds were acquired on the domestic and foreign interbank market. The balance
of foreign exchange deposits raised on foreign markets recorded a substantial fall compared with 2004, whereas
the balance of foreign exchange deposits raised on the domestic interbank market improved. The excess tolar
funds were placed in domestic and foreign interbank markets, in Bank of Slovenia cash certificates as well as
in treasury bills.
The Governing Board of the Bank of Slovenia amended its resolution on overnight loans, and abolished the
penalty of 4.00 per cent p.a., if the outstanding overnight loan is changed into a loan against securities.
On the entrepreneurial market (purchase and sale of foreign currency to companies in exchange for tolars),
the Bank increased its business by 12 per cent. Also forward business carried out for companies and private
citizens grew by about 38 per cent.

Available for sale financial assets and held to maturity investments
Available for sale financial assets and held to maturity investments amounted to 170.6 bilion tolars and are
divided into two segments:
• securities available for sale in the amount of 94.5 billion tolars, and
• securities held to maturity in the amount of 76.1 billion tolars.
The balance of the portfolio of securities held to maturity declined by 25.7 billion tolars over the previous year.
The biggest difference arose due to the change in the investment policy in Bank of Slovenia foreign currency
cash certificates. In 2005 the Bank of Slovenia abolished the obligation of subscription to foreign currency
cash certificates. Consequently, the Bank started substituting these securities with investments in foreign
securities which the Bank will use to insure credit operations within the Eurosystem. The Bank classified the
said securities in the securities held for trading portfolio.
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Investments in securities
The total securities portfolio of the Bank in 2005 rose by 31.5 billion tolars to 216.3 billion tolars, which is in
line with the growth in the Bank’s balance-sheet total. The internal Bank’s risk management model stipulates
that the share of first-class debt securities within the balance sheet total must not be less that 30 per cent. The
calculation takes into account debt securities issued by the state, the Bank of Slovenia and first-class issuers
according to a criterion defined by the Minimum Liquidity Resolution to be ensured by the Bank, as well as
long-term deposits with the Bank of Slovenia.
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In the field of interbank cash trading, the Bank improved the turnover by over 44 per cent.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss increased in 2005 by 45.5 billion tolars. The growth in
the marketable portfolio is mainly due to purchases of bonds on foreign markets bought by the Bank as an
alternative investment for Bank of Slovenia foreign-currency cash certificates. These are high-credit-rating
securities classified in ECB’s uniform list 1, and represent financial assets used by the Bank to insure credit
operations within the Eurosystem. A smaller portion is represented by transfers from the portfolio of securities
available for sale, due to the adjustment of the securities portfolio to the requirements of the IFRS.
In 2005 the Bank was not very active in equity trading. The growth is mainly a result of the takeover of the
previous Mariborska borznoposredniška hiša d.o.o. portfolio, which was acquired by Nova KBM d.d. in
December 2005.
Capital investments
In 2005 the Bank did not increase its activities regarding capital investments. The total amount of capital
investments rose by 466 million tolars over the previous year, however, there were some significant changes
in individual segments.
In the segment investments in Group companies and in companies in which the Bank has a significant
influence there were certain movements arising from the revaluation of investments, which means that capital
investments increased due to accrued profits and decreased due to profits paid out, also from previous year.
As a result of the loss, only a capital increase in Moja naložba d.d. was carried out in 2005. In February 2005
a capital interest in Fininvest d.o.o. Nova Gorica was sold. In December 2005 the Bank assumed securities
operations for its clients following a simplified acquisition of Mariborska borznoposredniška hiša d.o.o., due
to which the capital investment in the said company expired. In December the Bank sold its interest in Iskra
Avtodeli d.o.o., Bovec, in which it had a significant influence.
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In mid 2005 the Management Board of the Bank adopted a resolution to sell-off stakes in those companies
which the Bank does not plan to keep in the long run, and in which it already holds only a minimum stake. The
Bank only succeeded in selling-off its stakes in Abanka Vipa d.d. and Hranilnica Lon d.d., because only for
these two investments it achieved the desired sales price.
In 2005 the Bank acquired only three new capital investments for three different reasons. The investment in
Steklarna Rogaška is a part of the rehabilitation process of the glass factory by means of a debt-for-equity swap.
Nonetheless, Steklarna Rogaška did not achieve a better credit rating standing, therefore the Bank made an
impairment of the investment.
The share in Ljubljana Stock Exchange was acquired through the acquisition of MBH d.o.o., while the share in
Cestno podjetje Maribor d.d. was acquired as part of a long-term business co-operation plan.

Issue of Securities
In January the Bank prepared a new issue of certificates of deposit as a treasury instrument with maturities of
one and two years. In January it sold certificates of deposit in a total amount of 550 million tolars. The balance
of issued certificates of deposit amounted to 5,406 million tolars at the end of 2005.
In February the Bank issued the five-year KBM8 bond in a total value of 7,000 million tolars. The entire
quantity of bonds was paid in by the end of February. The bonds were listed on the Ljubljana Stock Exchange
on 30 June 2005.

THE BANK AND ITS ENVIRONMENT
The natural environment
In 2005 the Bank continued with its sustainable interventions in the environment by trying to reduce their
effects to the largest possible extent. The Bank seeks to protect the environment when renovating its business
premises and its outlets by choosing energy-saving systems and devices and by using environment-friendly
energy sources and energy-efficient devices. In business operations with the clients, paper work is being
replaced with modern e-business operations in order to reduce the quantity of paper used; following a shredding
process, used paper is delivered to specialised companies as raw material.

The social environment
Donations and sponsorships have consolidated business relations and the Bank’s social importance
The Bank has successfully built its public image by sponsoring sports, culture, arts, science, education, and
by donating to humanitarian activities and also education, culture and arts activities. As the general sponsor
of the Golden Fox World Cup ski competition, of the Maribor-based Slovene National Theatre, and of the Lent
Festival, the Bank used all communication tools and made every effort to consolidate its business relations and
its social importance.
The over eleven-year-long cooperation between Nova KBM d.d. and the Maribor Arts Gallery has not only
been limited to the Bank’s sponsorship, but it also provided support in the organisation of expositions of
selected artists from as early as 1992 until the renovation of the Bank’s head office premises in Maribor.
In addition to that, the Bank was the national sponsor of the School Basketball League.

Improvement of the staff education structure
The education structure in the Bank reveals a slow yet relentless growth in the proportion of employees with a
college or university degree. The major portion of staff, however, has secondary or a lower level of education
(about 65 per cent), but the Bank is proactively following its target of hiring a larger number of college and
university graduates. The reason for this is in reduced requirements for staff working in operational jobs,
and a substantial growth in jobs requiring higher-educated staff (strengthening of the commercial function especially in retail operations). The Bank tries to achieve this objective by long-term restructuring of jobs and
encouraging employee education and training.
More emphasis on employee education and training
The funds earmarked for education in the Bank have increased compared with the previous year, especially on
account of obtaining higher education levels and taking part in state-verified programmes.

56 /

Reduction in the number of staff
As at 31 December 2005 Nova KBM d.d had a total of 1,546 employees, 20 employees (1.3 per cent) less than at
the end of 2004. The reduction in the number of employees was achieved through a selective policy as regards
re-filling posts that became vacant, a measure that has led to primarily in-house personnel taking up new or
unoccupied positions at the Bank.
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HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

The Bank has developed internal training forms whose contents are better adapted to the requirements of the
Bank; they encourage the flow of information, experience and know-how among employees, and are at the
same time very cost-effective.

The right person in the right workplace
In employment the Bank strictly follows the principle »The right person in the right workplace«. Measures to
ensure the employment of the right persons include paying strict attention to the formal conditions as well as
checking personal characteristics and capabilities, knowledge, skills and the requisite professional capacities of
the candidates. The Bank protects itself from the selection of an inappropriate candidate by using the institute
of the trial period.
Group additional voluntary pension scheme
The Bank has concluded a pension scheme contract with Moja naložba d.d., pension fund management
company. In 2005, 95 per cent of the staff on average were included in the voluntary pension scheme under this
contract. The average monthly premium stood at 12,723 tolars.
Internal communication
With its formal internal communication tools, the Bank informs its staff about the events taking place in the
Bank and in its environment. It is aware of how important it is for the staff to feel allegiance to the Bank,
therefore it pays special attention to long-term employees, and organises occasional employee meetings.

THE BANK’S INTERNAL DEVELOPMENT
Expanding the validity of the quality management system certificate
in compliance with ISO 9001:2001 standard
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In 2005 the Bank succeeded not only in maintaining the acquired quality level of its retail operations but also
in expanding the validity of the quality management system certificate in compliance with ISO 9001:2000
standard to all new branch offices in Koroška, Pomurje, Brežice, Novo mesto and Celje. New branch offices
were established after 1996, when the Bank acquired the certificate for the first time, then in compliance with
the old ISO 9001:1996 standard.
As to maintaining the certificate, the Bank continued to organize meetings of the group responsible for ongoing improvements which is comprised of representatives from all branch offices. Meetings were primarily
focused on the exchange of information regarding changes in business operations and solving problems that
occurred in everyday work as well as improving procedures and preventing errors.

Information and technological development
Compliance of the functioning of information system with business objectives
In 2005 the Bank continued with the development of the NOBIS programme, which represents an important
part of the Information Strategy of Nova KBM d.d., conceived in November 2004. The objective of the NOBIS
system is to upgrade information solutions established in the framework of the NOBIS Project (1999−2004),
to further integrate the Bank's information system, and to transfer the Bank's operations from old information
systems to the NOBIS information system.

Of the mentioned priority objectives related to the NOBIS programme for 2005, the Bank transferred
its information support for retail savings and loans to the NOBIS information system; the system was
supplemented in November and December 2005. This enabled the migration of retail operations to the NOBIS
information system. This migration was completed in the Nova Gorica Area Branch, which represents one
of the most significant milestones in integrating the information system within NKBM. As to the rest of the
Bank, the transfer of existing retail operations from old information systems to the NOBIS system is already
underway.

Efficient functioning of the information system
Along with the transfer of new operations to the new information system, technological and organizational
changes had to be carried out to ensure on-going control, management and maintenance of this part of the
information system. Software solutions were prepared to provide the Bank’s staff with a simple and transparent
control over the functioning of all information system components. Based on monitoring and statistics, new
software solutions were prepared or the old ones upgraded enabling normal functioning of information systems
on critical days.
Policy and organization of information system and data protection
2005 saw the continuation of the activities of the Information Security Forum, whose task is providing support
to the development, to the introduction and maintenance of a high level of information security in the Bank,
and to the development of the security awareness of the employees.
In the scope of the Forum’s activities the following policies were prepared and adopted: policy regarding the
supervision of the access to the system, policy towards external providers, passwords policy, and remote access
policy.

After several years of planning, in 2005 the Bank finally took over new premises for its computer centre that
meet the requirements of the most state-of-the-art security and technical standards. The functioning of the
information system is thus ensured in two locations (primary and auxiliary), which will contribute to higher
effectiveness, reliability and security of the information system.

Investments
In 2005 the Bank invested the amount of 4,492 million tolars in real estate, computers and other equipment.
The largest portion of these funds, almost 50 per cent, was earmarked for investments in buildings, primarily
in the Bank’s new computer centre located at Tezno, Maribor.
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Technological equipment
With the cooperation of IBM Slovenia, the Bank prepared in 2004 the study entitled Upgrading of the Server
and Storage Infrastructure, the purpose of which was to provide infrastructure to ensure a higher level of
flexibility, scalability and, above all, a high level of data security and protection to the Bank. On the basis of the
study individual hardware components were purchased that were partly integrated into the information system
in the current year, while complete implementation is scheduled for the first quarter of 2006.
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With the purpose of making the Bank’s employees aware of the security required and with the cooperation
of an outside provider an electronic education system was defined which the Bank intends to carry out in
2006.

Successful completion of work on the Bank’s computer centre
The Bank invested 2,225 million tolars in buildings. The largest portion of these funds, almost 76 per cent, was
spent for the construction of the Bank’s computer centre at Tezno, a project that was successfully completed
in December 2005.
Prudent and rational purchase and exchange of various machines and other equipment
Investments in machines, devices and other equipment amounted to 169 million tolars. The nominal amount of
funds spent is lower than in 2004, and is the consequence of economical and rational purchases and exchange
of equipment required for the regular course of working processes. The larger portion of funds was spent on
renewing machines for counting banknotes and coins, and will continue more intensively in 2006 on the EURO
project. Larger amounts were spent also on further modernisation of security systems in the Bank’s branch
offices, and on the expansion of the videoconference system in the new computer centre located at Tezno.
Upgrade of servers and disk capacities represents the largest investment in computer
equipment
Investments in computer equipment amounted to 1,434.6 million tolars. The largest portion (56 per cent or
805.4 million tolars) of funds was spent on upgrading servers and disk capacities. The Bank spent nearly 281
million tolars on software licences and application equipment. Furthermore, it spent 190 million tolars on new
ATMs and on upgrading the old ones, as well as on POS terminals.
Investments in further development of the NOBIS information system
Investments in further development of the NOBIS information system amounted to 662.7 million tolars.
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Preparations for reporting in line with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS)
The application of International Financial Reporting Standards in drawing up consolidated annual financial
statements is directly prescribed by an EU Regulation. The harmonization of the domestic legislation with this
regulation makes it binding on the banks to:
• Article 51 of the Companies Act, stipulating general accounting rules, provides in its Paragraphs 10 and 11
that companies whose securities are listed on any one of the organised securities markets in EU member
states, and are subject to consolidation on the basis of Article 53 of the Companies Act (consolidated
financial statement), are obligated to draw up their annual reports in compliance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards, and the obligation relates to banks as well.
• The amending act to the Companies Act stipulates in its transitional and final provisions that banks referred to
in Article 51, Paragraph 11 of the Companies Act, shall draw up their financial statements in compliance with
International Financial Reporting Standards for the financial year as determined by the Bank of Slovenia.
The Bank of Slovenia stipulated in its Resolution, published in the Official Gazette of the RS, No. 15/2005,
dated 17 February 2005 that banks are obligated to draw up their financial statements in compliance with
International Financial Reporting Standards for the financial year starting on 1 January 2006.
Thus, Nova KBM d.d. shall switch to the new International Financial Reporting Standards in 2006. New standards
have introduced changes in the calculation of specific provisions, in the treatment of some commissions as interest
income, in the allowance for insurances as well as in the calculation of the Bank’s capital. The Bank’s preparations
for the introduction of the new standards were commenced in 2005, and will be completed by 15 April 2006.

Readiness of Nova KBM d.d. for the euro
Significance of the euro introduction for Nova KBM d.d.
At the 13th regular meeting held on 10 June 2006, the Bank’s Management Board discussed its activities related
to the euro introduction and adopted the resolution that the euro introduction project is one of great significance
for the Bank.
In September 2004, the Bank’s Management Board appointed a working group responsible for the introduction
of the euro in the Bank. The working group was composed of representatives from all sectors of the Bank that
would be mainly affected by the adoption of the euro. In early 2005, the first action plan related to the euro
introduction in the Bank was drawn up. The plan defined all the activities to be carried out before or during
the changeover to the euro. For each activity a starting date and a date of conclusion was specified.
In 2005, business processes, services and applications that will have to be adjusted due to the euro adoption
were defined in individual organizational units. When this work was completed in September 2005, the working
group carried out analyses of all required adjustments, and, on the basis of a decision of the Management Board
adopted on 3 October 2005, the euro introduction project was formally created. A detailed study on the euro
introduction in the Bank, including the analysis of project risks, was confirmed, and a project group and nine
subproject groups, responsible for preparations regarding the introduction of the euro in different Bank sectors
were appointed. The President of the Bank’s Management Board was appointed sponsor of the project. In
addition to this, a decision-making group responsible for adopting any business decision related to the euro
adoption was appointed. Moreover, it was decided that the internal auditing department was responsible for
monitoring and supervising all activities regarding the euro introduction. Later, in December 2005, based
on a decision of the Bank’s Management Board, supervision of the euro introduction project was expanded:
a supervising group comprised of the Management Board as well as all the Bank’s executive directors was
appointed. In this way, the supervision of the project implementation was improved, and all the Bank sectors
may take a responsible part in the course of activities related to the euro introduction.

Activities related to the euro adoption concluded in the Bank by the end of 2005
Even though great strain is placed on the employees, especially as other important projects are carried out
simultaneously, all activities related to the euro introduction are carried out in compliance with the adopted
action plan. By 31 December 2005, the following activities related to the changeover were carried out:
• All adjustments required for the changeover to the new domestic currency were defined; separate risk
analyses for the information technology sector, the NOBIS information system and cash operations were
carried out which, according to the project group, present the highest risk related to the euro introduction.
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The euro introduction project is a national project, and the Bank of Slovenia attaches great importance to
the readiness of business banks for the changeover. All business banks are obligated to report to the Bank of
Slovenia on a monthly basis regarding the execution of individual activities related to the euro adoption, while
the Bank of Slovenia, by means of inspections, carries out direct supervision of the banks’ preparations related
to the introduction of the euro.
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The action plan for the euro introduction in the Bank was first prepared in early 2005, and was further
supplemented in November based on new facts regarding the euro introduction in Slovenia; the Bank’s
Management Board confirmed dates for the conclusion of the most significant activities to be carried out
during 2006 in order for the Bank to be fully prepared to start operations in the new domestic currency on 1
January 2007, when the changeover to the euro is scheduled.

• All internal rules, instructions, authorisations and reports that must be adjusted owing to the euro adoption
were reviewed.
• Agreements were made with external providers of information support to adjust the applications to the
changeover by 30 April 2006, and to give support to the Bank during the changeover itself.
• An analysis of the economic effects of the euro introduction on the Bank’s business operations was carried
out, and the costs of all the adjustments required for the euro introduction were estimated.
• In compliance with the Act on Dual Display of Prices in Tolars and Euro stipulating the methods of double
pricing of goods and services in the period from 1 March 2006 to 30 July 2007, the Bank’s price list was
prepared, and an agreement was made with external providers of software used by the Bank for issuing
invoices to adapt the software so as to ensure the issue of invoices with prices stated in both currencies.
• Requests related to euro introduction were handed over from corporate users to relevant subproject groups.
• A detailed plan related to work and to the takeover of euro cash by the Bank and its business units has been
prepared.
• An education plan related to the euro has been prepared, and initial education and training of employees
have been carried out. The Bank’s Management Board is well aware that adequate training of employees
regarding operations in the euro represents a prerequisite for the Bank’s readiness to change over to the new
currency.
• The Bank has been active in informing its employees and the general public about all the most important
facts related to the changeover to the euro.
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The Bank’s plans for 2006 regarding the changeover to the euro
The most important activities regarding the Bank’s operational adjustments will take place during the first half
of 2006. The Bank’s information technology and operations support will be fully euro-compliant by 30 June
2006, which was a request made by the Bank of Slovenia. This means that the Bank will have adjusted all its
applications to the euro by the end of April 2006, and that all tests related to information system functioning
in the new domestic currency will be carried out in May and June. Certainly, the Bank’s activities are also
dependent upon regulatory bodies and external conditions that have to be ready to operate in euro by the end
of June 2006 in order for the Bank to be able to carry out all planned activities in compliance with time limits
set in the adopted action plan.
The changeover from tolar to euro is not only a technological project; owing to the euro adoption, the Bank’s
business strategy and its services will have to be adjusted as well. Working groups in charge of relevant sectors
have already started dealing with this problem. Members of the working group dealing with the convergence
of interest rates in tolars and in euros have already been appointed, and started working in December 2005.
At the same time, directors of individual business sectors began reviewing those services that will either have
to be adjusted, introduced or terminated due to the changeover to the euro. Like in the technological sector,
activities related to the euro introduction in the business sector will be more or less concluded by 30 June 2006.
The final deadline for the conclusion of these activities is the end of October 2006.
The Bank is well aware of the significance of adequate and complete readiness for the introduction of the euro.
In view of this, all other activities and projects taking place during 2006 will have to be subordinated to the
euro project. Only by fully focusing on this highly demanding project and by making available all the necessary
sources and resources can the Bank ensure that all planned activities required for the euro introduction will be
concluded as planned, and that the changeover on 1 January 2007 will run smoothly.

INTERNAL AUDIT
Established in 1991, Nova KBM’s internal audit department functions as an independent unit of the Bank in
accordance with the Banking Act. It is responsible for constant supervision of the operations of the Bank and
its subsidiaries. The internal audit department is responsible directly to the Bank’s Management Board.
The audits were mainly based on the functional audit approach by paying special regard to the Bank’s
organization in its individual business areas. Thus, all the Bank’s organizational units, PBS, and the Group
companies except Zavarovalnica Maribor represented the auditing environment.
Besides auditing, internal auditors were also involved in planning, organizing and supervising the preparation
of the data required for the audit of 2004 financial statements and for the Appendix to the auditor’s report, and
cooperated in the collection and preparation of the data for the preliminary audit of the Bank’s operations in
2005.
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In the latter half of the year, the auditors focused on activities regarding the introduction of the euro, and the
preparation for the introduction of international financial standards. They performed a special audit of financial
agents’ operations in compliance with the Bank of Slovenia decision.
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S
RESPONSIBILITIES
Management of the Bank is responsible for preparing each year financial statements that present fairly the
state of affairs of the Bank and its subsidiaries as of the end of the financial year and the profit and loss for
that period.
Management confirms that suitable accounting policies have been used and applied consistently and reasonable
and prudent judgements and estimates have been made in the preparation of the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2005. Management also confirms that all relevant and applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards have been applied and that the financial statements have been prepared that
going concern basis is appropriate.
Management is responsible for keeping proper accounting records, for taking reasonable steps to safeguard the
assets of the Bank and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
The Management Board
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Matjaž Kovačič
President
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Manja Skernišak
Member
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF Nova KREDITNA
BANKA MARIBOR d.d., MARIBOR

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income
Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income
Dividend income
Income from associates and other income from
Net trading income
Gain from sale of subsidiaries
Other operating income
Operating income

2005

2004

3

37,560
(16,720)
20,840

38,130
(18,140)
19,990

4

11,156
(2,383)
8,773

9,881
(2,084)
7,797

600
1,389
4,268
161
3,824
39,855

307
1,104
2,621
3,869
35,688

5
6
7

General administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Other expenses
Operating expenses

8
9

(20,550)
(2,120)
(1,198)
(23,868)

(19,832)
(3,227)
(1,208)
(24,267)

Impairment losses
Profit before tax

10

(5,122)
10,865

(5,080)
6,341

Income tax expense
Profit for the period

11

(2,889)
7,976

(3,513)
2,828

143
7,833

137
2,691

Attributable to: Minority interest
Equity holders of the parent

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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in millions of SIT

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
in millions of SIT
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Notes

2005

2004

Assets
Cash and balances with the Central Bank
Due from other banks
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Loans and advances to customers
Available-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-maturity investments
Investments in associates and other investments
Unconsolidated investment in subsidiary
Intangible assets
Property and equipment
Accrued income, other assets and deferred tax assets
Total assets

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

17,991
79,304
48,242
411,553
94,552
119,970
10,754
442
4,740
19,895
31,164
838,607

27,832
51,241
4,548
351,686
82,863
143,462
9,287
438
4,273
14,292
26,915
716,837

Liabilities
Due to other banks
Due to customers
Debt securities in issue
Other borrowed funds
Accruals, provisions, other liabilities and deferred tax liabilities
Subordinated liabilities
Total liabilities

24
25
26
27
28
29

5,459
554,932
49,527
118,831
26,893
22,116
777,758

8,521
517,019
40,240
52,642
20,738
22,135
661,295

Minority interest

31

1,938

1,911

32

5,840
7,153
45,918
58,911
60,849

5,840
5,298
42,493
53,631
55,542

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity
838,607
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

716,837

Shareholders’ equity
Share capital
Retained profits
Reserves
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Total equity

The Management Board confirms Groups’s Financial Statements and related Notes to Financial Statements.
Manja Skernišak
Member of the Management Board

Matjaž Kovačič
President and CEO

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
in millions of SIT

Statutory RevaluRetained
/ legal
ation
profits
reserve reserve

Total

5,600
240
-

7,414
-

0
1,567
-

28,722
-

1,294
-

5,947
(1,715)

48,977
1,807
(1,715)

-

-

-

-

1,694

-

1,694

5,840

60
177
7,651

1,567

1,565
30,287

2,988

2,691
(60)
(1,565)
5,298

2,691
177
53,631

Dividend for 2004
Revaluation of available-for sale
(1,498)
financial instruments
Profit for the period
Transfer to statutory / legal reserve
4,173
Increase of general banking reserve
750
Balance at 31 December 2005
5,840
8,401
1,567 34,460
1,490
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

(1,055)

(1,055)

-

(1,498)

7,833
(4,173)
(750)
7,153

7,833
58,911
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Balance at 31 December 2003
Increase of share capital
Dividend for 2003
Revaluation of available-for sale
financial instruments
Profit for the period
Transfer to general banking reserve
Transfer to statutory / legal reserve
Other
Balance at 31 December 2004

Capital
reserve
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General
Share
banking
capital
reserve

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
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in millions of SIT

Cash flows from / (used in) operating activities:
Net income before tax
Investment in associates
Depreciation and amortization
Gain/loss on disposal of fixed assets
Dividend received
Impairment loss
Income tax expense
Cash flows from operating profits before changes in
operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Cash and balances with the Central Bank
Due from other banks
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Loans and advances to customers
Available-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-maturity investments
Other assets, including tax assets
Due to other banks
Due to customers
Accruals, provisions and other liabilities
Subordinated liabilities
Net cash used in operating activities
Cash flows from / (used in) investing activities:
Acquisition of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Investments in associates
Investments in subsidiaries
Dividends received from associates
Net cash flows used in investing activities
Cash flows from / (used in) financing activities:
Debt securities in issue
Issue of share capital
Other borrowed funds
Dividends paid
Net cash flows from financing activities
Increase in cash
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2005

2004

10,865
(1,386)
2,120
(52)
(600)
5,122
(2,889)

6,341
(1,104)
3,227
(72)
(307)
5,080
(3,513)

13,180

9,652

4,158
(7,014)
(3)
(63,264)
(13,187)
23,492
(4,709)
(3,062)
37,913
5,161
(19)
(7,354)

(3,649)
(29,184)
(90,437)
4,076
(29,391)
(1)
(2,485)
108,536
1,928
15,003
(15,952)

14
(8,268)
(81)
(4)
600
(7,739)

(6,255)
976
(125)
307
(5,097)

9,287
66,189
(1,055)
74,421
59,328
44,303
103,631

22,462
1,984
15,248
(1,715)
37,979
16,930
27,373
44,303

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. General Information and basis of presentation
Nova Kreditna banka Maribor d.d. (the bank) is a Slovenian universal commercial bank incorporated under the
laws of Slovenia. The majority shareholder is the Republic of Slovenia, who owns 90.4 percent of the shares.
The remaining 9.6 percent is split equally between the Kapitalska družba d.d. (Capital Fund of the Republic of
Slovenia) and the Slovenska odškodninska družba d.d. (Compensation Fund of the Republic of Slovenia).
The registered office of Nova Kreditna banka Maribor d.d. (“Nova KBM”) is Maribor Ulica Vita Kraigherja 4.
The consolidated financial statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2005 consist of the financial
results of the Bank and its subsidiaries, together referred to as the “Group”.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Directors on 08 May 2006.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), and the
interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) of the
IASB Standing Interpretations Committee of the IASB.
(b) Basis of Preparation
The reporting currency used in financial statements is Slovene Tolar (“SIT”) with rounding to the nearest SIT
million, unless otherwise specified.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. These estimates are based on the information available as of the date
of the consolidated financial statements. The subsequent actual results could thus differ from those
estimates.
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(c) Basis of Accounting
The financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis of accounting whereby the effects of transactions
and other events are recognized when they occur and they are reported in financial statements of the periods
to which they relate, and on the going concern basis. The consolidated financial statements consists of: the
balance sheet, income statement, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement and explanatory notes to
the financial statements.
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The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis, modified by the revaluation
of; available-for-sale investment securities, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
derivative financial instruments. The members of the Group follow uniform accounting policies for similar
transactions.

(d) Basis of consolidation
(i) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are those companies controlled by the Bank. Control exists when the Bank has the power, directly
or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an enterprise so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. It means that the Bank holds more than 50 percent of ownership or the Bank’s control over the
management of the company is not limited or restricted. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included
in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases.
The following subsidiary companies are included in consolidated financial statements of the Nova KBM d.d.
Group:
• KBM FINEKO d.o.o., in which the Bank holds 100 percent ownership,
• KBM INFOND d.o.o., in which the Bank holds 68 percent ownership,
• KBM LEASING d.o.o., in which the Bank holds 100 percent ownership,
• KBM INVEST d.o.o., in which the Bank holds 99.37 percent ownership,
• GORICA LEASING d.o.o., in which the Bank holds 100 percent ownership,
• POŠTNA BANKA SLOVENIJE d.d., in which the Bank holds 55 percent ownership and
• M-PAY d.o.o., in which the Bank holds 50 percent ownership.

(ii) Associates
Associate companies are those entities which the Bank cannot control, but over which it has significant
influence as a consequence of a 20 percent to 50 percent share ownership. Investments in associate companies
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Equity accounting involves recognizing in the income
statement the Group’s share of the associates’ profit or loss for the period. The Group’s interest in the associate
is carried in the balance sheet at an amount that reflects its share of net assets of the associate.
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The following associated companies are included in consolidated financial statements of the Nova KBM
d.d.Group using the equity method of accounting:
• ADRIA BANK AG, in which the Bank holds 25.04 percent ownership,
• ZAVAROVALNICA MARIBOR d.d., in which the Bank holds 49.96 percent ownership,
• MOJA NALOŽBA d.d., in which the Bank holds 45 percent ownership.

(e) Introduction of amended IFRS
In 2004, the Group applied amended IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005 (earlier application permitted). The first application
of amended IAS 39 permits an entity to designate a previously recognised financial asset as a financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss or available-for-sale financial assets, which resulted in the reclassification
of the Group’s financial assets.
(f) Foreign Currency Translation
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into SIT at year end at the
mid exchange rate declared by the Central Bank (“CB”) on the balance sheet date. Income and expenses
denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in Slovenian Tolars in the underlying accounting system of
the Group and are therefore reported in financial statements at the mid exchange rate of the Central Bank
prevailing at the transaction date. Gains and losses arising on monetary assets from movements in exchange
rates are included in ‘Net trading income’.

(g) Financial instruments
In preparing accounting and financial statements for 2004 the Bank applied the amended IAS 39. By applying
this standard, the Bank reclassified the majority of its Securities held for trading as ‘Securities available-forsale’. A portion of Investments held-to-maturity was also reclassified into ‘Securities available- for-sale’. In the
interest of consistency as well as for comparative purposes, the standard was applied retrospectively.
(i) Classification
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets (equity and debt securities, treasury
bills) acquired by the Group for the purpose of generating a profit from short-term price fluctuations.
Interest earned on trading securities is reported as ‘Interest income’ in the income statement.
Dividends on trading securities are recorded when declared and included as a receivable in the balance sheet
under ‘Prepayments, accrued income and other assets’ and in ‘Dividend income’ in the income statement.
All purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss that require delivery within the
time frame established by regulation or market convention (‘regular way purchases and sales’) are recognised
as spot transactions. Transactions that do not meet the ‘regular way’ settlement criterion are treated as financial
derivatives.
Held-to-maturity Investments
Held-to-maturity investments are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. This portfolio consists of treasury bills
and debt securities. Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortized cost.

Interest earned on securities available-for-sale is reported as ‘Interest income’ in the income statement.
Dividends on securities available-for-sale are recorded as declaration date and are included as a receivable in
the balance sheet line ‘Prepayments, accrued income and other assets’ and in ‘Dividend income’ in the income
statement. Upon payment of the dividend, the receivable is offset against the cash received.
Available-for-sale financial assets are stated at fair value by applying the valuation technique that takes into
account the scope and the depth of the respective market.
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Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are those securities that are not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss or held-to-maturity investments. This portfolio consists of equity securities and debt
securities.
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The Group assesses on a regular basis whether there is any objective evidence that an investment held-tomaturity may be impaired. A financial asset is impaired if its carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount. A financial asset’s carrying amount is the present value of the expected future cash flows
discounted at the financial instrument’s original effective interest rate. The amount of the impairment loss
for assets carried at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the financial instrument’s original effective
interest rate. Any impairment losses recognised during the reporting period are included in the income
statement as an ‘Impairment loss’.

Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes on the fair value of securities classified as available-for- sale
financial assets are recognised directly in equity, through the Statement of changes in equity in the ‚Realuation
reserve‘. When such financial assets are subsequently derecognised, the difference between the carrying
amount and fair value previously recognised in equity, is transferred to the income statement, and included in
the line ‘Net trading income’.
Derivative financial instruments
In the normal course of business the Group engages as a party to contracts for derivative financial instruments
which represent a very low initial investment compared to the notional value of the contract.
Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised in the balance sheet at cost (including transaction
costs) and are subsequently re-measured to fair value.
Loans and Loan Impairment
Loans originated by the Group by providing money directly to a borrower are categorised as loans originated by
the Group and are carried at amortised cost. All loans and advances are recognised when funds are advanced
to borrowers.
Loans are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances increased by any accrued interest and reduced
by any commissions and impairment for loan losses, net of any deferred fees or costs of loan origination.
Impairment is made for any amounts for which, in the opinion of management, the recovery is uncertain. The
amount of the impairment is based on the discounted cash flow of the future receivables associated with the
loan.
A specific credit risk provision has been created to provide for management’s estimate of credit losses
that may arise as soon as the recovery of an exposure is considered to be doubtful. In the case of loans to
borrowers in countries where there is an increased risk of difficulties in servicing external debt, an assessment
of the political and economic situation is made, and additional country risk impairment is established as
necessary.
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When a loan is deemed uncollectable, it is written off against the related provision for impairments. Subsequent
recoveries are credited to the income statement, if previously written off.
The Group must, within the framework of prescribed and internal criteria, classify balance sheet and offbalance-sheet asset items according to their level of risk and evaluate potential losses deriving from credit
risks. Specific provisions for impairment losses that the Group establishes according to classification of
claims in groups B, C, D and E are recorded as the value adjustments of claims on the assets side of the
balance sheet. Impairment for potential losses that the Group establishes for claims in group A, are also
recorded as the value adjustments of claims on the asset side of balance sheet.

(ii) Recognition
The Group recognises financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale assets
on the date it commits to purchase the assets. From this date any gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value of the assets are recognised in the consolidated financial statements. Held-to-maturity
investments as well as loans and receivables are recognised on the day they are transferred to the
Group.

(iii) Measurement
Financial instruments are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition all financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and all
available-for-sale assets are measured at fair value with the exception of financial instruments whose fair value
cannot be measured reliably. The latter financial instrumets include those which do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and they are stated at cost (including transaction costs), less impairment losses.
All non-trading financial liabilities, originated loans and receivables and held-to-maturity assets are measured
at amortised cost less impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated on the effective interest rate method.
Premiums and discounts, including initial transaction costs, are included in the carrying amount of the related
instrument and amortised based on the effective interest rate of the instrument.

(iv) Fair value
The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted market price at the balance sheet date without
any deduction for transaction costs. If a quoted market price is not available, the fair value of the instrument is
estimated using pricing models or discounted cash flow techniques.
Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash flows are based on management’s
best estimates and the discount rate is a market related rate at the balance sheet date for an instrument with
similar terms and conditions. Where pricing models are used, inputs are based on market related measures at
the balance sheet date.
The fair value of derivatives that are not exchange-traded is estimated at the amount that the Group would
receive or pay to terminate the contract at the balance sheet date taking into account current market conditions
and the current creditworthiness of the counterparties.

(h) Intangible assets
Intangible assets encompass investments in computer software, licences and costs capitalised to assets owned by others.
They are amortized on the straight-line basis either at 20 percent per annum, or the contractual duration of a specific
licence, and the annual amortisation charge is included in the income statement in ‘Depreciation and amortisation’.
Depreciation on self-constructed intangible assets commence when the assets are available for use.
An impairment adjustment is made at the end of the year if the carrying amount of the intangible asset exceeds
its recoverable amount.
The Group does not record increases in the book value of intangible assets.
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Gains and losses arising from a change in the fair value of financial assets or liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in the income statement.
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(v) Gains or losses on subsequent measurement
Gains and losses arising from a change in the fair value of available-for-sale assets are recognized directly
in equity. When the financial assets are sold, collected or otherwise disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss
recognised in equity is transferred to the income statement.

(i) Property, plant and equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost, together with the annual revaluation, less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses.
The Group periodically tests its property, plant and equipment for impairment. Where the carrying amount
of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down to its recoverable amount. The
write off is recognised in the income statement as in impairment loss.
Gains and losses on the disposal of assets are determined by reference to their carrying amount and are taken
into account in determining operating income. Repairs and renewals are charged to the income statement
when the expenditure is incurred. Reversals of impairment losses, which arise as a result of changes in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of the assets, are recognized as income immediately in
the income statement.
The Group does not record increases in the book value of its property, plant and equipment.
The costs of increase the value of the property and equipment are capitalized.
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method at rates intended to write off the depreciable amount of
items of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives. The depreciation rates applied in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements are:

79 /

Nova Kreditna banka Maribor d.d. / Annual Report 2005

Buildings
Furniture
Computers
Motor vehicles
Finance leases

2005
(%)
3.0
6.7 - 25.0
33.33
12.5
12.5

2004
(%)
5.0
6.7 - 25.0
50.0
25.0
33.3

(j) Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when the lease agreement transfers to the lessee substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
The Group as lessor
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net
investment in the lease. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant rate
of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the relevant leases.
Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
The Group as lessee
Assets held under finance leases are recognized as assets of the Group at their fair value at acquisition date.
The corresponding liability due to the lessor is included in the consolidated Balance Sheet as a finance lease
obligation. Finance costs, which represent the difference between the total leasing commitments and the fair
value of the assets acquired, are charged to the consolidated income statement over the duration of the relevant

lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period.
Rentals due under operating leases are charged to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

(k) Provisions and impairment losses
The Group recognizes a provision only when all of the following criteria are met:
- It has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;
- It is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation;
- A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

(l) Provisions for charges and for guarantees and other off-balance sheet credit related
commitments
In the normal course of business the Group enters into credit related commitments, which are recorded in offbalance-sheet accounts. These commitments primarily include guarantees, letters of credit and unused loan
commitments. Specific provisions are made for estimated losses on these commitments on the same basis as
set out in note (k).
Provisions for off-balance-sheet exposures are recorded in other provisions disclosed within the balance sheet
category “Other liabilities” (Refer to note 28).

(m) Provisions for General Banking Reserves and Other General Provisions
The Group sets aside a general provision for risks that are judged by management to be present at the balance
sheet date, but which has not been allocated to specific or individual exposures.

In the event of the repurchase of its own debt securities, the Group de-recognises these debts so as to reflect
the economic substance of the transaction as a repayment of the Group’s commitment. The Group reflects the
decrease in its liabilities in the balance sheet line ‘Debt securities in issue ’. Gains and losses arising as a result
of the repurchase of the Group’s own debt securities are included in ‘Net trading income’ or in ‘Net interest
income.’ The Group reports the repurchased debt securities as assets only if a contractual commitment to resell
the securities in the future exists.

(o) Interest, Discount received and Discount allowed
Interest is calculated in accordance with Slovenian law and agreements between the Group and its clients.
Interest is added to the principal if this is stipulated in the agreement.
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(n) Debt Securities in Issue
Debt securities issued by the Group are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Interest expense arising on the issue of debt securities is included in the income statement line item ‘Interest
expense.’
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Provisions for general banking risks and the movement thereon are recorded within equity in accordance with
IAS 30.

Interest, discount received and discount allowed are recognized in the financial statements using the effective
interest rate method.
The recognition of interest income ceases as soon as the receipt of the interest is in doubt. Interest is included
in income thereafter only for performing loans. The income from doubtful claims is included in the statement
of income only when received.

(p) Fees and Commission Income and Expense
Fees and commission income and expense consist of commissions on domestic and foreign payment traffic,
fees arising from guarantees and loans given by the Group and from other services. Fees and commission
income and expense are recognized in the income statement under the same convention as interest income and
expense.
Commission income arising from loans with a maturity date of over one year, is deferred and taken to income
an a straight line basis.

(q) Taxation
Current tax is determined in accordance with the provisions of the relevant legislation of the Republic of
Slovenia. In accordance with such legislation, banks calculate tax on profit as 25 percent of taxable profits.
Deferred taxation is provided using the balance sheet liability method for all temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets or liabilities and their carrying amount for financial reporting purposes.
Currently enacted tax rates are used to determine the deferred tax balance.
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Deferred tax assets relating to the carry forward of unused tax losses are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilized.

(r) Sale and Repurchase Agreements
Securities sold under sale and repurchase agreements (‘repos’) are recorded as assets in the balance sheet
lines ‘Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss’ and ‘Available-for-sale financial asset’ and the
counterpart liability is included in ‘Due to banks’ or ‘Due to customers’ as is appropriate under the relevant
circumstances. Securities purchased under agreements to purchase and resell (‘reverse repos’) are recorded
as assets in the balance sheet line ‘Due from banks’ or ‘Loans and advances to customers’ as appropriate,
with the corresponding decrease in cash being included in ‘Cash and balances with the Central Bank.’ The
difference between the sale and repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued evenly over the life of the
repo agreement using the effective interest rate.
(s) Segmental Reporting
The condensed financial statements of subsidiaries, representing separate segments of the business other than
banking, are not presented due to their immateriality. The Group has no significant operations outside of
Slovenia.
(t) Regulatory requirements
The Group is subject to the regulatory requirements of the Central Central Bank. These regulations include limits
and other restrictions pertaining to minimum capital adequacy requirements, classification of loans and off balance
sheet commitments and provisioning to cover credit risk, liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency position.

(u) Comparatives
Where appropriate, certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the presentation in the
current year.
The opening adjustments in note 14, 16 and 23 primarily represent the reclassification between provisions
(treated as a liability in the audited 2004 financial statements) and impairment or consolidation differences.

(v) Estimation of fair values
The following is the summary of the major methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of
financial instruments as reflected below.
Loans and advances: Fair value is calculated based on discounted expected future principal and interest cash
flows. Loan repayments are assumed to occur at contractual repayment dates, where applicable. For loans
that do not have fixed repayment dates or that are subject to prepayment risk, repayments are estimated based
on experience in previous periods when interest rates were at levels similar to current levels, adjusted for any
differences in interest rate outlook. Expected future cash flows are estimated considering credit risk and any
indication of impairment. Expected future cash flows for homogeneous categories of loans, such as residential
mortgage loans, are estimated on a portfolio basis and discounted at current rates offered for similar loans to
new borrowers with similar credit profiles. Quoted market prices for instruments backed by similar loans,
adjusted for different loan characteristics, are also used in estimating fair value. The estimated fair values of
loans reflect changes in credit status since the loans were made and changes in interest rates in the case of
fixed rate loans.

Long-term debt: Fair value is based on quoted market prices, if available. For debt instruments without quoted
prices, the fair value is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at interest rates available
at the balance sheet date to the Group for new debt of a similar type and remaining maturity period.
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Bank and customer deposits: For demand deposits and deposits with no defined maturities, fair value is taken
to be the amount payable on demand at the balance sheet date. The estimated fair value of fixed-maturity
deposits, including certificates of deposit, is based on discounted cash flows using rates currently offered for
deposits of similar remaining maturities. The value of long term relationships with depositors is not taken into
account in estimating fair values.
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Investments carried at cost and derivatives: Fair value is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet
date without any deduction for transaction costs. If a quoted market price is not available, fair value is estimated
using pricing models or discounted cash flow techniques. Where discounted cash flow techniques are used,
estimated future cash flows are based on management’s best estimates and the discount rate is a market related
rate for a similar instrument at the balance sheet date. Where other pricing models are used, inputs are based
on market related data at the balance sheet date.

3. Net interest income
in millions of SIT

Interest income
- Cash and balances with the Central Bank
- Loans to banks
- Loans and advances to customers
- Securities
- Other
Total interest income
Interest expense
- Balances with the Central Bank
- Bank deposits
- Customer deposits
- Debt securities
- Other borrowed funds
- Other
Total interest expense
Net interest income

2005

2004

933
1,367
23,862
10,426
972
37,560

353
538
23,911
12,273
1,055
38,130

2
275
10,705
3,494
2,108
136
16,720

9
685
13,097
2,738
1,450
161
18,140

20,840

19,990

4. Net fee and commission income
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in millions of SIT

Fee and commission income
- Guarantees given by the Group
- Domestic payment traffic
- Foreign payment traffic
- Intermediary and commission services
- Securities services
- Commission from loans
- Administrative services
- Depot and vault
- Other services
Total fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
- Domestic banking services
- Foreign payment traffic
- Foreign exchange services
- Stock exchange services
- Domestic payment traffic
- Other services
Total fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income

2005

2004

581
3,654
986
20
12
1,358
4,487
5
53
11,156

590
3,200
1,013
27
168
891
3,941
5
46
9,881

1,371
408
143
31
184
246
2,383
8,773

1,290
313
109
49
109
214
2,084
7,797

5. Income from associates and other income from subsidiaries
in millions of SIT

Zavarovalnica Maribor d.d.
Adria Bank AG
Moja naložba d.d.
City MB d.o.o.
KBM Infond d.o.o.
Total

2005
1,287
111
(12)
3
1,389

2004
1,077
57
(32)
2
2
1,104

6. Net trading income
in millions of SIT

Net realised gains on foreign exchange
Net realised gains on derivative financial instruments
Net unrealised gains/(losses) on derivative financial instruments
Net realised gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Net unrealised gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Other
Net trading income/expenses

2005
733
0
41
991
2,373
130
4,268

2004
1,183
50
184
786
418
2,621

7. Other operating income
in millions of SIT

Income from non-banking services
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Other operating income
Other operating income

2005
3,709
94
21
3,824

2004
3,711
134
24
3,869
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Other operating income consists of income from renting business facilities, POS terminals, recreation facilities,
apartments and other income.

8. General administrative expenses
in millions of SIT

Employee costs
- salaries
- social security costs
- other employee costs
Material costs
Service costs
- operating lease
- professional services
- maintenance
- advertising and promotion
- insurance costs
- educational costs
- other
Total general administrative costs
Salaries of the Management Board
The average number of employees during 2005 was 1,830 (2004: 1,859).

2005

2004

8,713
1,342
1,724
1,147

8,517
1,321
1,739
870

737
292
1,445
1,133
173
165
3,679
20,550
324

681
285
1,678
916
116
129
3,580
19,832
319

9. Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation of property and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets
Total depreciation and amortization

in millions of SIT

2005
1,536
584
2,120
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10. Impairment losses
Write-down
Balance sheet items
Due from Banks
Due from Banks
Due from Banks - specific provision - legal cases
Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to customers - write off
Loans and advances to customers - spec. provision - suit
Loans and advances to customers - spec. provision - other
Other assets
Other assets
Other assets - write off
Other assets - other
Off balance sheet items
Total provision for losses

2004
2,232
995
3,227
in millions of SIT

2005

2004

643
325
318
3,812
2,398
207
372
835
301
175
90
36
366
5,122

48
5,030

643

(641)
5,080

11. Income tax expense
in millions of SIT

Current tax expense
Deferred tax expense
Balance sheet tax
Total
Income before tax
Prima facie tax calculated at a tax rate of 25% (2004:25%)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Deferred tax expense
Tax expense

2005
2,500
389
0
2,889

2004
1,603
198
1,712
3,513

10,865
2,716
(216)
389
2,889

6,341
1,587
1,728
198
3,513

12. Deferred income taxes
in millions of SIT

Deferred tax assets
- from striking deposits
- from legal cases
- from financial instruments
- from other
- from derivative financial instruments
- from fee
Deferred tax liabilities
- from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- from derivative financial instruments
- from rated credit client’s (per Central Bank regulation)
Net deferred tax liabilities

2005
545
265
20
28
39
(4)
197
934
721
6
207
(389)

2004
110
0
0
0
0
(53)
163
308
105
(7)
210
(198)

2005
2004
Cash on hand
8,237
7,179
Balances with the Central Bank
9,754
20,653
Total cash and balances with the Central Bank
17,991
27,832
The Group was required to maintain an obligatory reserve with the Central Bank, relative to the volume and
structure of its customers’ deposits. Balances with the Central Bank included obligatory reserve deposits of
SIT 5,409 million (2004: SIT 9,567million). These funds are not available to finance the Group’s day to day
operations.
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13. Cash and balances with the Central Bank

14. Due from other banks
in millions of SIT

Placements with other banks
Loans and advances to other banks
Total
Less impairment
Total net of impairment
Movements in impairment were as follows:
Balance at 1 January
Opening adjustment
Increase in impairment (Note 10)
Decrease in impairment (Note 10)
Balance at 31 December

2005
56,651
23,231
79,882
(578)
79,304

2004
31,616
19,878
51,494
(253)
51,241

253
7
416
(98)
578

56
216
61
(80)
253

15. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for trading financial assets
in millions of SIT

Shares and participation certificates
Debt securities
Fixed income debt securities
- Bonds
- Certificate of deposits
- Treasury bills
Variable income debt securities
- Bonds
Total held for trading financial assets

2005
8,339
39,903

2004
1,641
2,907

25,899

2,443
50
414

14,004
48,242

4,548

Held for trading shares and participation certificates comprise:
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in millions of SIT

Shares and participation certificates in Slovenian Tolars
- listed
- unlisted
Shares and participation certificates in other currencies
- listed
Total shares and participation certificates held for trading

2005

2004

7,643
562

912
621

134
8,339

108
1,641

Held for trading shares and participation certificates, allocated by issuer comprise:

in millions of SIT

- Domestic financial institutions
- Other money institutions
- Foreign non-financial institutions
- Other domestic entities
- Foreign financial institutions
Total shares and participation certificates held for trading

2005
2,962
15
5,362
8,339

2004
316
21
1,199
105
1,641

Held for trading debt securities comprise:
in millions of SIT

Fixed income debt securities
- Slovene Tolars
- Other currencies
Total held for trading debt securities

2005

2004

1,615
38,288
39,903

2,906
1
2,907

Held for trading debt securities, allocated by issuer, comprise:
in millions of SIT

Held for trading debt securities issued by:
- Domestic financial institutions
- Domestic state institutions
- Other foreign entities
- Other domestic entities
Total held for trading debt securities

2005

2004

1,050
565
37,855
433
39,903

245
2,343
319
2,907

16. Loans and advances to customers
2004
14,383
490

Overdrafts
Credit cards
Short term loans
- Slovene Tolars
- Other currencies
Long term loans
- Slovene Tolars
- Other currencies
Claims from granted guarantees
Gross loans and advances

123,714
99,299

142,211
66,629

122,849
83,283
1,053
446,687

113,003
46,611
1,095
384,422

Impairment
Net loans and advances

(35,134)
411,553

(32,736)
351,686
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15,923
566
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in millions of SIT

Movements in impairment were as follows
in millions of SIT

2005
32,736
(250)
19,190
(16,542)
35,134

Balance at 1 January
Opening adjustment
Doubtful debts, impairment made
Recoveries and releases
Balance at 31 December

2004
25,795
2,705
19,461
(15,225)
32,736

Loan portfolio by sectors was as follows
in millions of SIT

Non-financial corporations
General government
Financial institutions
Citizens
Non-residents
Non-profit institutions serving households
Gross loans and advances

260,044
6,178
13,935
152,585
12,944
1,001
446,687

Impairment
Net loans and advances

(35,134)
411,553

2005
58.2
1.4
3.1
34.2
2.9
0.2
100.00

232,868
7,560
12,502
123,892
6,937
663
384,422

2004
60.6
2.0
3.2
32.2
1.8
0.2
100.00

(32,736)
351,686

Loans guaranteed by the Republic of Slovenia or Slovenian banks:
in millions of SIT

Republic of Slovenia guarantees
Slovenian bank’s guarantees
Total

2005
15,773
522
16,295

2004
15,378
307
15,685

17. Available-for-sale financial assets

89 /

Nova Kreditna banka Maribor d.d. / Annual Report 2005

in millions of SIT

Bonds
- Fixed yield
- Variable yield
Treasury bills with fixed yield
Other bills with fixed yield - cash certificate
Shares
Certificate of deposit with fixed yield
Other
Total available-for-sale financial assets

2005

2004

50,808
19,732
209
23,803
94,552

10,519
49,998
12,410
2,798
6,716
317
105
82,863

Available-for-sale financial assets by currency comprise:
in millions of SIT

Bonds
- Slovene Tolars
- Other currencies
Treasury bills in Slovene Tolars
Other bills in Slovene Tolars - cash certificate
Shares issued in Slovene Tolars
Certificate of deposit with fixed yield in Slovene Tolars
Other
Total available-for-sale debt financial assets

2005

2004

59,126
11,414
209
23,803
94,552

41,119
19,398
12,410
2,798
6,716
317
105
82,863

Available-for-sale debt financial assets allocated by issuer, comprise:
in millions of SIT

- Domestic state institutions
- Central Bank
- Domestic financial institutions
- Other domestic entities
- Foreign institutions
Total available-for-sale debt financial assets

2005
53,635
23,803
9,171
5,079
2,864
94,552

2004
50,729
12,410
4,726
4,230
10,768
82,863

18. Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity debt investments comprise:
Variable yield debt securities
- Slovene Tolars
- Other currencies
Fixed income debt securities
- Slovene Tolars
- Other currencies
Total held-to-maturity debt investments

2004

21,659
45,837

35,257
27,208

-

80,702

52,474
119,970

295
143,462

2005

2004

45,691
146

27,062
146

41,912
32,221
119,970

60,252
56,002
143,462
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Bonds
- Fixed yield bonds
- Variable yield bonds
Treasury bills
- Fixed yield treasury bills
Other eligible bills
- Fixed yield other eligible bills
Total held-to-maturity investments

2005
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in millions of SIT

Held-to-maturity investments, allocated by issuer, comprise:
in millions of SIT

- State institutions in the Republic of Slovenia
- Central Bank
- Domestic financial institutions
- Other domestic non-financial institutions
- Foreign institutions
Total held-to-maturity debt investments

2005
64,521
51,721
1,089
1,723
916
119,970

2004
61,454
80,702
336
824
146
143,462

19. Investments in associates and other investments
Investments in associated companies and other investments comprise:
in millions of SIT

Shares in associated companies
Other investments
Total investments in associates and other investments

2005
6,257
4,497
10,754

2004
4,929
4,358
9,287
in millions of SIT

Associated companies
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Zavarovalnica Maribor d.d.
Moja naložba d.d.
Adria Bank AG
City MB d.o.o.
Total associated companies

Group’s ownership
interest and voting
power in %
49.96
45.00
25.04
31.15

Net book value
2005

Net book value
2004

4,235
194
1,828
6,257

2,972
161
1,768
28
4,929

Net book value
2005

Net book value
2004

27
0
0
0
306
70
121
23
90
125
265
252
0
0
15
21
7
10
10
14
1
1,084
517
1,338
170
26
5
0
0
4,497

11
7
2
306
70
121
25
90
118
265
15
21
7
10
10
27
2
1,084
533
1,404
198
25
5
1
1
4,358

20. Unconsolidated investment in subsidiary
in millions of SIT

Country of
incorporation
Slovenia

2005

2004

Net book value

Net book value

Hotel Slavija d.d.
442
438
Total
442
438
The company Hotel Slavija d.d., 99.09 percent (2004: 98.99 percent) owned by Nova KBM d.d., is not
consolidated due to immateriality.
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Group’s ownership
Companies with minority interest
interest and voting
power in %
Banka Celje d.d.
0.09
Banka Vipa d.d.
0.05
Zveza hran. kred. služb d.d. LJ
0.01
Hranilnica LON d.d.
0.89
LHB Internationale Handelsbank AG
2.40
FMR d.o.o. Idrija
3.40
ISKRA Avtoelektrika d.d. Šempeter
1.50
IEDC Poslovna šola Bled d.o.o.
6.83
BANKART d.o.o. Ljubljana
14.01
Perutnina Ptuj d.d.
0.84
Marles Holding d.d. Maribor
11.56
Cestno podjetje Maribor d.d.
10,62
TVI Majšperk d.o.o.
40,6
Steklarna Rogaška
30
Zavarovalnica TRIGLAV d.d. LJ.
0.06
KDD Centralna klirinško dep.dr. d.d.
4.57
Pozavarovalnica SAVA d.d. Ljubljana
0.00
Slovenska izvozna družba d.d. Ljubljana
0.07
S.W.I.F.T. Scrl
0.02
Vino Brežice d.d.
4.17
Medicinsko rehabilitacijski center d.o.o.
8.95
INFOND ID d.d. Maribor
8.91
INFOND ID 1 d.d. Maribor
9.10
INFOND HOLDING d.d. Maribor
8.93
INFOND HOLDING 1 d.d. Maribor
9.05
Ljubljanska borza d.d. Ljubljana
4.60
City MB d.o.o.
6.53
MEBLO PTRC
0.17
TTRC KOBARID
10.00
Total companies with minority interest

Nova Kreditna banka Maribor d.d. / Annual Report 2005

in millions of SIT

21. Intangible assets
in millions of SIT

Capitalised costs
Software of investments in
licences foreign tangible
assets

Other
tangible
assets

Total

1,102
1,059

230
99

7,653
67
1,183

(1,189)

2

0

972

(99)
232

(281)
8,622

0

56
68
0
(65)
59

3,380
74
584
(156)
3,882

972

173

4,740

1,102

174

4,273

Construction
Goodwill
in progress

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2005
5,595
672
54
67
Adjustment
Additions
25
Transfers from
1,177
10
implementation
Disposals
(28)
(33)
(121)
31 December 2005
6,769
649
0
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2005
2,826
465
33
6
Additions
Charge for the year
547
37
Disposals
(27)
(31)
(33)
31 December 2005
3,352
471
0
Net book value
3,417
178
0
31 December 2005
Net book value 31 Dec. 2004
2,769
207
21
None of the Group 's intangible assets are pledged as collateral.

in millions of SIT
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Capitalised costs
Software of investments in
licences foreign tangible
assets

Construction
Goodwill
in progress

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2004
3,779
565
Additions
808
114
Transfers from
1,066
15
implementation
Disposals
(58)
(22)
31 December 2004
5,595
672
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2004
1,468
402
Additions
500
Charge for the year
916
65
Disposals
(58)
(2)
31 December 2004
2,826
465
Net book value
2,769
207
31 December 2004
Net book value 1 Jan. 2004
2,311
163
None of the Group’s intangible assets are pledged as collateral.

Other
tangible
assets

Total

54
-

896
1,294

1
234

5,295
2,450

-

(1,081)

-

-

54

(7)
1,102

(5)
230

(92)
7,653

22
11
33

-

56
56

1,892
556
992
(60)
3,380

21

1,102

174

4,273

32

896

1

3,403

22. Property and equipment
in millions of SIT

Land and
Construction
Computers Other assets
Buildings
in progress

Cost or valuation
14,919
9,271
At 1 January 2005
Transfers
(18)
(2)
Additions
892
17
Transfers from implementation
1,934
1,563
Disposals
(204)
(457)
31 December 2005
17,523
10,392
Accumulated depreciation
5,024
8,465
At 1 January 2005
Transfers
(1)
(2)
0
Additions
32
Charge for the year
454
531
Disposals
(49)
(450)
31 December 2005
5,460
8,544
Net book value
12,063
1,848
31 December 2005
Net book value
9,895
806
31 December 2004
None of the Group’s property and equipment are pledged as collateral.

Total

6,688
20
522
704
(946)
6,988

1,309
0
7,642
(4,201)
(1,300)
3,450

32,187
0
9,073
0
(2,907)
38,353

4,406
3
36
551
(542)
4,454

0

17,895
0
68
1,536
(1,041)
18,458

2,534

3,450

19,895

2,282

1,309

14,292

in millions of SIT

6,014
18
1,045
269
(658)
6,688

277
1,859
(827)
1,309

28,075
5,520
155
(1,563)
32,187

3,885
(1)
365
586
(429)
4,406

-

15,636
1,314
2,232
(1,287)
17,895

2,282

1,309

14,292

2,129

277

12,439
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Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2004
13,365
8,419
4
Transfers
(22)
Additions
1,481
1,135
Transfers from implementation
148
565
Disposals
(53)
(852)
31 December 2004
14,919
9,271
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2004
4,153
7,598
0
1
Transfers
Additions
176
773
Charge for the year
703
943
Disposals
(8)
(850)
31 December 2004
5,024
8,465
Net book value
9,895
806
31 December 2004
Net book value
9,212
821
1 January 2004
None of the Group’s property and equipment is pledged as collateral.

Total
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Land and
Construction
Computers Other Assets
Buildings
in progress

23. Accrued income, other assets and deferred tax assets
in millions of SIT

Accrued interest
Accrued costs and prepayments
Interest receivables
Fees and commissions
Advance payments
Cheques
Inventory
Items in course of payment
Items in course of collection
Positive fair value of derivative financial instruments
Deferred tax assets
Other, of which:
- account receivables
- other receivables
- other
Total
Impairment
Total

2005
4,062
113
2,316
410
139
31
3,700
17,433
198
37
724
5,066
2,421
2,490
155
34,229
(3,065)
31,164

2004
3,124
72
2,211
368
679
34
3,200
13,767
197
24
390
5,739
2,599
3,076
64
29,805
(2,890)
26,915

Deferred tax assets
in millions of SIT
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Deferred tax assets
- from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- from available-for-sale financial assets
- from derivatives
- from accrued fee
Total

2005

2004

40
0
8
676
724

0
215
12
163
390
in millions of SIT

Movements in impairment
Balance at 31 December 2004

2005
2,890

2004
1,624

Opening adjustment
Increase in impairment
Decrease in impairment

(48)
1,200
(977)

1,274
1,136
(1,144)

Balance at 31 December 2005

3,065

2,890

24. Due to other banks
in millions of SIT

On demand
- Slovene Tolars
- Other currencies
Time deposits
- Slovene Tolars
- Other currencies
Total

2005

2004

13
2,084

7
413

3,362
0
5,459

7,924
177
8,521

25. Due to customers
Amounts owed to customers, by type of customer:
in millions of SIT

Non-financial corporations
General government
Other financial institutions
Citizens
Non-residents
Non-profit institutions serving households
Total

Sight
29,971
3,519
448
196,491
2,314
3,198
235,941

2005
Term
56,352
16,224
17,492
224,408
2,619
1,896
318,991
554,932

Sight
24,989
3,310
450
179,221
2,589
2,752
213,311

2004
Term
50,870
11,892
27,377
208,611
3,324
1,634
303,708
517,019

26. Debt securities in issue
in millions of SIT

27. Other borrowed funds
in millions of SIT

Banks
- Slovene Tolars
- Other currencies
Other customers
- Slovene Tolars
- Other currencies
Total

2005

2004

480
100,337

1,094
40,158

4,629
13,385
118,831

5,840
5,550
52,642
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2004
4,820
35,420
40,240
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Certificates of deposits
Bonds
Total

2005
8,774
40,753
49,527

28. Accruals, provisions, other liabilities and deferred tax liabilities
in millions of SIT

2005
2,341
1,865
3,298
488
6
305
5,613
63
765
1,715
30
2,705
7,699
574
1,670
5,455
26,893

Creditors
Current taxes
Accrued interest
Liabilities to employees
Assets in course of payment
Payments received in advance
Other provisions
Deferred income
Cash in transit
Deferred tax liabilities (see below)
Derivative financial instruments
Accrued fee
Other, of which
- liabilities from interest
- liabilities from fee - accrued
- other liabilities
Total

2004
1,198
1,387
2,499
536
1
265
4,583
75
727
1,582
48
1,661
6,176
914
9
5,253
20,738

Other includes liabilities due to payment of money, the postal orders in the national payment system, deferred
income deriving from liabilities repurchased by the Group.

Deferred tax liabilities
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in millions of SIT

Deferred tax liabilities
- from available-for-sale financial assets
- from derivatives
- from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- from rated credit client’s
Total
Other provisions

2005

2004

497
9
792
417
1,715

1,211
3
158
210
1,582
in millions of SIT

Balance at 31 December 2003
Opening adjustment
Change of provision
Balance at 31 December 2004

Off balance sheet
exposures
4,649
1,045
(519)
4,130

Opening adjustment
Change of provision
Balance at 31 December 2005

84
218
4,432

Other

Total

298
155
453

4,947
1,045
(364)
4,583

18
710
1,181

102
928
5,613

29. Subordinated liabilities
in millions of SIT

1. Subordinated notes
2. Subordinated loans

3.Subordinated notes

Due Currency
2009
EUR

Interest rate
6M EURIBOR+1.7%

2011

TOM + 1.6%
TOM + 3.0%
3M EURIBOR+1.1%
TOM + 6.0%
TOM + 4.7%

Total

EUR
SIT
SIT

2005
7,187
300
150
11,979
1,500
1,000
22,116

2004
7,192
6
450
11,987
1,500
1,000
22,135

30. Commitments and contingent liabilities
a) Financial commitments and contingencies
2005

2004

11,528
21,584

13,929
19,042

4,720
6,276

4,508
5,413

2,265
-

1,575
17

-

-

91,131
1,985
78
139,567

81,097
56
125,637
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Guarantees and standby letters of credit in Slovene Tolars
- Short-term
- Long-term
Guarantees and standby letters of credit in other currencies
- Short-term
- Long-term
Foreign exchange documentary letters of credit
- Short-term
- Long-term
Documentary letters of credit in Slovene Tolars
- Short-term
- Long-term
Contingencies
- Short-term
- Long-term
Financial derivative instruments
Total
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in millions of SIT

b) Notional amount of derivative financial instruments
in millions of SIT

Forward contracts for hedging
Forward contracts for trading
FX Swaps
TOTAL

in tolars in foreign currency
813
4,047
13,371
3,114
13,371
7,974

2005
Total
813
4,047
16,485
21,345
in millions of SIT

Forward contracts for hedging
Forward contracts for trading
FX Swaps
TOTAL

in tolars in foreign currency
14
907
1,130
34,292
13,905
35,436
14,812

2004
Total
921
1,130
48,197
50,248

31. Minority interest
in millions of SIT

Balance at 1 January
Increase
Decrease
Balance at 31 December

2005
1,911
27
1,938

2004
805
1,106
1,911
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32. Share capital
The total authorised number of ordinary shares at year-end 31 December 2005 was 2,919,748 shares (2004:
2,919,748 shares) with a par value of SIT 2,000 (2004: 2,000) per share. The total issued and fully paid share
capital is SIT 5,839,496 (2004: SIT 5,839,496). There was no share premium on issue. The Group does not hold
treasury shares. The distribution of ordinary shares is as follows:
Government of the Republic of Slovenia
Compensation Fund of the Republic of Slovenia
Capital Fund of the Republic of Slovenia

2005
2,639,748 shares
140,000 shares
140,000 shares

2004
2,639,748 shares
140,000 shares
140,000 shares

33. Dividends per share
Dividends payable are not accounted for until they have been approved at the Annual General Meeting. At
the Bank’s Annual General Meeting in July 2005, a dividend of SIT 1,000 million (2004: SIT 1,667 million)
was declared and paid during 2005. No accrual has been made in respect of the dividend for the year ended 31
December 2005.
In accordance with the decision made at the 12th Assembly of Nova KBM d.d. of 19 July 2005, the Group paid
dividends to shareholders for the year 2004 in the gross amount of SIT 342,50 per share.

34. Foreign exchange position
The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its
financial position and cash flows.
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The table below provides an analysis of the Group’s main currency exposures. The remaining currencies are
shown within ‘Other currencies.’ The Group monitors its foreign exchange (FX) position for compliance with
the regulatory requirements of the Central Bank established in respect of limits on open positions. The Group
seeks to match assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies to avoid foreign currency exposures.

in millions of SIT
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Assets
Cash and balances with the Central Bank
Due from other banks
Financial assets at fair value throuhg profit or loss
Loans and advances to customers
Available-for-sale financial assets
Investments held-to-maturity
Investments in associates and other investments
Unconsolidated investment in subsidiary
Intangible assets
Property and equipment
Accrued income, other assets and deferred tax assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Due to other banks
Due to customers
Debt securities in issue
Other borrowed funds
Accruals, provisions,other liabilities and deferred tax
liabilities
Subordinated liabilities
Total liabilities
Minority interest
Total shareholders’ equity
Net FX Position at 31 December 2005
Off-balance-sheet assets1
Off-balance-sheet liabilities1
Net off-balance-sheet FX position at 31 December 2005
TOTAL NET FX POSITION AT 31 DECEMBER 2005
Total assets at 31 December 2004
Total liabilities at 31 December 2004
Minority interest
Total shareholders’ equity
Net FX position at 31 December 2004
Net off-balance-sheet FX position at 31 December 2004
TOTAL NET FX POSITION AT 31 DECEMBER 2004

EUR

USD

Other

SIT

Total

1,333
20,192
37,952
156,742
11,272
26,216
2,144
2,362
258,213

124
5,816
6
3,881
142
6,151
153
16,273

249
5,672
642
8
6,571

16,285
47,624
10,284
250,288
83,138
87,603
8,610
442
4,740
19,895
28,641
557,550

17,991
79,304
48,242
411,553
94,552
119,970
10,754
442
4,740
19,895
31,164
838,607

1,625
131,133
111,382

414
14,629
984

46
5,071
1,357

3,374
404,099
49,527
5,108

5,459
554,932
49,527
118,831

1,331

227

19

25,316

26,893

19,166
264,637
(6,424)
13,637
5,530
8,107
1,683
186,045
188,325
(2,280)
18,685
16,405

16,254
19
2,444
2,444
19
16,894
16,704
190
190

6,493
78
78
5,114
5,516
(402)
(402)

2,950
490,374
1,938
58,911
6,327
3,830
11,930
(8,100)
(1,773)
508,784
450,750
1,911
53,631
2,492
(20,034)
(17,542)

22,116
777,758
1,938
58,911
19,911
19,904
7
7
716,837
661,295
1,911
53,631
(1,349)
(1,349)

Off-balance-sheet assets and liabilities include amounts receivable and payable arising from spot and forward
transactions

1

35. Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market
interest rates. The length of time for which the rate of interest is fixed on a financial instrument, therefore,
indicates to what extent it is exposed to interest rate risk. The table below provides information on the extent of
the Group’s interest rate exposure based either on the contractual maturity date of its financial instruments or,
in the case of instruments that reprice to a market rate of interest before maturity, the next repricing date. It is
the policy of the Group to manage the exposure to fluctuations in net interest income arising from changes in
interest rates by the degree of repricing mismatch in the balance sheet. Those assets and liabilities that do not
have contractual maturity date or are not interest bearing are grouped in ‘maturity undefined’ category. The
next repricing period for each respective balance sheet category is as follows:
in millions of SIT

Total

-

-

-

-

7,583
1,527

17,991
79,304

-

269

10,447

28,890

5,240

48,242

14,121
20,918

33,119
209
12,023

20,574
6,449
4,949

2,900
3,692
18,099

-

-

-

-

10,754

10,754

-

-

-

-

442

442

-

-

-

-

4,740
19,895

4,740
19,895

1,075

1,744

5,804

2,935

14,764

31,164

36,114

47,364

48,223

56,516

65,162 838,607

1,342
64,944
506

631
39,595
3,050
1,925

1,147
6,302
5,764
368

553
4,000
39

284
5,459
1,143 554,932
- 49,527
260 118,831

144

442

1,970

-

66,936

45,643

1,500
17,051

1,300
5,892

Minority interest
Total shareholders’ Funds
On-balance-sheet interest rate
(32,307) (30,822)
sensitivity gap at 31 December 2005

-

-

-

1,721

31,172

217 411,553
0 94,552
- 119,970

23,014

26,893

- 22,116
24,701 777,758
1,938
58,911

1,938
58,911

50,624 (20,388)

-
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Assets
Cash and balances with the Central Bank 10,408
Due from other banks
77,777
Financial assets at fair value through
3,396
profit or loss
Loans and advances to customers
340,622
Available-for-sale securities
84,202
Held-to-maturity investments
63,981
Investments in associates and other
investments
Unconsolidated investment in
subsidiary
Intangible assets
Property and equipment
Accrued income, other assets and
4,842
deferred tax assets
Total assets
585,228
Liabilities
Due to other banks
2,055
Due to customers
442,395
Debt securities in issue
36,713
Other borrowed funds
115,733
Accruals, provisions,other liabilities
1,323
and deferred tax liabilities
Subordinated liabilities
19,316
Total liabilities
617,535

Over 5 Maturity
years undefined
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Up to 1 1 to 3 3 months 1 year to
month months to 1 year 5 years

Up to 1 1 to 3 3 months 1 year to
month months to 1 year 5 years
-

Off-balance-sheet interest rate assets
Off-balance-sheet interest rate
liabilities
Off-balance-sheet interest rate
sensitivity gap at 31 December 2005
TOTAL INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY
(32,307) (30,822)
GAP AT 31 DECEMBER 2005
Total assets at 31 December 2004
Total liabilities at 31 December 2004
Minority interest
Total Shareholders’ Funds
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-

-

- 868,658 868,658

-

-

-

1,721

-

-

31,172

50,624 (20,388)

-

464,268
522,521

66,702
58,757

61,486
38,000

44,260
17,119

21,452
5,803

-

-

-

-

-

7,945

23,486

27,141

-

-

-

7,945

23,486

27,141

On-balance-sheet interest rate
(58,253)
sensitivity gap at 31 December 2004
Off-balance-sheet interest rate
sensitivity gap at 31 December 2004
TOTAL INTEREST RATE
SENSITIVITY GAP AT
(58,253)
31 DECEMBER 2004
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Over 5 Maturity
Total
years undefined
- 868,658 868,658

58,669 716,837
18,095 661,295
1,911
53,631

1,911
53,631

15,649 (14,968)

-

-

-

-

15,649 (14,968)

-

Average interest rates as of 31 December 2005 and 2004
The average interest rates for December 2005 and 2004 calculated as a weighted average for each asset and
liability category.

Assets
Cash and balances with ţhe Central
Bank
Due from other banks
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Loans and advances to customers
Available-for-sale and Held tomaturity financial asset
Total assets

1.0

-

4.3

3.6

-

3.9

6.7

Liabilities

Average rate in 2005
SIT Foreign
currency

Due to other banks

2.2

2.5

Due to customers
Debt securities
in issue

2.4

1.2

5.3

-

3.6

-

-

5.5

2.4

-

-

6.2

3.2

2.7

1.6

Average rate in 2004
SIT
Foreign
currency
1.0

-

4.2

2.1

7.6

3.7

7.8

3.4

7.1

1.5

7.6

2.5

Total liabilities
Liabilities

Average Rate in 2004
SIT Foreign
currency

Due to other banks

4.7

2.6

Due to customers
Debt securities
in issue

3.1

1.0

6.8

-

Total liabilities

3.5

1.4
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Cash and balances with ţhe Central
Bank
Due from other banks
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Loans and advances to customers
Available-for-sale and Held-tomaturity financial asset
Total assets

Average rate in 2005
SIT Foreign
currency
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Assets

36. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is a measure of the extent to which the Group may be required to raise funds to meet its
commitments associated with financial instruments. The Group maintains its liquidity profiles in accordance
with regulations laid down by the Central Bank. The table below provides an analysis of assets, liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period from the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. It is presented under the most prudent consideration of maturity dates where options or repayment
schedules allow for early repayment possibilities. Those assets and liabilities that do not have a contractual
maturity date are grouped together under ‘maturity undefined’ category.
The Group has established its liquidity risk management rules such that it maintains its liquidity profile in
normal conditions (basic liquidity scenario) and in crisis conditions (crisis liquidity scenario). As such, the
Group has defined a set of indicators for which binding limits are established.
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The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources from overnight deposits, current accounts,
maturing deposits, loan drawdowns, guarantees and from margin and other calls on cash-settled derivatives.
The Group does not maintain cash resources to meet all of these needs as experience shows that a minimum
level of reinvestment of maturing funds can be predicted with a high level of certainty. The Group sets limits
on the minimum proportion of maturing funds available to meet such calls and on the minimum level of
interbank and other borrowing facilities that should be in place to cover withdrawals at unexpected levels of
demand.

in millions of SIT

Over 5 Maturity
years undefined

Total

17,991

-

-

-

-

-

17,991

42,811

-

202

36,291

-

-

79,304

48,239

-

3

-

-

-

48,242

30,490
8,001
20,504

47,749
15,801
20,918

132,712
6,426
12,225

131,350
22,680
23,933

69,252
41,644
42,390

-

411,553
94,552
119,970

-

-

-

-

-

10,754

10,754

-

-

-

-

-

442

442

2

940
211

103
3,548

454
1,142

3,243
14,992

-

4,740
19,895

12,874

2,824

4,990

7,478

2,998

-

31,164

180,912

88,443

160,209

223,328

174,519

3,200
340,671
2,156
441

1,343
132,681
3,411

297
62,253
11,158
12,108

619
17,875
25,213
92,186

1,452
11,000
10,685

-

5,459
554,932
49,527
118,831

10,955

2,445

4,147

7,836

1,510

-

26,893

357,423

139,880

89,963

8,687
152,416

13,429
38,076

-

-

-

-

-

(176,511) (51,437)

70,246

70,912

11,196 838,607

22,116
777,758
1,938
58,911

1,938
58,911

136,443 (49,653)

-

133,661
133,661

214,644
214,644

202,809
202,809

174,896
174,896

142,648
142,648

-

868,658
868,658

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
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Minority interest
Total Shareholders Funds
On-balance-sheet liquidity gap
at 31 December 2005
Off-balance-sheet assests1
Off-balance-sheet liabilities1
Off-balance-sheet liquidity gap
at 31 December 2005

Up to 3 3 months 1 year to
months to 1 year 5 years
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Assets
Cash and balances with the
Central Bank
Due from other banks
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Loans and advances to customers
Available-for-sale securities
Held-to-maturity investments
Investments in associates and
other investmensts
Unconsolidated investment in
subsidiary
Intangible assets
Property and equipment
Accrued income, other assets and
deferred tax assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Due to other banks
Due to customers
Debt securities in issue
Other borrowed funds
Accruals, provisions,other liabilities
and deferred tax liabilities
Subordinated liabilities
Total liabilities

On
demand

On
demand

Up to 3 3 months 1 year to
months to 1 year 5 years

Over 5 Maturity
years undefined

Total

70,246

70,912

136,443 (49,653)

-

151,699
72,773
-

178,006
100,853
-

78,926

77,153

-

-

78,926

77,153

TOTAL LIQUIDITY GAP AT
(176,511) (51,437)
31 DECEMBER 2005
Total assets at 31 December 2004
138,940
95,861
Total liabilities at 31 December 2004 331,995 123,770
Minority interest
Total Shareholders Funds
On-balance-sheet liquidity gap
(193,055) (27,909)
at 31 December 2004
Off-balance-sheet liquidity gap
at 31 December 2004
TOTAL LIQUIDITY GAP AT
(193,055) (27,909)
31 DECEMBER 2004

142,606
30,894
-

9,725
1,010
1,911
53,631

716,837
661,295
1,911
53,631

111,712 (46,827)

-

-

-

-

111,712 (46,827)

-

Off-balance-sheet assets and liabilities include amounts receivable and payable arising from FX spot,
forward and option contracts and receivables and payables under guarantees, letters of credit and committed
facilities.

1

37. Market risk
The Group takes on exposure to market risks. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency
and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements. All trading positions
are mark to market daily and most of them are managed by the system of limitation.
The Group also applies a ‘value at risk’ methodology to estimate the market risk of positions held and the
maximum losses expected, based upon a number of assumptions for various changes in market conditions. The
Board of Directors sets limits on the value of risk that may be accepted, which is monitored on a daily basis.
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The daily market value at risk measure (VAR) is an estimate, with a confidence level set at 95 percent, of the
potential loss which might arise if the current positions were to be held unchanged for one business day. The
measurement is structured so that daily losses exceeding the VAR figure should occur, on average, not more
than once every sixty days. Actual outcomes are monitored regularly to test the validity of the assumptions and
parameters/factors used in the VAR calculation.
However, the use of this approach does not prevent losses outside of these limits in the event of more significant
market movements.

38. Concentration of assets and liabilities
in millions of SIT

Geographic region
Slovenia
European Union
Former Yugoslavia
Others
Total

Assets

2005
Liabilities

Assets

2004
Liabilities

747,936
65,331
10,335
15,005
838,607

711,380
109,521
3,108
14,598
838,607

679,091
24,973
4,521
8,252
716,837

651,055
49,991
2,102
13,689
716,837

39. Related party transactions
a) by Balance Sheet as of 31 December 2005

by Balance Sheet as of 31 December 2004
Due from other banks
Loans and advances to customers
Securities available-for-sale and investments
held-to-maturity
Investments in associates and subsidiares together
Due to other banks
Due to customers
Debt securities in issue

b) by Income Statement as of 31 December 2005
Net interest income
Dividend income
Net fee and commissions income
Net profit from financial operations
Costs of services

by Income Statement as of 31 December 2004
Net interest income
Dividend income
Net fee and commissions income
Net profit from financial operations
Costs of services

Associates
1,766
-

-

762

4,865
28
1,170
50

6,257
1,355
3,982

Subsidiaries
360
16,842

Associates
55
518

-

714

6,123
14
452
55

5,006
1,005
1,311

Subsidiaries
730
1,026
85
(8)
81

Associates
(128)
50
1,763
0
0

Subsidiaries
538
1,532
83
64
77

Associates
39
74
52
2
51
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Due from other banks
Loans and advances to customers
Securities available-for-sale and investments held-tomaturity
Investments in associates and subsidiares together
Due to other banks
Due to customers
Debt securities in issue

Subsidiaries
4,394
18,095
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in millions of SIT

Bank Financial
Statements Prepared
in Accordance with
International
Financial Reporting
Standards for the
Year Ended
31 December 2005

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S
RESPONSIBILITIES
Management of the Bank is responsible for preparing each year financial statements that present fairly the
state of affairs of the Bank and its subsidiaries as of the end of the financial year and the profit and loss for
that period.
Management confirms that suitable accounting policies have been used and applied consistently and reasonable
and prudent judgements and estimates have been made in the preparation of the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2005. Management also confirms that all relevant and applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards have been applied and that the financial statements have been prepared that
going concern basis is appropriate.
Management is responsible for keeping proper accounting records, for taking reasonable steps to safeguard the
assets of the Bank and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
The Management Board
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Matjaž Kovačič
President
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Manja Skernišak
Member
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF Nova KREDITNA
BANKA MARIBOR d.d., MARIBOR

BANK INCOME STATEMENT

Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income
Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income
Dividend income
Income from associates
Income from subsidiaries
Gain from sale / joining of subsidiaries
Net trading income / expenses
Other operating income
Operating income
General administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Other expenses
Operating expenses
Impairment losses
Profit before tax

2005

2004

3

31,533
(13,811)
17,722

31,039
(14,471)
16,568

4

8,619
(1,104)
7,515

7,648
(793)
6,855

380
1,386
539
178
4,379
1,551
33,650

179
1,102
680
1,665
1,241
28,290

(16,286)
(1,629)
(591)
(18,506)
(4,127)
11,017

(15,685)
(2,580)
(235)
(18,500)
(3,989)
5,801

(2,698)
8,319

(3,096)
2,705

5
6
7
8
9
10

Income tax expense
11
Profit for the period
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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in millions of SIT

BANK BALANCE SHEET
in millions of SIT

Notes
Assets
Cash and balances with the Central Bank
Due from other banks
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Loans and advances to customers
Available-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-maturity investments
Investments in associates and other investments
Investments in subsidiaries
Intangible assets
Property and equipment
Accrued income, other assets and deferred tax assets
Total assets
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Liabilities
Due to other banks
Due to customers
Debt securities in issue
Other borrowed funds
Accruals, provisions, other liabilities and deferred tax
liabilities
Subordinated liabilities
Total liabilities

2005

2004

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

12,838
59,642
45,706
386,646
94,552
76,079
7,632
5,316
4,234
13,496
11,373
717,514

20,134
30,023
135
331,497
82,863
101,801
5,987
6,495
3,729
11,048
10,324
604,036

24
25
26
27

4,519
468,261
37,313
110,907

8,238
434,789
29,693
43,909

28

18,335

14,975

29

19,166
658,501

19,185
550,789

5,840
7,498
45,675
59,013
717,514

5,840
5,157
42,250
53,247
604,036

Shareholders’ equity
Share capital
Retained profits
Reserves
Equity attributable to equity holders
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

The Management Board confirms Bank’s Financial Statements and related Notes to Financial Statements.
Manja Skernišak
Member of the Management Board

Matjaž Kovačič
President and CEO

BANK STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
in millions of SIT

Statutory
Revaluation Retained
/ legal
reserve
profits
reserve

5,600
240
-

7,414
-

0
1,567
-

28,716
-

-

-

-

-

Total

-

1,294
-

5,733
(1,716)
2,705

48,757
1,807
(1,716)
2,705

-

-

1,694

-

1,694

-

1,565

(1,565)

-

2,988
-

5,157
(1,055)
8,319

53,247
(1,055)
8,319

(1,498)

-

(1,498)

1,490

(4,173)
(750)
7,498

59,013

Balance at 31 December 2004
5,840
7,414
1,567 30,281
Increase of share capital
Dividend for 2004
Profit for the period
Revaluation of available-for-sale
financial instruments
Transfer to statutory / legal reserve
4,173
Increase of general banking reserve
750
Balance at 31 December 2005
5,840
8,164
1,567 34,454
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Balance at 31 December 2003
Increase of share capital
Dividend for 2003
Profit for the period
Revaluation of available-for-sale
financial instruments
Transfer to statutory / legal
reserve

Capital
reserve
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General
Share
banking
capital
reserve

BANK CASH FLOW STATEMENT
in millions of SIT
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2005

Cash flows from / (used in) operating activities:
Net income before tax
11,017
Investment in associates
(1,386)
Depreciation and amortization
1,629
Gain on disposal of fixed assets
(24)
Impairment loss
4,127
Dividend received
(380)
Income tax expense
(2,698)
Cash flows from operating profits before changes in
12,285
operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Cash and balances with the Central Bank
2,064
Due from other banks
(9,221)
Loans and advances to customers
(57,857)
Available for sale financial assets
(13,187)
Held to maturity investments
25,722
Other assets, including tax assets
(1,184)
Due to other banks
(3,719)
Due to customers
33,472
Accruals, provisions and other liabilities
2,347
Subordinated liabilities
(19)
Net cash used in operating activities
(9,297)
Cash flows from / (used in) investing activities:
Acquisition of property and equipment
(4,704)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
146
Investments in subsidiaries and associates
920
Dividends received from associates
380
Net cash flows from investing activities
(3,258)
Cash flows from / (used in) financing activities:
Issue of share capital
Debt securities in issue
7,620
Other borrowed funds
66,998
Dividends paid
(1,055)
Net cash flows from financing activities
73,563
Increase in cash
61,008
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
31,538
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
92,546
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2004
5,801
(1,102)
2,580
(24)
3,989
(179)
(3,096)
7,969
(745)
(11,810)
(59,884)
4,076
12,270
241
(2,768)
25,659
468
12,053
(12,471)
(2,501)
104
(775)
179
(2,993)
1,807
11,915
8,992
(1,716)
20,998
5,534
26,004
31,538

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF Nova KREDITNA
BANKA MARIBOR d.d., MARIBOR
1. General Information and basis of presentation
Nova Kreditna banka Maribor d.d. (“the Bank”) is a Slovenian universal commercial bank incorporated under
the laws of Slovenia. The majority shareholder is the Republic of Slovenia, who owns 90.4 percent of the shares.
Remaining 9.6 percent is split equally between the Kapitalska družba d.d. (Capital Fund of the Republic of
Slovenia) and the Slovenska odškodninska družba d.d. (Compensation Fund of the Republic of Slovenia).
The registered office is of Nova Kreditna banka Maribor d.d. (“Nova KBM”) is Maribor Ulica Vita Kraigherja 4.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Directors on 10 May 2006.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Statement of Compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
as promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), and the interpretations issued by the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) of the IASB Standing Interpretations
Committee of the IASB.
(b) Basis of Preparation
The reporting currency used in financial statements is Slovene Tolars (“SIT”) with rounding to the nearest
SIT million, unless otherwise specified.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. These estimates are based on the information available as of the date of the financial
statements. The subsequent actual results could thus differ from those estimates.

(d) Introduction of amended IFRS
In 2004, the Bank applied amended IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005 (earlier application permitted). The first application
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(c) Basis of Accounting
The financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis of accounting whereby the effects of transactions
and other events are recognized when they occur and they are reported in financial statements of the periods
to which they relate, and on the going concern basis. The financial statements consist of: the balance sheet,
income statement, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement and explanatory notes to the financial
statements.
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The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis, modified by the revaluation of
available-for-sale investment securities, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and derivative
financial instruments.

of amended IAS 39 permits an entity to designate a previously recognised financial asset as a financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss or available-for-sale financial assets, which resulted in the reclassification
of the Bank’s financial assets.

(e) Foreign Currency Translation
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into SIT at year end at the
mid exchange rate declared by the Central Bank (“CB”) on the balance sheet date. Income and expenses
denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in Slovenian Tolars in the underlying accounting system of the
Bank and are therefore reported in financial statements at the mid exchange rate of the Central Bank prevailing
at the transaction date. Gains and losses arising on monetary assets from movements in exchange rates are
included in ‘Net trading income’.
(f) Financial instruments
In preparing accounting and financial statements for 2004 the Bank applied the amended IAS 39.
By applying this standard, the Bank reclassified the majority of its Securities held for trading as ‘Securitiesavailable-for sale’. A portion of Investments held-to-maturity was also reclassified into ‘Securitiesavailable-for sale’. In the interest of consistency as well as for comparative porposes the standard was
applied retrospectively.
(i) Classification
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets (equity and debt securities, treasury
bills) acquired by the Bank for the purpose of generating a profit from short-term price fluctuations.
Interest earned on trading securities is reported as ‘Interest income’ in the income statement. Dividends
on trading securities are recorded when declared and included as a receivable in the balance sheet under
‘Prepayments, accrued income and other assets’ and in ‘Dividend income’ in the income statement.
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All purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss that require delivery within the
time frame established by regulation or market convention (‚regular way purchases and sales’) are recognised
as spot transactions. Transactions that do not meet the ‘regular way’ settlement criterion are treated as financial
derivatives.
Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the Bank has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. This portfolio consist of treasury bills and
debt securities. Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortized cost.
The Bank assesses on a regular basis whether there is any objective evidence that an investment held to maturity
may be impaired. A financial asset is impaired if its carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount. A financial asset’s carrying amount is the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted
at the financial instrument’s original effective interest rate. The amount of the impairment loss for assets
carried at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the financial instrument’s original effective interest rate.
Any impairment losses recognised during the reporting period are included in the income statement as an
‚Impairment loss‘.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are those securities that are not classified as Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss or Held-to-maturity investments. This portfolio consist of equity securities and debt
securities.
Interest earned on securities available-for-sale is reported as ‘Interest income’ in the income statement.
Dividends on securities available-for-sale are recorded at declaration date and are included as a receivable in
the balance sheet line ‘Prepayments, accrued income and other assets’ and in ‘Dividend income’ in the income
statement. Upon payment of the dividend, the receivable is offset against the cash received.
Available-for-sale financial assets are stated at fair value by applying a valuation technique that take into
account the scope and the depth of the respective market.
Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of securities classified as availablefor-sale financial assets are recognised directly in equity, through the Statement of changes in equity in the
‚Revaluation reserve‘. When such financial assets are subsequenty derecognised, the difference between the
carrying amount and fair value previously recognised in equity, is transferred to the income statement, and
included in the line ‘Net trading income’.
Derivative financial instruments
In the normal course of business the Bank engages as a party to contracts for derivative financial instruments
which represent a very low initial investment compared to the notional value of the contract.
Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised in the balance sheet at cost (including transaction
costs) and are subsequently re-measured to fair value.

A specific credit risk provision has been created to provide for management’s estimate of credit losses
that may arise as soon as the recovery of an exposure is considered to be doubtful. In the case of loans
to borrowers in countries where there is an increased risk of difficulties in servicing external debt, an
assessment of the political and economic situation is made, and additional country risk impairment is
established as necessary.
When a loan is deemed uncollectable, it is written off against the related provision for impairments. Subsequent
recoveries are credited to the income statement, if previously written off.
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Loans are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances increased by any accrued interest and reduced
by any commissions and impairment for loan losses, net of any deferred fees or costs of loan origination.
Impairment is made for any amounts for which, in the opinion of management, recovery is uncertain. The
amount of the impairment is based on the discounted cash flow of the future receivables associated with the
loan.
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Loans and Loan Impairment
Loans originated by the Bank by providing money directly to a borrower are categorised as loans originated by
the Bank and are carried at amortised cost. All loans and advances are recognised when funds are advanced
to borrowers.

The Bank must, within the framework of prescribed and internal criteria, classify balance sheet and offbalance-sheet asset items according to their level of risk and evaluate potential losses deriving from credit
risks. Specific provisions for impairment losses that the Bank establishes according to classification of claims
in groups B, C, D and E are recorded as the value adjustments of claims on the assets side of the balance sheet.
Impairment for potential losses that the Bank establishes for claims in group A, are also recorded as the value
adjustments of claims on the asset side of balance sheet.

(ii) Recognition
The Bank recognises financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale assets on the date
it commits to purchase the assets. From this date any gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of the
assets are recognised in the financial statements. Held-to-maturity investments as well as loans and receivables
are recognised on the day they are transferred to the Bank.
(iii) Measurement
Financial instruments are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition all financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and all
available-for-sale assets are measured at fair value with the exception of financial instruments whose fair value
cannot be measured reliably. The latter financial instruments include those which do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and they are stated at cost (including transaction costs) less impairment losses.
All non-trading financial liabilities, originated loans and receivables and held-to-maturity assets are measured
at amortised cost less impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated on the effective interest rate method.
Premiums and discounts, including initial transaction costs, are included in the carrying amount of the related
instrument and amortised based on the effective interest rate of the instrument.
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(iv) Fair value
The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted market price at the balance sheet date without
any deduction for transaction costs. If a quoted market price is not available, the fair value of the instrument is
estimated using pricing models or discounted cash flow techniques.
Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash flows are based on management’s best estimates
and the discount rate is a market related rate at the balance sheet date for an instrument with similar terms and
conditions. Where pricing models are used, inputs are based on market related measures at the balance sheet date.
The fair value of derivatives that are not exchange-traded is estimated at the amount that the Bank would
receive or pay to terminate the contract at the balance sheet date taking into account current market conditions
and the current creditworthiness of the counterparties.

(v) Gains or losses on subsequent measurement
Gains and losses arising from a change in the fair value of available-for-sale assets are recognized directly
in equity. When the financial assets are sold, collected or otherwise disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss
recognised in equity is transferred to the income statement.
Gains and losses arising from a change in the fair value of financial assets or liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in the income statement.

(g) Intangible assets
Intangible assets encompass investments in computer software, licences and costs capitalised to assets owned
by others. They are amortized on using the straight-line basis either at 20 percent per annum, or the contractual
duration of a specific licence, and the annual amortisation charge is included in the income statement in
‘Depreciation and amortisation’.
Depreciation on self-constructed intangible assets commence when the assets are available for use.
An impairment adjustment is made at the end of the year if the carrying amount of the intangible assets
exceeds its recoverabe amount.

(h) Property, plant and equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost, together with the annual revaluation, less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses.
The Bank periodically tests its property, plant and equipment for impairment. Where the carrying amount of
an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The write off is recognised in the income statement
as in impairment loss.
Gains and losses on the disposal of assets are determined by reference to their carrying amount and are taken
into account in determining operating income. Repairs and renewals are charged to the income statement
when the expenditure is incurred. Reversals of impairment losses, which arise as a result of changes in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of the assets, are recognized as income immediately in
the income statement.
The Bank does not record increases in the book value of its property, plant and equipment.
The costs of increase the value of the property, plant and equipment are capitalized.

2004
(%)
5.0
6.7 - 25.0
50.0
25.0
33.3

(i) Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when the lease agreement transfers to the lessee substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership. All other leases are classifies as operating leases.
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Buildings
Furniture
Computers
Motor vehicles
Finance leases

2005
(%)
3.0
6.7 - 25.0
33.33
12.50
12.50
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Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method at rates intended to write off the depreciable amount of
items of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives. The depreciation rates applied in the
preparation of the financial statements are:

The Bank as lessor
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the Bank’s net
investment in the lease. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant rate
of return on the Bank’s net investment outstanding in respect of the relevant leases.
Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
The Bank as lessee
Assets held under finance leases are recognized at their fair value at acquisition date. The corresponding
liability due to the lessor is included in the Balance Sheet as a finance lease obligation. Finance costs, which
represent the difference between the total leasing commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired, are
charge to the income statement over the duration of the relevant lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting period.
Rentals due under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the terms
of the relevant lease.

(j) Provisions
The Bank recognizes a provision only when all of the following criteria are met:
- It has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;
- It is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation;
- A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
(k) Provisions for charges and for guarantees and other off-balance sheet credit related
commitments
In the normal course of business the Bank enters into credit related commitments, which are recorded in offbalance-sheet accounts. These commitments primarily include guarantees, letters of credit and unused loan
commitments. Specific provisions are made for estimated losses on these commitments on the same basis as
set out in note (k).
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Provisions for off-balance-sheet exposures are recorded in other provisions disclosed within the balance sheet
category “Other liabilities” (Refer to note 28).

(l) Provisions for General Banking Reserves and Other General Provisions
The Bank sets aside a general provision for risks that are judged by management to be present at the balance
sheet date, but which has not been allocated to specific or individual exposures.
Provisions for general banking risks and the movement thereon are recorded within equity in accordance with
IAS 30.

(m) Debt Securities in Issue
Debt securities issued by the Bank are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Interest
expense arising on the issue of debt securities is included in the income statement line item ‘Interest expense.’
In the event of the repurchase of its own debt securities, the Bank de-recognises these debts so as to reflect
the economic substance of the transaction as a repayment of the Bank’s commitment. The Bank reflects the

decrease in its liabilities in the balance sheet line ‘Debt securities in issue ’. Gains and losses arising as a result
of the repurchase of the Bank’s own debt securities are included in ‘Net trading income’ or in ‘Net interest
income.’ The Bank reports the repurchased debt securities as assets only if a contractual commitment to resell
the securities in the future exists.

(n) Interest, Discount received and Discount allowed
Interest is calculated in accordance with Slovenian law and agreements between the Bank and it’s clients.
Interest is added to the principal if this is stipulated in the agreement.
Interest, discount received and discount allowed and expense are recognized in the financial statements using
the effective interest rate method.
The recognition of interest income ceases as soon as the receipt or the interest is in doubt. Interest is included
in income thereafter only for performing loans. The income from doubtful claims is included in the statement
of income only when received.

(o) Fees and Commission Income and Expense
Fees and commission income and expense consist of commissions on domestic and foreign payment traffic,
fees arising from guarantees and loans given by the Bank and from other services. Fees and commission
income and expense are recognized in the income statement under the same convention as interest income and
expense.
Commission income arising from loans with a maturity date of over one year, is deferred and taken to income
an a straight line basis.

Deferred tax assets relating to the carry forward of unused tax losses are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilized.

(q) Sale and Repurchase Agreements
Securities sold under sale and repurchase agreements (‘repos’) are recorded as assets in the balance sheet
lines ‘Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss’ and ‘Available-for-sale financial asset’ and the
counterpart liability is included in ‘Due to banks’ or ‘Due to customers’ as is appropriate under the relevant
circumstances. Securities purchased under agreements to purchase and resell (‘reverse repos’) are recorded
as assets in the balance sheet line ‘Due from banks’ or ‘Loans and advances to customers’ as appropriate,
with the corresponding decrease in cash being included in ‘Cash and balances with the Central Bank.’ The
difference between the sale and repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued evenly over the life of the
repo agreement using the effective interest rate.
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Deferred taxation is provided using the balance sheet liability method for all temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets or liabilities and their carrying amount for financial reporting purposes.
Currently enacted tax rates are used to determine the deferred tax balance.
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(p) Taxation
Current tax is determined in accordance with the provisions of the relevant legislation of the Republic
of Slovenia. In accordance with such legislation, banks calculate tax on profit as 25 percent of taxable
profits.

(r) Segmental Reporting
The condensed financial statements of subsidiaries, representing separate segments of the business other than
banking, are not presented due to their immateriality.
(s) Regulatory requirements
The Bank is subject to the regulatory requirements of the Central Central Bank. These regulations include
limits and other restrictions pertaining to minimum capital adequacy requirements, classification of loans
and off balance sheet commitments and provisioning to cover credit risk, liquidity, interest rate and foreign
currency position.
(t) Comparatives
Where appropriate, certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the presentation in the
current year.
(u) Estimation of fair values
The following is a summary of the major methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of
financial instruments as reflected below.
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Loans and advances: Fair value is calculated based on discounted expected future principal and interest cash
flows. Loan repayments are assumed to occur at contractual repayment dates, where applicable. For loans
that do not have fixed repayment dates or that are subject to prepayment risk, repayments are estimated based
on experience in previous periods when interest rates were at levels similar to current levels, adjusted for any
differences in interest rate outlook. Expected future cash flows are estimated considering credit risk and any
indication of impairment. Expected future cash flows for homogeneous categories of loans, such as residential
mortgage loans, are estimated on a portfolio basis and discounted at current rates offered for similar loans to
new borrowers with similar credit profiles. Quoted market prices for instruments backed by similar loans,
adjusted for different loan characteristics, are also used in estimating fair value. The estimated fair values of
loans reflect changes in credit status since the loans were made and changes in interest rates in the case of
fixed rate loans.
Investments carried at cost and derivatives: Fair value is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet
date without any deduction for transaction costs. If a quoted market price is not available, fair value is estimated
using pricing models or discounted cash flow techniques. Where discounted cash flow techniques are used,
estimated future cash flows are based on management’s best estimates and the discount rate is a market related
rate for a similar instrument at the balance sheet date. Where other pricing models are used, inputs are based
on market related data at the balance sheet date.
Bank and customer deposits: For demand deposits and deposits with no defined maturities, fair value is taken
to be the amount payable on demand at the balance sheet date. The estimated fair value of fixed-maturity
deposits, including certificates of deposit, is based on discounted cash flows using rates currently offered for
deposits of similar remaining maturities. The value of long term relationships with depositors is not taken into
account in estimating fair values.
Long-term debt: Fair value is based on quoted market prices, if available. For debt instruments without quoted
prices, the fair value is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at interest rates available
at the balance sheet date to the Bank for new debt of a similar type and remaining maturity period.

3. Net interest income
in millions of SIT

Interest income
- Cash and balances with the Central Bank
- Loans to banks
- Loans and advances to customers
- Securities
- Other
Total interest income
Interest expense
- Balances with the Central Bank
- Bank deposits
- Customer deposits
- Debt securities
- Other borrowed funds
- Other
Total interest expense
Net interest income

2005

2004

102
1,336
21,683
8,336
76
31,533

128
402
21,445
8,985
79
31,039

2
250
8,942
2,625
1,992
0
13,811
17,722

9
659
10,602
1,963
1,237
1
14,471
16,568

4. Net fee and commission income
2004

528
39
2,232
956
20
12
1,250
3,577
5
8,619

546
46
1,986
988
27
773
3,277
5
7,648

481
398
1
25
139
60
1,104
7,515

360
298
2
12
60
61
793
6,855
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Fee and commission income
- Guarantees given by the bank
- Services to the Group companies
- Domestic payment traffic
- Foreign payment traffic
- Intermediary and commission services
- Securities services
- Commission from loans
- Administrative services
- Depot and vault
Total fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
- Domestic banking services
- Foreign payment traffic
- Foreign exchange services
- Stock Exchange services
- Domestic payment traffic
- Other services
Total fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income

2005
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in millions of SIT

5. Income from associates
in millions of SIT

Zavarovalnica Maribor d.d.
Adria Bank AG
Moja naložba d.d.
Total

2005
1,287
111
(12)
1,386

2004
1,077
57
(32)
1,102

6. Net trading income
in millions of SIT

Net realised gains on foreign exchange
Net realised gains on derivative financial instruments
Net unrealised gains/(losses) on derivative financial instruments
Net realised gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Net unrealised gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Net trading income/expenses

2005
497
41
959
2,882
4,379

2004
1,056
50
184
328
47
1,665

7. Other operating income
in millions of SIT

2005
2004
Income from non-banking services
1,476
1,109
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment
75
132
Other operating income
1,551
1,241
Other operating income consist of income from renting business facilities, POS terminals, recreation facilities,
apartments and other income.

8. General administrative expenses
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in millions of SIT

Employee costs
- salaries
- social security costs
- other employee costs
Material costs
Service costs
- operating lease
- professional services
- maintenance
- advertising and promotion
- insurance costs
- educational costs
- other
Total general administrative costs
Salaries of the Management Board
The average number of employees during 2005 was 1,556 (2004: 1,577)

2005

2004

7,067
1,065
1,310
710

6,953
1,044
1,345
602

524
245
1,188
845
155
137
3,040
16,286
102

449
249
1,408
706
92
101
2,736
15,685
94

9. Depreciation and amortization
in millions of SIT

Depreciation of property and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets
Total depreciation and amortization

2005
1,149
480
1,629

2004
1,789
791
2,580

10. Impairment losses
in millions of SIT

Write-down
Balance sheet items
Due from Banks
Due from Banks
Due from Banks - specific provision - legal cases
Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to customers - write off
Loans and advances to customers - spec. provision - suit
Loans and advances to customers - spec. provision - other
Other assets
Other assets
Other assets - write off
Other assets - other
Off balance sheet items
Total provision for losses

2005

2004

589
271
318
3,051
1,920
116
372
643
212
136
41
35
275
4,127

48
4,511

172

(742)
3,989

11. Income tax expense

Income before tax
Prima facie tax calculated at a tax rate of 25% (2004:25%)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Deferred tax expense
Tax expense

2004
1,290
114
1,692
3,096

11,017
2,754
(513)
457
2,698

5,801
1,450
1,532
114
3,096
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Current tax expense
Deferred tax expense
Balance sheet tax
Total

2005
2,241
457
0
2,698
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in millions of SIT

12. Deferred income taxes
in millions of SIT

Deferred tax assets
- from striking deposits
- from legal cases
- from derivative financial instruments
- from fee
Deferred tax liabilities
- from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- from derivative financial instruments
- from rate credit client’s (per Central Bank regulations)
Net deferred tax liabilities

2005

2004

448
265
20
(4)
167

81
0
0
(53)
134

905
721
6
178
(457)

195
12
(7)
190
(114)

13. Cash and balances with the Central Bank
in millions of SIT

2005
2004
Cash on hand
4,937
4,786
Balances with the Central Bank
7,901
15,348
Total cash and balances with the Central Bank
12,838
20,134
The Bank was required to maintain an obligatory reserve with the Central Bank, relative to the volume and
structure of its customers’ deposits. Balances with the Central Bank included obligatory reserve deposits of
SIT 4,599 million (2004: SIT 6,663 million). These funds are not available to finance the Group’s day to day
operations.

14. Due from other banks, net
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in millions of SIT

2005

2004

Placements with other banks
Loans and advances to other banks
Total

55,317
4,849
60,166

29,876
400
30,276

Impairment
Total net of impairment

(524)
59,642

(253)
30,023

253

56
216
61
(80)
253

Movements in impairment were as follows:
Balance at 1 January
Opening adjustment
Increase in impairment (Note 10)
Decrease in impairment (Note 10)
Balance at 31 December

369
(98)
524

15. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for trading financial assets
in millions of SIT

Shares and participation certificates
Debt securities
Fixed income debt securities
Bonds
Variable income debt securities
Bonds
Total held for trading financial asset

2005

2004

7,851
37,855

135
-

23,851

-

14,004
45,706

135

Held for trading shares and participation certificates comprise:
in millions of SIT

Shares and participation certificates in Slovenian Tolars
- listed
- unlisted
Shares and participation certificates in other currencies
- listed
Total held for trading shares and participation certificates

2005

2004

7,487
230

135

134
7,851

135

Held for trading shares and participation certificates, allocated by issuer comprise:
in millions of SIT

- Other financial institutions
- Other money institutions
- Other domestic entities
Total held for trading shares and participation certificates

2005
2,958
15
4,878
7,851

2004
135
135

- Slovene Tolars
- Other currencies
Total held for trading debt securities

2005
37,855
37,855

2004
-

Held for trading debt securities, allocated by issuer comprise:
in millions of SIT

- Other foreign entities
Total held for trading debt securities

2005
37,855
37,855

2004
-
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in millions of SIT
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Held for trading debt securities comprise:

16. Loans and advances to customer
in millions of SIT

Overdrafts
Credit cards
Short term loans
- Slovene Tolars
- Other currencies
Long term loans
- Slovene Tolars
- Other currencies
Claims from granted guarantees
Gross loans and advances
Impairment
Net loans and advances

2005
12,740
151

2004
11,761
117

103,455
97,921

122,640
68,650

123,904
77,854
913
416,938
(30,292)
386,646

100,526
55,217
958
359,869
(28,372)
331,497

Movement in impairment for impairment were as follows:
in millions of SIT

Balance at 1 January
Opening adjustment
Doubtful debts, impairment made
Recoveries and releases
Balance at 31 December

2005

2004

28,372

25,775
(1,099)
17,770
(14,074)
28,372

17,329
(15,409)
30,292

Loan portfolio by sectors was as follows:
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in millions of SIT

Non-financial corporations
General government
Financial institutions
Citizens
Non-residents
Non-profit institutions serving households
Gross loans and advances
Impairment
Net loans and advances

230,425
5,935
29,137
137,500
12,944
997
416,938
(30,292)
386,646

2005
55.3
1.4
7
33
3.1
0.2
100.0

207,060
7,365
26,739
111,119
6,937
649
359,869
(28,372)
331,497

2004
57.6
2.0
7.4
30.9
1.9
0.2
100.0

Loans guaranteed by the Republic of Slovenia or Slovenian banks
in millions of SIT

Republic of Slovenia guarantees
Slovenian bank’s guarantees
Total

2005
14,872
379
15,251

2004
14,488
273
14,761

17. Available-for-sale financial assets
in millions of SIT

Bonds
- Fixed yield
- Variable yield
Treasury bills with fixed yield
Other bills with fixed yield - cash certificate
Shares
Certificate of deposit with fixed yield
Other
Total available-for-sale financial assets

2005

2004

50,808
19,732
209
23,803
94,552

10,519
49,998
12,410
2,798
6,716
317
105
82,863

Available-for-sale financial assets by currency comprise:
in millions of SIT

Bonds
- Slovene Tolars
- Other currencies
Treasury bills in Slovene Tolars
Other bills in Slovene Tolars - cash certificate
Shares issued in Slovene Tolars
Certificate of deposit with fixed yield in Slovene Tolars
Other
Total available-for-sale debt financial assets

2005

2004

59,126
11,414
209
23,803
94,552

41,119
19,398
12,410
2,798
6,716
317
105
82,863

Available-for-sale debt financial assets allocated by issuer, comprise:
2005
53,635
23,803
9,171
5,079
2,864
94,552

2004
50,729
12,410
4,726
4,230
10,768
82,863
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- Domestic state institutions
- Central Bank
- Domestic financial institutions
- Other domestic entities
- Foreign institutions
Total available-for-sale debt financial assets
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in millions of SIT

18. Held-to-maturity investments
in millions of SIT

Bonds
- Fixed yield bonds
- Variable yield bonds
Cash certificate
- Fixed yield
Certificate of deposti
- Fixed yield
Treasury bills
- Fixed yield treasury bills
Total held-to-maturity investments

2005

2004

1,416
41,958

23,527
22,712

32,102
603
76,079

55,562
101,801

Debt held-to-maturity investments comprise:
in millions of SIT

Variable yield debt securities
- Slovene Tolars
- Other currencies
Fixed income debt securities
- Slovene Tolars
- Other currencies
Total debt held-to-maturity investments

2005

2004

41,812
146

22,566
146

2,019
32,102
76,079

23,527
55,562
101,801

Held-to-maturity investments, allocated by issuer, comprise:
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in millions of SIT

- Domestic state institutions
- Central Bank
- Other financial institutions
- Foreign financial institutions
- Other institutions
Total debt held-to-maturity investments

2005
42,312
32,102
603
146
916
76,079

2004
46,093
55,562
146
101,801

19. Investments in associates and other investments
Investments in associated companies and other investments comprise:
in millions of SIT

Shares in associated companies
Other investments
Total investments in associates and other investments

2005
6,257
1,375
7,632

2004
4,901
1,086
5,987
in millions of SIT

Associated companies
Zavarovalnica Maribor d.d.
Moja naložba d.d.
Adria Bank AG
Total associated companies

Bank’s ownership
interest and voting
power in %
49.96
45.00
25.04

Net book value
2005

Net book value
2004

4,235
194
1,828
6,257

2,972
161
1,768
4,901

Banka Celje d.d.
Banka Vipa d.d.
Zveza hran. kred. služb d.d. LJ
Hranilnica LON d.d.
LHB Internationale Handelsbank AG
FMR d.o.o. Idrija
ISKRA Avtoelektrika d.d. Šempeter
IEDC Poslovna šola Bled d.o.o.
BANKART d.o.o. Ljubljana
Perutnina Ptuj d.d.
Marles Holding d.d. Maribor
TAM Maribor d.d.
Zavarovalnica TRIGLAV d.d. LJ.
KDD Centralna klirinško dep.dr. d.d.
Pozavarovalnica SAVA d.d. Ljubljana
Slovenska izvozna družba d.d. Ljubljana
S.W.I.F.T. Scrl
Vino Brežice d.d.
TVI Majšperk d.o.o.
Cestno podjetje Maribor d.d.
Steklarna Rogaška
Ljubljanska borza
Medicinsko rehabilitacijski center d.o.o.
Total companies with minority interest

Bank’s ownership
interest and voting
power in %
0.09
0.05
0.01
0.89
2.40
3.40
1.50
6.83
12.99
0.84
11.56
1.18
0.06
1.50
0.00
0.07
0.02
4.17
40.60
10.62
30
4.60
8.95

Net book value
2005

Net book value
2004

27
0
0
0
306
70
121
23
83
125
265
15
20
7
10
10
14
0
252
0
26
1
1,375

11
7
2
306
70
121
25
83
118
265
15
7
7
10
10
27
2
1,086
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Companies with minority interest
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in millions of SIT

20. Investments in subsidiaries
in millions of SIT

Country of
incorporation
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Fininvest d.o.o. Nova Gorica
KBM Invest d.o.o. Maribor
Gorica Leasing d.o.o.
Fineko d.o.o. Maribor
KBM Infond d.o.o. Maribor
KBM Leasing d.o.o. Maribor
MBH d.o.o. Maribor
Hotel Slavija d.d.
M-Pay d.o.o. Maribor
PBS d.d.
Total

Slovenia
Slovenia
Slovenia
Slovenia
Slovenia
Slovenia
Slovenia
Slovenia
Slovenia
Slovenia

Bank’s ownership
and voting power
interest
100.00
99.37
100.00
100.00
68.00
100.00
100.00
99.09
50.00
55.00

2005

2004

Net book value

Net book value

518
288
372
1,004
785
442
14
1,893
5,316

241
559
281
337
1,120
701
1,029
438
14
1,775
6,495

21. Intangible assets
in millions of SIT

Capitalised costs
Software of investments Construction
licences
in foreign in progress
tangible assets
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2005
4,627
558
0
Additions
11
Transfers from implementation
1,094
10
Disposals
(1)
(33)
31 December 2005
5,731
535
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2005
2,164
465
7
Additions
Charge for the year
454
26
Disposals
(1)
(31)
31 December 2005
2,624
460
Net book value
3,107
75
31 December 2005
Net book value
2,463
93
31 December 2004
None of the Bank’s intangible assets are pledged as collateral.

Other
intangible
assets

Total

1,098
959
(1,106)
951

75
99
2
(75)
101

6,358
1,069
0
(109)
7,318

-

43
(43)
-

2,629
50
480
(75)
3,084

951

101

4,234

1,098

75

3,729

in millions of SIT

3,745
884
(2)
4,627

565
15
(22)
558

894
1,103
(899)
1,098

(5)
75

1,439
726
(1)
2,164

402
65
(2)
465

-

-

-

-

1,841
791
(3)
2,629

2,463

93

1,098

75

3,729

2,306

163

894

1

3,364

None of the Bank’s intangible assets are pledged as collateral.

1
79

Total

5,205
1,182
(29)
6,358

Nova Kreditna banka Maribor d.d. / Annual Report 2005

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2004
Additions
Transfers from implementation
Disposals
31 December 2004
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2004
Charge for the year
Disposals
31 December 2004
Net book value
31 December 2004
Net book value
1 January 2004

Other
intagible
asassets
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Capitalised costs
Software of investments Construction
licences
in foreign in progress
tangible assets

22. Property and equipment
in millions of SIT

Land and
Construction in
Computers Other assets
Buildings
progress
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2005
Transfers
Additions
Transfers from implementation
Disposals
31 December 2005

12,791
(18)
80
1,929
(48)
14,734

7,979
(2)
6
1,459
(319)
9,123

5,300
20
45
665
(382)
5,648

769
3,579
(4,054)
294

26,839
0
3,710
(1)
(749)
29,799

3,725
3
36
418
(374)
3,808
1,840
1,575

0
294
769

15,791
67
1,149
(704)
16,303
13,496
11,048

Land and
Construction in
Computers Other assets
Buildings
progress

Total
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Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2005
4,603
7,463
Transfers
(1)
(2)
Additions
31
Charge for the year
381
350
Disposals
(15)
(315)
31 December 2005
4,999
7,496
Net book value 31 December 2005
9,735
1,627
Net book value 31 December 2004
8,188
516
None of the Bank’s property and equipment are pledged as collateral.

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2004
Transfers
Additions
Transfers from implementation
Disposals
31 December 2004
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2004
Transfers
Charge for the year
Disposals
31 December 2004
Net book value 31 December 2004
Net book value 1 January 2004

Total

12,720
(22)
146
(53)
12,791

8,331
4
440
(796)
7,979

5,389
18
1
240
(348)
5,300

277
1,319
(827)
769

26,717
1,320
(1)
(1,197)
26,839

3,994
616
(7)
4,603
8,188
8,726

7,529
1
729
(796)
7,463
516
802

3,622
(1)
444
(340)
3,725
1,575
1,767

769
277

15,145
1,789
(1,143)
15,791
11,048
11,572

23. Accrued income, other assets and deferred tax assets
in millions of SIT

Accrued interest
Accrued costs and prepayments
Interest receivables
Fees and commissions
Advance payments
Cheques
Inventory
Items in course of payment
Items in course of collection
Positive fair value of derivative financial instruments
Deferred tax assets
Other, of which
- account receivables
- other receivables
- other
Total
Impairment
Total

2005
3,610
73
1,124
254
41
31
1,044
3,243
198
37
665
2,062
162
1,839
61
12,382
(1,009)
11,373

Nova KBM
2004
2,729
56
1,046
224
286
34
1,186
2,917
197
14
361
2,147
164
1,919
64
11,197
(873)
10,324

Deferred tax assets
2004

40
8
617
665

215
12
134
361
in millions of SIT

Movements in impairment
Balance at 31 December 2004
Opening adjustment
Increase in impairment
Decrease in impairment
Balance at 31 December 2005

2005

2004

873

1,077
(27)
459
(636)
873

598
(462)
1,009
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Deferred tax assets
- from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- from available-for-sale financial assets
- from derivatives
- from accrued fee
Total

2005
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in millions of SIT

24. Due to other banks
in millions of SIT

On demand
- Slovene Tolars
- Other currencies
Time deposits
- Slovene Tolars
- Other currencies
Total

2005

2004

13
2,112

22
413

2,394
4,519

7,803
8,238

25. Due to customers
Amounts owed to customers, by type of customer
in millions of SIT

Non-financial corporations
General government
Other financial institutions
Citizens
Non-residents
Non-profit institutions serving households
Total

Sight
28,402
3,489
543
150,114
2,178
2,718
187,444
468,261

2005
Term
54,503
12,910
15,079
194,123
2,619
1,583
280,817

Sight
23,891
3,267
457
139,616
2,440
2,399
172,070
434,789

2004
Term
46,717
9,085
22,950
179,287
3,324
1,356
262,719

26. Debt securities in issue
in millions of SIT
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Certificates of deposits
Bonds
Total

2005
5,406
31,907
37,313

2004
4,857
24,836
29,693

27. Other borrowed funds
in millions of SIT

Banks
- Slovene Tolars
- Other currencies
Other customers
- Slovene Tolars
- Other currencies
Total

2005

2004

1
97,370

1
36,851

2,666
10,870
110,907

2,226
4,831
43,909

28. Accruals, provisions, other liabilities and deferred tax liabilities
in millions of SIT

2005
537
1,315
3,026
344
1
201
5,191
864
1,647
2,468
30
2,711
574
467
1,670
18,335

Creditors
Current taxes
Accrued interest
Liabilities to employees
Assets in course of payment
Payments received in advance
Other provisions
Cash in transit
Deferred tax liabilities (see below)
Accrued fee
Derivative financial instruments
Other, of which
- liabilities from interest
- liabilities from fee - accrued
- other liabilities
Total

2004
565
1,293
2,097
387
1
184
4,224
701
1,417
945
48
3,113
678
537
1,898
14,975

Other includes liabilities due to payment of money, the postal orders in the national payment system, deferred
income deriving from liabilities repurchased by the bank.

Deferred tax liabilities
2004

497
9
773
368

1,211
3
13
190
1,417

1,647

Other provisions
in millions of SIT

Off balance sheet
exposures

Other

Total

Balance at 31 December 2003
Opening adjustment
Change in provision
Balance at 31 December 2004

3,604
910
(743)
3,771

298
155
453

3,902
910
(588)
4,224

Change in provision
Balance at 31 December 2005

276
4,047

691
1,144

967
5,191
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Deferred tax liabilities
- from available-for-sale financial assets
- from derivatives
- from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- from rated creditors
Total

2005
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in millions of SIT

29. Subordinated liabilities
1. Subordinated notes
2. Subordinated loans
3. Subordinated notes
Total

in millions of SIT

Due
2009

Currency
EUR

Interest rate
6M EURIBOR+1.7%

2005
7,187

2011

EUR

3M EURIBOR + 1.1%

11,979
19,166

30. Commitments and contingent liabilities
a) Financial commitments and contingencies

in millions of SIT

Guarantees and standby letters of credit in Slovene Tolars
- Short-term
- Long-term
Guarantees and standby letters of credit in other currencies
- Short-term
- Long-term
Foreign exchange documentary letters of credit
- Short-term
- Long-term
Documentary letters of credit in Slovene Tolars
- Short-term
- Long-term
Contingencies
- Short-term
- Long-term
Financial derivative instruments
Total

2005

2004

9,135
20,709

12,503
18,392

4,209
6,114

4,374
5,167

2,265
-

1,575
17

-

-

81,357
1,264
78
125,131

75,299
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b) Notional amount of derivative financial instruments

Forward contracts for hedging
Forward contracts for trading
FX Swaps
TOTAL

2004
7,192
6
11,987
19,185

in tolars
13,371
13,371

56
117,383
in millions of SIT

in foreign currency
813
4,047
3,114
7,974

2005
Total
813
4,047
16,485
21,345
in millions of SIT

Forward contracts for hedging
Forward contracts for trading
FX Swaps
TOTAL

in tolars
14
1,130
34,292
35,436

in foreign currency
907
13,905
14,812

2004
Total
921
1,130
48,197
50,248

31. Foreign exchange position
The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on its
financial position and cash flows.
The table below provides an analysis of the Group’s main currency exposures. The remaining currencies are
shown within ‘Other currencies.’ The Bank monitors its foreign exchange (FX) position for compliance with
the regulatory requirements of the Central Bank established in respect of limits on open positions. The Group
seeks to match assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies to avoid foreign currency exposures.
in millions of SIT

Other

SIT

Total

Assets
Cash and balances with the Central Bank
1,064
119
232
11,423
12,838
Due from other banks
22,485
5,808
5,647
25,702
59,642
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 37,952
6
7,748
45,706
Loans and advances to customers
164,524
3,881
642
217,599
386,646
Available-for-sale financial assets
11,272
142
83,138
94,552
Investments held-to-maturity
26,097
6,151
43,831
76,079
Investments in associates and other investments
2,144
5,488
7,632
Investments in subsidiaries
5,316
5,316
Intangible assets
4,234
4,234
Property and equipment
13,496
13,496
Accrued income, other assets and deferred tax assets
2,355
153
8
8,857
11,373
Total assets
267,893
16,260
6,529
426,832
717,514
Liabilities
Due to other banks
1,653
413
46
2,407
4,519
Due to customers
130,703
14,599
5,065
317,894
468,261
Debt securities in issue
37,313
37,313
Other borrowed funds
106,022
984
1,235
2,666
110,907
Accruals, provisions,other liabilities and
1,184
226
19
16,906
18,335
deferred tax liabilities
Subordinated liabilities
19,166
19,166
Total liabilities
258,728
16,222
6,365
377,186
658,501
Total shareholders’ equity
59,013
59,013
Net FX Position at 31 December 2005
9,165
38
164
(9,367)
1
Off-balance-sheet assets
13,637
2,444
3,830
19,911
1
Off-balance-sheet liabilities
5,530
2,444
11,930
19,904
Net off-balance-sheet FX position at 31 December 2005
8,107
(8,100)
7
TOTAL NET FX POSITION AT
38
17,272
164
(17,467)
7
31 DECEMBER 2005
Total assets at 31 December 2004
196,307
16,827
5,090
385,812
604,036
Total liabilities at 31 December 2004
185,103
16,640
5,038
344,008
550,789
Total shareholders’ equity
53,247
53,247
Net FX position at 31 December 2004
11,204
187
52
(11,443)
Net off-balance-sheet FX position at 31 December 2004 18,685
(20,034)
(1,349)
TOTAL NET FX POSITION AT 31 DECEMBER 2004 29,889
187
52
(31,477)
(1,349)
1
Off-balance-sheet assets and liabilities include amounts receivable and payable arising from spot and forward transactions.

Nova Kreditna banka Maribor d.d. / Annual Report 2005

USD
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EUR

32. Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market
interest rates. The length of time for which the rate of interest is fixed on a financial instrument, therefore,
indicates to what extent it is exposed to interest rate risk. The table below provides information on the extent of
the Group’s interest rate exposure based either on the contractual maturity date of its financial instruments or,
in the case of instruments that reprice to a market rate of interest before maturity, the next repricing date. It is
the policy of the Group to manage the exposure to fluctuations in net interest income arising from changes in
interest rates by the degree of repricing mismatch in the balance sheet. Those assets and liabilities that do not
have contractual maturity date or are not interest bearing are grouped in ‘maturity undefined’ category. The
next repricing period for each respective balance sheet category is as follows:
in millions of SIT

Up to 1 1 to 3 3 months 1 year to Over 5 Maturity
month months to 1 year 5 years
years undefined
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Assets
Cash and balances with the Central Bank
8,555
Due from other banks
56,963
Financial assets at fair value through
2,905
profit or loss
Loans and advances to customers
317,105
Available-for-sale securities
84,202
Held-to-maturity investments
57,281
Investments in associates and other
investments
Investments in subsidiaries
Intangible assets
Property and equipment
Accrued income, other assets and deferred
270
tax assets
Total assets
527,281
Liabilities
Due to other banks
Due to customers
Debt securities in issue
Other borrowed funds
Accruals, provisions,other liabilities and
deferred tax liabilities
Subordinated liabilities
Total liabilities
Total shareholders’ equity
On-balance-sheet interest rate
sensitivity gap at 31 December 2005

Total

-

-

-

792

4,283 12,838
1,887 59,642

-

-

10,347

27,507

15,479
6,410

33,105
209
11,888

18,289
6,449
-

2,515
3,692
500

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

5,316
5,316
4,234 4,234
13,496 13,496

-

-

-

-

11,103

21,889

45,202

35,085

35,006

53,051 717,514

2,055
381,606
36,763
109,886

1,126
50,834
242

342
31,583
550
517

685
2,877
-

219
-

311 4,519
1,142 468,261
- 37,313
262 110,907

-

-

-

-

-

19,166
549,476
-

52,202
-

32,992
-

3,562
-

219
-

(22,195) (30,313)

12,210

31,523

4,947

45,706

153 386,646
- 94,552
- 76,079
7,632

18,335

7,632

11,373

18,335

- 19,166
20,050 658,501
59,013 59,013

34,787 (26,012)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(22,195) (30,313)

12,210

31,523

34,787 (26,012)

-

404,256
454,466
-

48,287
46,074
-

57,532
29,485
-

34,128
4,129

7,928
603

(50,210)

2,213

28,047

29,999

7,325 (17,374)

-

-

-

-

(50,210)

2,213

28,047

29,999

-

51,905 604,036
16,032 550,789
53,247 53,247

-

7,325 (17,374)

Average interest rates as of 31 December 2005 and 2004
The average interest rates for December 2004 and 2005 calculated as a weighted average for each asset and
liability category.
in millions of SIT
Assets
Average rate in 2005
Liabilities
Average Rate in 2005
Foreign
Foreign
SIT
SIT
currency
currency
Cash and balances with the Central
1.0
Due to other banks
2.2
2.5
Bank
Due from other banks
4.3
3.6
Due to customers
2.4
1.2
Financial assets at fair value through
3.9
Debt securities in issue
5.3
profit or loss
Loans and advances to customers
6.7
3.6
Available-for-sale financial asset,
5.5
2.4
Held-to-maturity investment
Total assets
6.2
3.2
Total liabilities
2.7
1.6
Assets
Cash and balances with ţhe Central
Bank
Due from other banks
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Loans and advances to customers
Available-for-sale financial asset,
Held-to-maturity investment
Total assets

Average rate in 2004
Foreign
SIT
currency

Liabilities

Average Rate in 2004
Foreign
SIT
currency

1.0

-

Due to other banks

4.7

2.6

4.2

2.1

Due to customers

3.1

1.0

7.6

3.7

Debt securities in issue

6.8

-

7.8

3.4

7.1

1.5

7.6

2.5

Total liabilities

3.5

1.4
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Off-balance-sheet interest rate assets
Off-balance-sheet interest rate liabilities
Off-balance-sheet interest rate
sensitivity gap at 31 December 2005
TOTAL INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY
GAP AT 31 DECEMBER 2005
Total assets at 31 December 2004
Total liabilities at 31 December 2004
Total shareholders’ equity
On-balance-sheet interest rate
sensitivity gap at 31 December 2004
Off-balance-sheet interest rate
sensitivity gap at 31 December 2004
TOTAL INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY
GAP AT 31 DECEMBER 2004

Up to 1 1 to 3 3 months 1 year to Over 5 Maturity
Total
month months to 1 year 5 years
years undefined
- 868,658 868,658
- 868,658 868,658

33. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is a measure of the extent to which the Group may be required to raise funds to meet its
commitments associated with financial instruments. The Group maintains its liquidity profiles in accordance
with regulations laid down by the Central Bank. The table below provides an analysis of assets, liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period from the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date. It is presented under the most prudent consideration of maturity dates where options or repayment
schedules allow for early repayment possibilities. Those assets and liabilities that do not have a contractual
maturity date are grouped together under ‘maturity undefined’ category.
The Group has established its liquidity risk management rules such that it maintains its liquidity profile in
normal conditions (basic liquidity scenario) and in crisis conditions (crisis liquidity scenario). As such, the
Group has defined a set of indicators for which binding limits are established.
The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources from overnight deposits, current accounts,
maturing deposits, loan drawdowns, guarantees and from margin and other calls on cash-settled derivatives.
The Group does not maintain cash resources to meet all of these needs as experience shows that a minimum
level of reinvestment of maturing funds can be predicted with a high level of certainty. The Group sets limits
on the minimum proportion of maturing funds available to meet such calls and on the minimum level of
interbank and other borrowing facilities that should be in place to cover withdrawals at unexpected levels of
demand.
in millions of SIT
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On
demand
Assets
Cash and balances with the
Central Bank
Due from other banks
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Loans and advances to customers
Available-for-sale securities
Held-to-maturity investments
Investments in associates and
other investments
Investments in subsidiaries
Intangible assets
Property and equipment
Accrued income, other assets and
deferred tax assets
Total assets

Up to 3 3 months 1 year to
months to 1 year 5 years

Over 5 Maturity
years undefined

Total

12,838

-

-

-

-

-

12,838

38,349

-

252

21,041

-

-

59,642

45,706

-

-

-

-

-

45,706

25,313
8,001
13,804

44,376
15,801
6,410

133,916
6,426
12,091

123,199
22,680
18,983

59,842
41,644
24,791

-

-

-

-

-

7,632

7,632

-

939
207

85

53
176

3,242
13,028

5,316
-

5,316
4,234
13,496

6,349

1,636

1,573

1,528

287

-

11,373

69,369 154,343

187,660

142,834

12,948

717,514

150,360

- 386,646
- 94,552
- 76,079

Liabilities
Due to other banks
Due to customers
Debt securities in issue
Other borrowed funds
Accruals, provisions,other liabilities
and deferred tax liabilities
Subordinated liabilities
Total liabilities
Total shareholders’ equity
On-balance-sheet liquidity gap
at 31 December 2005
Off-balance-sheet assests1
Off-balance-sheet liabilities1
Off-balance-sheet liquidity gap
at 31 December 2005
TOTAL LIQUIDITY GAP AT
31 DECEMBER 2005
Total assets at 31 December 2004
Total liabilities at 31 December 2004
Total shareholders’ equity
On-balance-sheet liquidity gap
at 31 December 2004
Off-balance-sheet liquidity gap
at 31 December 2004
TOTAL LIQUIDITY GAP AT
31 DECEMBER 2004

On
demand

Up to 3 3 months 1 year to
months to 1 year 5 years

Over 5 Maturity
years undefined

3,228
280,987
2,157
171

1,126
118,450
3,055

8
53,867
8,657
10,295

157
14,142
19,499
88,202

815
7,000
9,184

-

4,519
468,261
37,313
110,907

5,695

2,282

4,017

5,751

590

-

18,335

292,238
-

124,913
-

76,844
-

7,187
134,938
-

11,979
29,568
-

(141,878) (55,543)

77,498

52,722

Total

19,166
- 658,501
59,013
59,013

113,266 (46,065)

-

133,661
133,661

214,644
214,644

202,809
202,809

174,896
174,896

142,648
142,648

-

868,658
868,658

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(141,878) (55,543)

77,498

52,722

113,266 (46,065)

-

72,283
110,333
-

146,763
61,557
-

170,028
81,194
-

91,794
23,262
-

12,482
945
53,247

604,036
550,789
53,247

(162,812) (38,050)

85,206

88,834

68,532

(41,710)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(162,812) (38,050)

85,206

88,834

68,532

(41,710)

-

110,686
273,498
-

-

Off-balance-sheet assets and liabilities include amounts receivable and payable arising from FX spot,
forward and option contracts and receivables and payables under guarantees, letters of credit and committed
facilities.

144 /

Nova Kreditna banka Maribor d.d. / Annual Report 2005

1

34. Market risk
The Group takes on exposure to market risks. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency
and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements. All trading positions
are mark to market daily and most of them are managed by the system of limitation.
The Group also applies a ‘value at risk’ methodology to estimate the market risk of positions held and the
maximum losses expected, based upon a number of assumptions for various changes in market conditions. The
Board of Directors sets limits on the value of risk that may be accepted, which is monitored on a daily basis.
The daily market value at risk measure (VAR) is an estimate, with a confidence level set at 95 percent, of the
potential loss which might arise if the current positions were to be held unchanged for one business day. The
measurement is structured so that daily losses exceeding the VAR figure should occur, on average, not more
than once every sixty days. Actual outcomes are monitored regularly to test the validity of the assumptions and
parameters/factors used in the VAR calculation.
However, the use of this approach does not prevent losses outside of these limits in the event of more significant
market movements.

35. Concentration of assets and liabilities
in millions of SIT
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Geographic region
Slovenia
European Union
Former Yugoslavia
Others
Total

Assets

2005
Liabilities

Assets

2004
Liabilities

626,875
65,299
10,335
15,005
717,514

592,883
106,928
3,105
14,598
717,514

566,425
24,841
4,520
8,250
604,036

541,133
47,115
2,099
13,689
604,036

36. Related party transactions
a) by Balance Sheet as of 31 December 2005
in millions of SIT

Due from other banks
Loans and advances to customers
Securities available-for-sale and investments held-to-maturity
Investments in associates and subsidiares together
Due to other banks
Due to customers
Debt securities in issue

Subsidiaries
4,394
18,095
4,865
28
1,170
50

Associates
1,766
762
6,257
1,355
3,982

by Balance Sheet as of 31 December 2004
in millions of SIT

Due from other banks
Loans and advances to customers
Securities available-for-sale and investments held-to-maturity
Investments in associates and subsidiares together
Due to other banks
Due to customers
Debt securities in issue

Subsidiaries
360
16,842
6,123
14
452
55

Associates
55
518
714
5,006
1,005
1,311

b) by Income Statement as of 31 December 2005
in millions of SIT

Associates
(128)
50
1,763
0
0

by Income Statement as of 31 December 2004
in millions of SIT

Net interest income
Dividend income
Net fee and commissions income
Net profit from financial operations
Costs of services

Subsidiaries
538
1,532
83
64
77

Associates
39
74
52
2
51
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Net profit from financial operations
Costs of services

Subsidiaries
730
1,026
85
(8)
81
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Net interest income
Dividend income
Net fee and commissions income

Executive
Management
Profile

Management Board

Executive Directors

Matjaž Kovačič
President & CEO (as of May 21, 2005)
Qualifications:
1992 B.Sc. Degree in Economics, University of
Maribor, Faculty of Economics

Irena Žnidaršič
Executive Director
Financial Markets
Qualifications:
1977 B.Sc. Degree in Economics,
University of Maribor, Faculty of Economics

Manja Skernišak
Member of the Management Board
(as of May 21, 2005)
Qualifications:
1985 B.Sc. Degree in Economics,
University of Maribor, Faculty of Economics

Igor Šujica
Executive Director
Slovenia-East Division
Qualifications:
1994 B.Sc. Degree in Economics,
University of Maribor, Faculty of Economics
Aleksander Batič
Executive Director
Slovenia-Center Division
Qualifications:
1983 B.Sc. Degree in Mechanical Engineering,
University of Ljubljana,
Faculty of Mechanical Engineering

Vasilij Koman
Executive Director
Organization and Support Services
Qualifications:
1971 B.Sc. Degree in Mathematics, University of
Ljubljana, Faculty of Mathemathics and Physics
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Savina Golob
Executive Director (until July 15, 2005)
Corporate Banking
Qualifications:
1995 B.Sc. Degree in Economics, University of
Maribor, Faculty of Economics
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Ksenija Mrevlje
Executive Director
Area Branch Nova Gorica
Qualifications:
1976 B.Sc. Degree in Economics, University of
Ljubljana, Faculty of Economics

Vlasta Brečko
Executive Director
Support to Commercial Activities and
Electronic Banking
Qualifications:
1990 B.Sc. Degree in Economics, University of
Maribor, Faculty of Economics
1993 Certified Auditor, University of Maribor,
Faculty of Economics
2000 M.Sc. Degree in Economics, University of
Maribor, Faculty of Economics
Andrej Plos
Executive Director
Risk Management, Accounting and Controlling
Qualifications:
B.Sc. Degree in Economics,
University of Maribor, Faculty of Economics

International Activities
Departmental Heads
Marko Podlipnik
General Manager
Financial Institutions
Telephone: +386 2 229 2284,
e-mail: mpodlipnik@nkbm.si
Manja Skernišak
General Manager (until May 21, 2005)
Corporate Banking
Telephone: +386 2 229 2527,
e-mail: mskernisak@nkbm.si
Vera Detiček-Frkovič
General Manager
International Payments & Documentary Operations
Telephone: +386 2 229 2200,
e-mail: vfrkovic@nkbm.si
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Darja Šuler
General Manager
International Payments & Documentary Operations,
Nova Gorica Branch
Telephone: +386 5 331 7263,
e-mail: dsuler@nkbm.si
Peter Budin
General Manager, Corporate Banking and
Assistant to Executive Director,
Nova Gorica Branch
Telephone: +386 5 331 7289,
e-mail: pbudin@nkbm.si

Principal
Foreign
Correspondents

Nova Kreditna banka Maribor d.d. maintains direct account relations with 36 banks abroad and close
correspondent relations with over 1000 banks world-wide.
Country / Bank

SWIFT

Currency

WPACAU2S

AUD

ABAGATWW
BKAUATWW
VSGKAT2K

EUR
EUR
EUR

BBRUBEBB010

EUR

CANADA
Bank of Montreal, Montreal

BOFMCAM2

CAD

CROATIA
Zagrebačka banka d.d., Zagreb

ZABAHR2X

HRK

DENMARK
Danske Bank A/S, Copenhagen

DABADKKK

DKK

Commerzbank AG, Dusseldorf

COBADEDD

EUR

Deutsche Bank AG, Frankfurt

DEUTDEFF

EUR

LHB Internationale Handelsbank AG, Frankfurt

LHBIDEFF

EUR

Banca Intesa SpA, Milano

BCITITMM

EUR

UniCredito Italiano SpA, Milano

UNCRITMM

EUR

SMBCJPJT

JPY

NORWAY
DNB NOR Bank ASA, Oslo

DNBANOKK

NOK

SWEDEN
Svenska Handelsbanken AB, Stockholm

HANDSESS

SEK

UBSWCHZH80A

CHF

MIDLGB22

GBP

American Express Bank Ltd., New York

AEIBUS33

USD

JP Morgan Chase Bank, New York

CHASUS33

USD

AUSTRALIA
Westpac Banking Corporation, Sydney
AUSTRIA
Adria Bank AG, Vienna
Bank Austria Creditanstalt AG, Vienna
Bank und Revisionsverband GmbH, Klagenfurt
BELGIUM
ING Belgium SA/NV, Brussels

GERMANY
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ITALY

JAPAN
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation, Tokyo

SWITZERLAND
UBS AG, Zurich
UNITED KINGDOM
HSBC Bank Plc, London
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

Branch Network

H

A

CRO

I

Maribor Headquarters

Celje Branch

Ptuj Branch

Pomurje Branch

Slovenska Bistrica Branch

Nova Gorica Branch

Ljubljana Branch

Idrija Branch

Brežice Branch

Tolmin Branch

Koroška Branch

Koper Branch

Novo mesto Branch

Ajdovščina Branch

